NOTICE OF 177" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that 17™ Annual General Meeting of the Members of Global
Health Limited will be held on Tunesday, 21" day of September, 2021 af 4:30 p.m. at shorter
notice at the Registered Office of the Company, Medanta — Mediclinic, E-18, Defence Colony,
New Delhi, Delhi-110024 for the transaction of following Businesses:

ORDINARY,

SINESSES

ive, consider and adopt the audlted St'mdalone Fmanmal Statements of the
Co ~for. the -Financial-Year. ended Mai‘ch 31, 2021, “the: Reports of the
Audtt' s and Board of Directors thereon, and the Audlted Consolldated Financial
Statements of the Company for the Flnanciaf Year ended March 31, 2021 and the
Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To app_o_i':_lt a Director in place of Mr. Sunil Sachdeva (DIN: ¢0012115), who retires
b 'hy_ro’ta'tion and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

SI’ECIAL.BUSINESSES

3. To Lons"'er and, if thought fit, to pass the followmg 1csolut10n as an Ordinary
Reschution:

“RESOL‘QED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all the other
appiica}nle:pi'ovisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companics (Audit
and ‘Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory medification(s) or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in force), and any other applicable provision / statues as may
be applicable fmm time to time, the Company hereby approve the remuneration of
Rs. 8,10,000 (Rupecs Eight Lakhs Ten Thousand only) per annum excluding GST and
out of pocket"‘expén_ses payable to M/s. Ramanath Iyer & Co.. (Firm Registration
number : 000019) who are appointed as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost
records for the financial year ending 31st March 2022.

RESOLVED FURTHER 'FHAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and are
hereby authorized to do ali such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, proper, .
expedient or incidental for giving effect to this resolution,”

Ceriified True Copy
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4. Approval of Initial Public Offer

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following
resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant (0 the provisions of Sections 23, 62(1){c¢) and all other
applicabie provisions, if any,-of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made
thereunder, including the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules,
2014, the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures} Rules, 2014 (collectively, the
“Companies Act™), the Securities Contracts {(Regulation) Act, 1936 {and the applicable
rules thereunder), the Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capiial and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (the “SEBI ICDR Regulations™), the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder, including the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 (mcludmg any . statutory.
modifications or re-enactmemt thereof, for: the time being in force) and any other
applicable taws, rules, regulations, guidelines, press notes, notifications, circulars and
clarifications issued from time to time, in India or owside India (coliectively, the
“Applicable Laws™), and in accordance with the enabling provisions of the
Memorandum of Association and the Arlicles of Association of the Company and the
uniform listing agreement to be entered into between the Company and the zeSpective
recognized Stock Exchanges of India where the equity shares of face value of Rs. 2
each of the Company (the “Equity Shares™ are proposed to be listed (“Stock
Exchanges™), and subject to any approvals, consents, penmss;ons or sanctions from
the Government of Tndia (the “Gol”), including the Department.for Promotion of
Industry and Internal Trade, the Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance,
the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), the Securities and Exchange Board of India {the
“SEBI”), the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Dethi & Haryana
at New Delhi (the “RoC™}, the Stock Exchanges, and/or any other appropriate
government, statutory or regulatory authoritics (collectively, the “Regulatory
Authorities”), and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed,
stipulated or imposed by any of them while granting such approvals, consents,
permissions and/or sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to mciudc any committee which
the Board has duly constituted or may hcrcmaftcr duly constitute to exercise its powers
mcluding the powers conferred by this resoluiion), the consent, autherity and approval
of the shareholders of the Company is hereby granted for an inidal public offering of
Equity Shares (the “Offer™), and the Board be and is hereby authorized to create, issue,
offer and allot such number of Equity Shares aggregating up to Rs. 5000 million, by
way ol a fresh 1ssue of Equity Shares by the Company (the “Fresh Issue™ and an offer
for sale upto 4,84,40,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each by certain shareholders of the
Company {the “Selling Sharelolders”, and such offer for sale, the “Offer for Sale™)
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in the Offer, on such terms and conditions, in such manner and during such period, to
such person or persons as may be permitied by and in accordance with Applicable
Laws, who may or may not be sharcholders of the Company, as the Board may decide,
including to one or more of the members of the Company, eligible employees of the
Company, Hindu undivided families, anchor investors (if any) or qualified institutional
buyers, each as defmcd under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, foreign portfolio investors,
registered. I’orc:gn venture: C’lplml investors, registered alternate investment funds,
public financial institutions as specified: in Section 2(72) of the Companies Act,
] ommercial banks, muiulateral and- -bilateral financial institutions, state
mdusmal development corporations, insurance compames registered with the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authonty ‘of India, provident funds, pension
funds, the National Investment Fund set up by the’ Gol, insurance funds set up by the
army, 11avy or air force of the Union of India, insurance funds set up by the Department
of Posts, India, development financial institutions, systemically important non-banking
financial. companies, Indian mutual funds registered with the SEBI, non-resident
Indians, Indian public, bodies corporate, companies (private or public) or other entities,
aulhont;cs, and to such other persons cligible to invest in Equity Shares of the
"'Company, including high net worth individuals, retail individual bidders or other
-“entities;in one or more combinations ﬂaereof as may be permitted under Applicable
- Laws, in‘one or more tranches, at a price determined by the book building process in
""-teims of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, for cash at such price or prices (at a discount, at
par or at & prepuum) per Equity Share as may be fixed and determined by the Board,
and subject to Applicable Laws, including, without limitation, through a prospectus,
offering circular or an oﬂ‘ermg document, and in such manner and ov such terms and
condltlons as may be finalized by the Board, in consultation with the book running icad
the 'O_ffer (“BRLMs’ ) andfor underwrltcrs and/ot othcr advisors or such
,_111tcd for the Offer, and that the Board in consultation with the BRLMs
may ﬁnah?e a Ima’fters mc:dentai ihereto as it xmy in its absolulc d1501 etion thml—:s fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT such of the Equity Shares to be issued under the
Offer as are not subscribed may be disposed of by the Board to such persons and in
such manner and on such terms as the Board in its absolute discretion think most
beneficial to the Company, including offering or placing them with banks/financial
mstlluz1011shnvcstmcnl institutions/mutual funds/bodies corporate/such other persons
or otherwise as the Board may in Il‘; absoiutc discretion decide, subject to compliance
with all Appllcable Law i

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT ihe Equity Shares allotted and/or transferred in the
Offer shall be subject to the memorandum of association and the articles of association
of the Company and rank pari passu with the existing Equity Shares of the Company,
in all respects, including rights in respect of dividend.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to Applicable Laws, oversubscription to the
extent of 1% of the net Offer size, or such other extent as may be permitted under
Apphicable Laws may be retained by the Company for the purpose of rounding off to
the nearest integer while finalizing the basis of altotment in relation to the Offes.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to Applicable Laws, the approval of the
shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the listing and trading of the
Equity Shares on BSE Limited and the Natlonal Stock Exchangc of India Limited
pursuant to the [PO.

RE&OLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized 1o do such
acts, deeds and things as the Board in its absolute discretion deems necessary or
desirable in connection with the Offer and to delegate all or any of the powers herein
conferred 11 such manner as it may deem fit, mciudmk, wnhout limitation, the
followmg

(i3 - To make applications 1o seek clarifications and obtain approvals from, where
- necessary, the SEBI, the RBJ, and any other Regulatory Authorities as may be
-, required in connection with the Offer and accept on behalf of the Board such

“conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by any of them
L whlle granting sauch approvals, penmssmns and 5anct10ns as may be required,

() - To take all actions as may: be necessary in’ connecuon wnh the Offer, mciudmg
“extending the Bid/ Offer period, revision of tile Pnce Band, in accordance with
'the Applzcablc Laws :

(1) To appomt and enter into arrangements with the BRLMs, underwriters to the
Offer, syndicate members to the Offer, brokers to the Offer, sponsor bank to the
Offer, advisors to the Offer, escrow collection banks to the Offer, sponsor bank
to the Offer, registrars to the Offer, refund banks to the Offer, public Offer
account banks fo the Offer, advertising agencies, legal counse] and any other
agencies or persons or intermediaries (including any replacements thereof) to
the Offer-and to negotiate and finalize and amend.the terms of their
appeintment, inchiding but not Hmited to-execution of the BRLMs® mandate
letter, negotzatlon finalization, executlon and, if required, the amendment of the
Offer agreement with the BRLMS and the undclwmmg agieement with the
underwriters, :

{lv)  To negotiate, finalize, settle, execute and deliver or arrange the delivery of the
draft red herring prospectus (“DRHP™), the red herring prospectus (“RHP™,
the prospectus, Offer agreement, registrar agreement, syndicate agreement,
underwriting agreement, advertising agency agreement, escrow and sponsor
bank agreement, share escrow agreement and all other documents, deeds,
agreements, memorandum of understanding and any noticfgg__, supplements and
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corrigenda thereto, as may be required or desirable, and other instruments
whatsoever with the registrar to the Offer, legal advisors, auditors, Stock
Exchanges, BRL.Ms and any other agencies/intermediaries in connection with
the Offer with the power to authorize one or more officers of the Company to
ncg,otlate , execute and deliver all or any of the aforementioned documents;

(v} To. dcmdc the pmmg, ‘the terms of the Offer of the Equity Shares, all other

related matters regarding the Pre- IPO Placement, if any, including the execution
of ‘the relevant documents with the investors, in consultation with the Selling
Shareholders and the BRLMs, and: roundmg off, if any, in the event of over-
. sul}smptmn and in accordance with Appllcable Laws;

__:\T_o decide in consultation with the Sellmg Shareholders and the BRLMs on the

 size, timing, pricing, discount, reservation and all the terms and conditions of

the Offer, including the price band, b:d pcnod Offer price, and to accept any
_a__mencimcnts modifications, vanattqns or: aitcr’nt;ons thereto;

(vu} _ To finalize, settie, approve and adopt and file in consultation with the Selling

- “Shareholders and the BRLMs, where applicable, the DRHP with the SEBY, RAP
- with the RoC, the prospectus for the Offer together with any addenda,
- corrigenda or supplement thereto with the SEBI and RoC and take all such
actions as may be necessary for® filing of these documents including
oi'pmatmg such altcrattons;‘corrcctmns!modaﬁcauons as may be required by
cla ions to the SEBI; the
in accordance with

(viii) To seek, if required, the consent of the lenders of the Company, industry data
providers, parties with whom the Company has entered into various commereial
and other agreements, all concerned Regulatory Authorities in India or outside
India, and any other consents that may be required in relation to the Offer or
any actibns connected therewith; '

(x) To opcn and .aperate bank account(s) of thc Company in terms of the escrow
and sponsor ‘bank agreement and 0. authorize one or more officers of the
Company to exccute ail documents/deeds as may be necessary in this regard,

() To authorize and approve incurring of expenditure and payment of fees,
commissions, brokerage, remuneration and reimbursement of expenses in
connection with the Offer;

(xi)  To approve code of conduct as may be considered necessary or as required
under Applicable Laws for the Board, officers of the Company and other
__employees of the Company,
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(xii)

(xiif)

(x1v)

(xv)

(xvi}

To authorize any concerned person on behalf of the Company to give such
declarations, affidavits, certificates, consents and authorities as may be required
from time to time in relation to the Offer; o

To applove suxtabie pohmes n 1elauon to the Offer as may bo rcquzrcd under
Apphcable Laws; - .7 : .

To approve any corporate governance requirement that may be considered

‘necessary by the Board or as may be 1eqmred under Apphcablc Laws, in

connection with the Offer;

To authorize and appzove notices, advemsemcnts in rulaaon to the Offer in
consultation with the relevant intermediaries appointed for the Offer;

To open and operate bank accounis of the Company in terms of Section 40(3)

~of the Companies Act, 2013 or as may be required by the regulations issued by
.. the SEBI and to authorize one or more officers of the Company to execute all
; -_'-_documents/deecis as may be neccssary in tlus regard

(xvip

(xviil)

Gux)

(xx)

(xx1)
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ofther documents ag may be required with the National Securities Depository

_To approve the basis for al locanowallotmcnt and confirm allocatlonfallomlent ;
of the Equity Shares to various categories of persons as dlSG]OSCd in the DRHP, ~

the RHP and the pmspccms in consultation wnh the Scllmﬂ Shareholders and
the BRLMS :

To issue receipts/aliotmelzt letters/confirmation of alldcatiou notes either in
physxcal or electronic mode representing the underlying Eqmty Shares in the
capital of the Company with such features and attributes as may. be required and

1o provide for the tradability and free t:ansferabihty thereof :as per.market

practices and regulations, mcludlng listing on the Stock Exchanges with power
to authorize one or more officers of the Coznpany to sign all or any of the
aforementioned documents;

To withdraw the DRHP or the RHP or not to proceed with the Offer at any stage,
if consi_d_crcd necessary and expcdient i accordance with Applicable Laws;

To make applications for- llstmg of Equlty Shares on the Stock Exchanges and
to execute and to deliver or arrange the delivery of necessary documentation to
the Stock Exchanges and to take all such other actions as may be necessary in
connection with obtaining such listing;

To do all such deeds and acts as may be required to dematerialize the Equity
Shares and 1o sign and/or modify, as the case may be, agreements and/or such

i
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Limited, Central Deposttory Services (India) Limited, regisirar and transfer
agents and such other agencies, as may be required in this regard with power to
authorize one or more officers of the Company to execute all or any of the
aforementioned documents;

(xwil) To do alI such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such other
documents ete., as 1tmay in its absolute discretion, deem necessary or destrable
for the Offer, in consultation with the Selling Shareholders and the BRLMs,
mcluding without hmitation, determining the anchor investor pottion and

“allocation to Anchor Investors, finalizing the basis of allocation and allotment

f'Equity Shares to the successful allottees ‘and credit of Equity Shares io the

nat accounts of the suceessful all ottees m accmdance with Applicable Laws;

(xxiii) To settle all questions, difficulties or deubts that may arise in regard to the Offer,
mcludmg such 1ssues or allotment and matlers incidental thereto as it may decm
fit and to delegate such of its powers ‘as may be deemed necessary and

) -'pcnmsmble under Applicable Laws to thc officials of the Company,

approve the expenditure in relatlt_m fo the Offer'

‘0.approve and adopt the relevant rcstatcd ﬁnanclal statements 1 be issued in
connecnon with the Offer '- - : :

(xxvi). 'T t_akc such action, glvc such directions, as may be necessary or desirable as

“‘régards the Offer and to do all such acts, matters, déeds and things, including
but not limited to the allotment of Equlty Shares against the vaild apphmnons
recelvcd in the Offer, as are in the best interests of the Company;

(xxvn) To negotiate, fi nall?e settle, execute and deliver any and all other documents

: or instruments and doing or causing to be done any and all acts or things as it

may deem necessary, appropnate or advisable in order to carry out the purposcs

and mtent of the foregoing or in connection with the Offer and any documents

or instruments so exccuted and delivered or acts and things done or caused to

be done by it or 2 any committee thereof shall be conclusive evidence of the
authority of the Board in so doing; and

(xxviii}To delegate any of the powers mentioned above to the following persons,
namely Dr,” Naresh “Trehan, Chairman and Managing Director, Mr. Panlkayj
Sahni, Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Sanjeev Kumar, Group Chief Financial
Officer and Mr. Rahul Ranjan, Company Secretary, severally, to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required to be done to give effect to
the above resolution.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in relation to the Offer, any decision regarding the
Offer may be made by the Company together with, or in consultation with the Selling
Shareholders and the BRLMs as may be mutually agreed upon in terms of any
agreement in connection with the Offer.

RESOLVED FUR’I‘HER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above
resolution, Dr. Naresh Trehan, Chairman and Managing Director, Mr, Pankaj Sahni,

Chief Executive Officer, Mr.’ Sanjeev Kumar, Group Chief Financial Officer and
Mr, Rabul Ranjan, Company Secretary, severally, be and are Lereby authorized to do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as they may, in their absolute discretion, deem
necessary, proper or desirable for such purpose, including, without limitation, the issue,

transfer-and allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant to the Offer, and may, along with
the Scilmg Sharcholders and subject to the provisions of Appilcable Laws determine
the terms of the Offer, including with respect to the class.of investors tQ ‘whom_the
Equity Shares are to be allotted and/or transferred, the number of Equity- ‘Shares to be
allotted and/or transferred, the Offer price, premium amount, Discount (as allowed
under Applicable Laws), appointment of the intermediaries, opening escrow accounts,

finalizing the basis of allotment of the Lqmty Shares, to approve the incurring of
expenditure and the payment of fees, commissions, brokerage, remuneration and
reimbursement of expenses in connection with the Offer, to make any filings, furnish
any returns or submit any. other documents to any. regulatory or governmental
authoritics .as may be required, and fo settle. any question, 'diffi cuify or doubl, and
further, to negotiate, finalize and execute all documents, agreements, papers,
instruments and writings - mciudmg arrangements wxlh th-:: Suihn.s:. Sharehelders,’ ‘the
BRLMs, underwriters, escrow agents, legal advisors, etc., asthey may deem necessary,
proper, desirable or expedient and to give such directions and/or instructions as they
may from time to time decide and to accept and give effect to such modifications,
changes, variations, alterations, deletions and/or additions as regards the terms and
conditions of the Offer or the documentation in relation thereto as may be required;

and any documents so execuied and delivered or acts and- t}nngs done shall be
conclusive evidence of the authomy of the Company in 30 do:ng and -any document $o
executed and- dehvered or acts and things done prior to the date; hereof are hereby
ratified, conﬁrmed_ and approved asthe act and cleed of the Company, as the case may
be, n : - :

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT dulgr certiﬁéd copies of :1'1"5 above resolutions be
furnished to any government, statutory or regulatory authority as may be required from
time to time.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For Global Health Limited

Date: 17% September, 2021
Place: Gurgaon Rahul Ranjan

- ) \.:5' L, o T
Regd. Office: E-18. Defence Colony, New Delhi 10024, Ph Wo.011- 44114411 wwaw medanta.org, info@medanta.org,

Company Secretary
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NOT

(a)

(b}

(¢}
(d}

(e)

(0

ES:

Explanatory Statement pursuast (o Section 102({1) of the Companics Act, 2013 in relation

to above items is annexed herewith and forms part of this Notice.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to

attend and vote instead of herself/himself and the proxy need not be a member of the

company. o “

The meetiﬂg is convened at shorter notice subject 10 consent of members,

Corporat ; 'Mcmbcrs intending to send their authorized representatives are requested to

send @ duly certified copy of the Board Resclutmn _authonzmg the repiesentanves to
nd vote at the AGM. i - :

Proxies should fill the Attendance Shp for attendmg the Meetmg and bring

their Attendance Slips to the Meeting, ' :

All relevant documents referred in this NOEICB and the Explanatory Statement shall be

open forinspection by the Members at the ch:stcrcd office of the Company at Medanta

_:\_-vMediclmc E-18, Defence Colony, New Dcihi Delha 110(}24 during the business hours

en nall worklng days upto the date of AGM.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 10¢1) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 FORMING PART OF NOTICE CONVENING ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETZNG ON SEPTEMBER 21, 2021

Hem Nea. 3
Approval of Remuneratmn payable tn ‘the Cost Audltors for the Fmanmai Yea: 202122

The Board, on the 1ecommendat10ns of Audit Conmnt‘tee has approved the re-appointment of
M/s. Ramanath lyer & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors for the Financia! Year ending
31st March 2022, at a remuneration of Rs. 8,10,000 (Rupees Eight Lakhs Ten Thousand only)
excluding GST and out of pocket expenses payable to the Cost Auditors.

In accordance wnt 1 Section 148(3) of the Act read w:th Rule: 14 Df the Compamca (Audlt and
Andiiors) Ruius, 2014, the remuneration so payabie to thc Cost Audllors ig reqmred 10 be,_\

Accmdlngiy, consant of the members Is sought f01 passmg an Ordma;y Rcsolutlon as set out
at Item No. 3 of the Notice of the AGM for ratification of remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditors for the Financial Year ending 31st March 2022.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are in any way concemed
or interested, ﬁnancmlly or otherwise, either directly or 111d1rect1y in the proposed resolution.

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing of the Ordinary Resolutlon as sct'out at Item No.
3 of this Notice, for the approval of the Members. :

item No. 4:

Approval of Initial P""’t}'_l’i_c Offer

Considering the long ezm strateg,m growth plan and afrlead posmorl w1th key shareholders of
the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to undertake an initial public
offering of iis equity shares of face value of Rs.2 each (the “Equity Shares”™ and such offeri ing

the "Offer”) in accordance with the enabling provisions of the memorandum of association and
the articles of association of the Company, the uniform listing agreement to be entered into
between the Company and the relevant stock exchanges where the Equity Shares are proposed
to be listed (the “Stock Exchanges™) and applicable laws, regulations, policies and guidelines,
in India or outside India, including, without limitation, the Securities Cogtracts (Regulation)
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Act, 1936 (and the applicable rules thereunder), the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, the Companics Act, 2013
and the applicable rules thereunder, the Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 _and the reguiations made thereunder, ineluding the Foreign Exchange
Management (Non—debt?nétmnﬁems) Rules, ‘.019 and any other foreign investment law and
the rules, :egu[atlons “g'u1delmes ‘press notes, not1ﬁcauons circulars and clarifications issued
from time to _t1 by the Government of India, mchtdmg the Department for Promotion of
Industry and. In__ mal Trade, the Reserve Bank of Indta the Sccuu‘ues and Exchange Board of
India, the chlstmr of Companics, National C';pltai Tertitory of Dethi & Haryana at New
Dethi, the Stock Exchanges and/or any other competent autho:mes in each case, as amended
{collectively, “A )p licable Laws™).

The Offer structure, which may comprise a fchh 1551.10 o{' Eqmty Shares of up o Rs, 5000
million by th 6111pd:1y(the ‘Fresh Tssue™) and an offer for sale of up fo 4,84,40,000 Equity
Shares. of Rs.2. ‘each by certain sharcholders of the Company (the “Selling Sharcholders”, and
such oﬂ"el for. 'sa!e the “Offer for Sale™), will be finalized at the absolute discretion of the boa:d
of dlrectms of the Company {the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any
committee. whlch the Board may constitute to e‘(erc:lse its powers inchuding the powers
ccmfened by this resolution). '

The Company may: g dlscount to the price at whach the Equxty Shares are offered
pursuant fo the Offcr to_any categ{}ry or categorles of persons as permitted under Appllmblc
Laws,

In connect:on wuh the Offer, the Company is required, inter aliz, to pchare various documents
and execute various agrucment%, including, without limitation, engagement letters, the listing
agreciments fo be entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges, the registrar’s
agreement, the offer agrecmeni with the Selling Shareholders and the book running lead
managers, the momtonng agency agreement, the share escrow agreement, the syndicate
agreement, the cash escrow and sponsor banlc agt cement the underwriting agreement and the
service provider agreement with the advertising agency. Accordingly, it is proposed fo
authorize the members of the Board and certain officers of the Company to negotiate, finalize
and execule such decumenis and agreements as may be required and to do all such acts, decds,
matters and things in this regard for and on behalf of the Company.
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In view of the above and in terms of Section 62(1)(c), and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, the approval of shareholders of the Company is required through a special
resolution.

Except as and to the extent of the participation by directors or key managerial personnel in the
Offer mentioned above, none of the directors or managers or key managerial personnel of the
Company or the relatives of said persons are interested in the said resolution.

No change in control of the Company or its manag,ement of 1ts bu siness s mtended or expected
pursuant to the Offer ; : :

In view of the above approvat of sharcholders of the Company is sought to issue Eqﬁity Shares
under section 62{1){c) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act and the rules and
regulations made thereunder, each, as amended. The Board recommends the resolution in Item
4 of the agcompanying Notice for your approval as spccial resobution.

3 By order’ of the Bﬂard (}f Directors

Date: 17 September, 2021 ) L : : __
Place: Gurgaon s S Rahul Ranjau i

o B Company Secretary

- {M. No. — A 17035)

Regd Ofﬂc& E-18, Delence Golony New Delni 110024 Ph Mo DH 44194411 wean medanta.org, info@redanta.ong, CIN: U8511{}DLEDMPLC128319
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GLOBAL HEALTH LIMITED
Registered Office: E-18, Defence Colony, New Delhi — 110024
CIN: U85110DL2004PLLC128319
Telephone: (011) 4411 4411 * Fax: (011) 2433 1433* Website: www.medan(a.org

- . ATTENDANCE SLIP

Members attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the
Attendance Shp and hand it over at the entrance of. the meetmg roofm.

! hereby r{:cord 111y presence at the Annual General Mcclmg of the Company at its Registered
office at :M danit — Mediclinic, E-18, Defence Colony, ] New Delhi, Delhi-110024, to be held
on Tuesday; __.:.:_'day of Septembex 2021 at 4:30 p. m at shorter notice

Name of the Membcl _______________ --: o c _

Signature
" Falio Noi o " DPIDNo* Client ID No:*
*Applic r Members holding shares in electronic '
Fufl name of the Projgyf Authorized Rép_rc_s_ent'ative (if appiicabi_e) o . Signature

Reqd O!fce E-18, Delence Cc1ony New aeammoza Ph No. 011 44114411 weewmedanta.ong, anio@medanla o1g, CIN UB3110DLZI0APLC 128318
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Registered Office: E-18, Defence Colony, New Delhi — 110024
. .. CIN: US5110DL2004PLC128319
Telephone: (011} 4411 4411 * Fax: (011) 2433 1433 * Website: www. medama o1y

Form No. MGT 1
PROXY FORM. .

[Pursuant o Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19{3) of the Companu.s {Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014] "

CIN: UES110DL2004PI.CI28319
Name of the Company: GLOBAL HEALTH LiMITED
Registered Office: Medanta — Mediclinic, E-18, Defence Coiony, New Delh1 Dclln 110024

Name of the Member{s):

Registered Address;
E-mail id: ) DPIDNo* Chen: 1D No.¥
*Applicable for Members holding shal cs i electronic form ' _ _
[/'We, being the Mem‘oe; (s) of Shares of Global Health Limited, hereby
appoint: o S
1. Name:

Addﬁ:ss:

Fmail id;

Signature: ' , or falling hini/her

2. Naine:

Address:

Email id:

Signature; , or falting him/her
3. Name:

Address:

e o % il
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Emazl id:

Signature; , or falling himsher
as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poli) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 21 day of September, 2021 at 4:30 p.m. at shorter
notice at its Registered Office at Medanta ~ Mediclinic, E-18, Defence Colony, New Delhi, Delhi-
110024 and at any qdjoumment thereof, in respect of the Resolutions set out in the Notice convening
the Meeting, as indicated below:

S. NO. | RESOLUTIONS - | I‘OR | AGAINST
Ordinary-Business 5 : :
1 | To receive, consider and adopt the audited fiuancml

statements of the Company including the audited
consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31st March 2021, togetier with the reports of the
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.
2 To re-appoint Mr. Sunil Sachdeva (DIN: OODiZ! 15) as
«| 'Diréctor '
Speclal Busmess ;

.- | Ratification of remuneration payable o, the Cost

3 S
1 Auditors for the Financial Year 2021-22
4, Appr_oval of Initiat Public QOffer o

Signed this [¢] day of |s], 2021
Revenue

Stamp
Signature

Signature of Sharcholder..

Signature of ﬁroxy Holder{s)
Notes:

1. This form shuuld be 51gned across the stamp as per specimen signature registered with
the Company. ..~

2. The Proxy, o be cft”ectzvc, should be depssﬁed at me Regislered Office of the Company.

3. A proxy need not be. a member of the Companv :

4. Please puta vV in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If
you feave the For or Against column bank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy
will be entitled to voie in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. This is oniy optionak.
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Directors’ Report
Jor financial year ended Maich 31, 2021

Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Sr. No. Name of Directors Designation
I Dy, Naresh Trehan Chairman & Managing Director
2 M. Hari Shanker Bhartia Independent Director
3 Mr. Neeraj Bhardwaj Nominee Director ) E
4 Ms. Praveen Mahajan Independenit Director 1
3 Mr, Rajan Bharti Mittal Independent Director "}
) Dr. Ravi Gupta Independent Director %
7 Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria Nominee Director i
3 Mr. Sunil Sachdeva Non-Executive Director ]'
Y Mr Venkatesh &, Nominee Directos _‘
10 M, Vilcam Singh Mchta Independent Dircetor mii
Registered Office: Corporate Office:
Medanta-Mediclinic E-18, Medanta — The Medicity,
Defence Colony Sector-31, Gurugram,
New Delhi-110024 122001, Haryana
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent Company seeretary
[SIN ~ IN474Q01023 Rahul Ranjan

Kfin Technologies Private Limited
Seienium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,
Finaneial District, Hyderabad 500032

Auditors Wehsite:
M/s Watker Chandiok & Co. LLP, www.medanta.org
Chartered Accountants
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Board's Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 17 Annval Report on business and operations together with
the Audited Financial Staterments for the financial year ended March 31, 2021,

Financial Performance

The standalone and Consolidated Financial vesults of your Company and its subsidiaries for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021 are summarized beltow:

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Revenue from 1,22, 739.81 1,.47,208.62 150,042.20
operations 1,44,674.32

Other Income 2,834.86 4353,89 4,384.50
3,141.53

Totgl Revenue ’ 1,25,574.67 1,51,562.51 1,54,426.70
1,47.815.85

Total Expenditure 1,17,132.39 1,38,469.17 1,48,037.57
1,44,569,29

Profitr before Taxation 8,442.28 13,003.34 3,246,586 6,386.96

Business Performance Overview

You Directors have pleasure to share with you that the duving the finaneial year 2020-21, the
Company has once again established itself as one of the largest private multi-specialty tertiary care
providers operating in the North and East regions of India, with key specialties of cardiology and
cardiac science, neurosciences and urology. As at March 31, 2021, the Company provided healthcare
services over 30 medical speciaities and engaged over 3,100 doctors led by highly experienced
department heads and, spanning an area of 3.2 million sq. ft. with operational hospitals have
approxinately 2,176 instalied beds. Under the “Medanta” brand, the Group has a network of four
hospitals currently in operation (Gueugram, Indore, Ranchi and Lucknow), a hospital which is under
construction with an already-operational outpatient facility {Patna), and one hospital {Noida) planned
for development. The Company has applied for various regulatory approvals from respective
authorities for cornmencement of development of Noida Hospital project.

The Company’s business has been affected due to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic coupled with a
weaker cconomy on hospitals and restiictions required as a result of Covid-19 resulted in, among
other. things, lower patient volumes, deferred surgeries, decline in elective surgeries, higher
operational costs, leading to lower profit as reflected in our Fiscal 2020 and Fisca) 2021 financial
staternients (as compared to Fiscal 2019). In Apuil 2021, India witnessed a drastic surge in COVID-19
cases resulting in shortages of medical supplics and equipment and overwhelming the healtheare
infrastructure. The Company is continuously calibrating its response to Covid-19 situation and its
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buginess has demonstrated steady financial performance over the last three fiscal years and
successfully weathered the challenges of Covid-19.

To reduce the impact of Covid-19 on Company's facilities, the Comnpany has re-aligned infrastruettre,
patient flows and setup various protocols. In FY2021, your company and its subsidiary tool the
oul-patient department pharmacics in-house at Gurugram, Lucknow and Indere hospitals; and
launched home-care services at Gurugram, It scaled up its telemedicine and remote delivery of
healtheare services, and the monthly average consultation via video and telephone witnessed visible
growih in Gurugram unit. The home-care sample collection services (“Home Care Services™) provide
sample coliection, preventive health checks, paediatric vaccinations and nursing services, all at the
convenience of the patient®s home.

As an organisation, the Company focus on quality tertiary and qualernary care, treatment of lifestyle
diseases, provision of valie-based treatments and work on a high number of eritical, complex cases. 1t
is continually looking for value-aceretive opportunities while strengthening its presence in key growth
markels,

Proposed initial Public Gffer

During the year your Board of Dircctors proposed to undertake an initiaj public offering of
Company's equity shares {the “Equity Shares” and such offering, the “Offer”) and authorised the
management to fake all necessary steps in this regard. Your Directors have pleasure to share with youl
that effective steps have been initiated, especially post the year under review in this regard and an
initial public offering and consequential listing of shares of the Company is contemplated in near
future, subject to necessary approvals, The formal proposat of Offer, forms part of agenda of ensuing
Annual General Mecting of the Company, as recommended by your Bsard of Divectors.

The Company has adopted and implemented various requirements of Corporate Governance and
mandatory corporate policies/code of conduct required under the Companies Act, 2013, as amended,
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of [nsider
. Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended, in its pursuit to gel the shares listed and meet 4] the
eligibility norms,

The status of the Company has been changed from Private Limited to Pyblic Limited by a special
resolution passed by the shareholder on July 31, 2021 and 2 new cerificate of incorporation was
issued by the Registrar of Companies NCT of Delli and Haryana (*ROC”} dated |1 August, 2021,
On September [7*, 2021, the Memorandum of Association (MOA) and Asticles of Association
{AOA} of the Company, were changed pursuant to resohitions passed wy the shareholders to align the
contents thereof with the tequirenents of listing and agreed understanding of the Company with its
key sharcholders under Waiver, Amendment and Termination Agreement (“"WATA”), approved by
the shercholder. Under WATA it has been agreed that Dr, Naresh Trehan shall be the only promoter
of the Company going forward,

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The composition of Board of Divectors is well balanced with a view o manage the affairs of the
Company cfficiently and professionally. The Board is a balanced Board, comprising Executive and
Non-Execntive Directors and includes indepertdent jprofessionals and meets the composition
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requirements of Companies Act as well as SEBT listing norms, During the financial year 2020-2}
following changes in the Board of Directors took place:

»  Mr. Udairarn Thali Koattiath (DIN 08703201) who was appeinied on 3% June 2020 as an
additional — nominee director by the Board of Directors of the Company (o represent Mg
Bunearn investments (Mawvitivg) Pte Lid had vesigned from the divectorship of the Company
with effect from 1 7% March, 2021. He was also 2 mamber of the Audit Committee,

+  Ms. Praveen Mahajan (DIN 07138514) was appointed as an Additional Independent Director
on the Board of the Comwany on 10" July, 2020 for a period of § years. Her appointment was
approved by the shareholder at last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

9% Qutober, 2020.

+  Mr. Vikram Singh Mehta {(DIN: 00041197} has been appointed as an Additional Independent
Director by the Board w.e.f. 25th Janvary, 2021 for a period of 5 year. His appointment was
approved by the sharcholders of the Company at the Extra Qrdinary General Meeting held on
38 Iuly, 2021,

o Mr. Venlatesh Ratnasami (DIN: §3433678) has been appointed as nonunee director of
Dunearn Investments (Mauritius) Pte Lid. in place of Mr. Udairam Thali Koattiath on 239
March, 2021 by the Board of Directors. His appointiment was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 31 July, 2021,

e My, Hari Shanker Bharia (DIN; 00010499 who was appointed as an Addifional Independent
Director by the Board w.ef 23" March, 2021, His appointment was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Mesting held on 31% July, 2021.

During the current financial yeayr following changes happened to the Board of Directors:

= Mr. Rajan Bharti Mittal (DIN: 00028016) has been appointed as an Additional Independent
Divector of the Company with effect from 8% July, 2021 for a period of 5 years. His
appomtnent was approved by the shareholders of the Company 2t the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on 28% July, 2021.

s Dr. Ravi Gupta (DIN: 00023487) has been appointed as an Additional Independent Director
of the Company with effect from 8" July, 2021 for a period of 5 years, His appointment was
approved by the shaveholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
28" July, 2021,

¢ Furler, Dr. Natesh Trehan was re-appointed as Chaitman and Managing Director of the
Company with effect from 13 August, 2021 by way of sharcholders' approval accorded vide
their special resolution dated 06" September, 2021. He is also associated with the Company
in his professional capacity as Chairman- Heart Institute and Chief Cardiac Surgeon, the
appointment to which was also approved by the sharcholders of the Company.

iir, Sunil Sachdeva (DIN-D0812115), Director of the Company is liable 1o retive by rotation at
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company and being ¢ligible, has offered himself for
re-appointment and the Board recommends his appointment 48 Director.

¥our Company bas appointed aforesaid Tndependent Directors as per the provisions of Section 149 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and declarations of independence in compliance with Section 149{6) of the
Companies Act, 2013, have been taken on record from all the Independent Directors of the Company,
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions prescribed under the Act
and the Listing Repulations and are independent of the management of the Company.

The policy relating to Rirectors” Appointinent, Remuneration and evaluation ¢te. was approved by the
Board and is available on the Websile of the Company, Further the terms of reference of all the
conunitiees are also available on the website, The Board on a yearly basis evaluates its performance
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and performance of individual directors and cormitiees of the Board, During the year such evaluation
was carried out and found to be satisfactory.

I{ey Manageyial Personnel

During the year there was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. Mr. Ralwl
Ranjan was appointed as Company Secretary of the Compaty with effect from 08" July, 2021, in
place of Mr. Sunil Bansal.

Committees of the Board
The Composition of commitlees of the Board as on date is as follows:

Audit Committee

D, Ravi Gupta Chaisperson
Mr. Neeraj Bharadwaj Member
Ms. Praveen Mahajan Member
Mr. Hari Shanker Bhartia Member

Mr, Venlatesh Ratasami Menmber

MNomination & Remuneration Committes

Mr. Vikarm Singh Mehta Chairperson
Ms. Praveen Mahajan Member
My, Rajan Bharti Mittal Member
Dr. Naresh Tichan Member

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Dy, Naresh Trehan Chairman
Mr. Sunil Sachdeva Member
My, Rajan Bharti Mittal Membey
Mr, Vikram Singh Mehta Member
Stalieholders’ Relationship Commitiee

Dr. Ravi Gupta Chairperson
Mr. Ravi Jaipuria Member
Wr. Rajan Bharli Miital Member
M. Hari Shankar Bhartia Member

Risk Management Commlittee

D, Ravi Gupta Chairperson
Ms. Praveen Mahajan Membey
M. Pankaj Sahni Membey

Annund Retarn

In terms of Scction 92(3) and Section [34(3)a) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12 of the
Conprinics (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annwal Return of the Company s
available on the website of the Company at the link https:/fwww.medanta,org/inverstor-relation .

A Page 5 of 34
- Regd. Office: £-18, Defence Colony, New Delhi 110024, Ph No.011- 44112411
' CIN: UB51100L2004PLC128315
www.medanta.org.




= Menanta ¢

e Global Health Limited

Number of Meetings of the Board

In order to work most effectively and efficiently, 1o discuss on the business perfarmance, policies,
strategies and other gignificance matter, the Board meets on vegular interval. We maintain tentative
scheduled programme of mectings which is generally defermined in the beginning of the year.

During the financial year under the review, the Board of Directors duly met six times in respeet of
which proper notices weve given and the proceedings were properly recorded. The gap between two
Board Meeting was within the preseribed limits,

Dividend

The Board of Directors of the Company has not recommended any dividend on its equity shares for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021,

The dividend has been paid to the CCPS holders as per the terms of issuance.
Transfer of unpaid and unclaimed amount to 1EPF

Purguant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, dividend and refund of
share application money due for refund which remains vnpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven
years from the date of its transfer to unpaid dividend/ unclaimed account is required to be transferred
by the Company to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), established by the Central
Government under the provisions of Seetion 125 of the Companiss Act, 2013.

During the year under the review, no amount was due for tansfer to IEPE,
Pubiic Deposit

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits under section 73 -76 of Companies Act,
2013 1o be read along with The Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, during the year.
Also, there is no amount of principal or interest is outstanding on the date of the Balance Sheet.

Traunsfer to Reserve / Issue of Bonus Shares

During the year under review, Your company has proposed to transfer amounling Rs.5,976.44 Laldhs
Lo the general reserves out of amount available for appropriation.

Share Capital

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorised Share Capital of the Company.
During the curvent financial year following changes happened to the Authorised Share Capital of the
Company:-

a. The Class A Equity Shares of Rs, 10 each of the Company was sub-divided into Class A
Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each. Consequently, against 1 Class A Equity share of the Conpangyt, 5
Class A Equity Share of Rs. 2 each were credited to all shareholders holding Class A Equity
shares, Further the ISIN No of the Company has changed 1o INE474001023.

b, Class B Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each were re-classified as Class A Equity Shares of Rs. 2
each. Consequently 1000 Class B Equity shares of Rs. 10 each in the Authorized Capital were
re-classified inte 5000 Class A Equity shares of Rs. 2 each,

¢, Intire Class A Equity Shates wese renamed as Equily Shares,
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Currently the Authorised Share Ca

4,66,954 Class A Preference Shares of Rs. 696 cach.

pital consist of 50,51,25,000 Equity sharcs of Rs. 2 cach and

Duaring the year under review, the Company has issued 2,40,815 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each to

ESOP holders. Therefore, ag on 3[# Mareh,

2021 the paid-up share capital of the Company is as

under-
Sr.Na. | Clags No. of Shares Face Value Amount (Rs)
I Class A Eouity Shares 4,95.85,818 10 49,58,58,180
2. Clags A Preference Shares | 4,66,954 696 32.49,90.984
Total Paid up Share Capital 82,08,58,164 |

Employce Stock Option Plan (ESOP) 2014 and ESOP Plan 2016 of the Company

As at March 31, 2021, there were two ESOP Schemes in force named GHPL ESOP Plan 2074 and
GHPL ESCP Plan 2016. The details of ESOP(s) available and allocated under both plans are as under:

Paritelars

No. of options under

ESOP Plan 2014

No. of eptions ander

ESGOP Plan 2016

MNumber of total options

3,52,073

10,25,000

Total options granted as on 19 April 2020

8,44,824

9,55,000

Options lapsed, forfeited and added back
to the pool during the year

19,839 (Options lapsed)

55,000 (options lapsed)

{if) Any other employee who receives

Optiens granted during the FY 2020- NA NA
21(mcluding Options lapsed, forfeited and
added back to (e pool during the year)
Total Options in force as on 315 March, 7,89,258 3,09,000
2021
Total options exercised as on 319 March, 6,34,014 4,57,750
2021
Total options vested but not yet exercised 1,55,244 1,72,75¢
as on 31% Maych, 2021
Total option pending for allocation as on 63,715 2,16,000
31.3. 2021
The exercise price for cach option Rs.10 cach Rs.10 each
Money realized by exercise of oplions 63,40,140 45,777,500
Employee-wisc dotails of options granted
to-

() Key managerial personne) NIL 20,000
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a grant of options in any one year
of option amounting to 3% or
more of options granted during NI NIiL
that year,

* (iti) Identified employees who were
granded option, during any one
vear, equal to or exceeding 1% of
the issued capital {excluding
outstanding warrants and NIL NIL
conversions) of the company at
1he time of grant

s Each option has been granted at Rs 10 each convertible into one Equity shate of Rs 10 each at
par.

e The total options granted shall vest every year @ 20% / 25% / 33%, from date of grant over a
period of 5/4/3 years as per terms of respective, Ofter Leter(s).

s The vested options can be exercised within a period of 3 years from the date of vesting,

Allotment of Secured Non-Coenvertible Debentures (NCDs) for Rs100 Crores to Aslan
Development Bank (ATDB)

The Company has exccuted Debenture Subscription Agreement with Asian Development Bank
(ADR) and Debennve Trust Deed with IDBI Trusleeship Services Lamited, Security Trustee on
12 February, 202} for borrowing Rs. 100 Croves (Rupees One Hundred Crore Only) from Asian
Development Bank (ADB) by way of issuance of NCDs.

The Company has allotted 1000 secured, uniisted, redeernable, transferable and fiterest bearing Non-
Convertible Debentares (NCDs) of the face value of Rs.10,00,000/- {Rupees Ten Lakhs Only) each
agpregating to Rs. 1,00,00,00,000/- to ADB on 18th May 2621,

Issuance of 6,52,973 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each to Dr. Naresh Trehan in accordunce with the
provisions of Articles of Association of the Company and subject (o approval of members, the Board
has propesed to issue and allot, 6,52,973 Equity Shares of &g 1§ each to Dr. Naresh Trehan at a
premium of Rs, 565 (Indian Rupees Five Hundred Sixty-Five) per equity share.

Whistie Blower Mechanism (Vigil Mechanism)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under, -
the Company bas adopted a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism
for Directors and employees to report gennine concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected
fraud or vielation of the Company’s code of couduct o policy.

Prevention of Sexual Havassment Policy
A poticy on prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace had been implemented in the

Company and Internal Complaint Comimittee(s) have been constituted {0 handie / investigate the
maters velating to Sexual Harassment at various Jocations. The Company had received 3 (Three)
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complaints under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Ivevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 (POSH} & same had been disposed as per the lerms of (he policy of the
Company. The company has complied with provisions relating to ¢onstitution of Internal Cammitice
under POSH.

Subsidiarics, Associntes and Jeint Veniures

During the year under review, the subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:
» Medanta Holdings Private Limited (MHPL),
+  Global Health Patliputra Private Limited” (GHPPL) and
« Medanta Duke Researvel Institute Private Limited (MDRI),

The Reports on the performance and financial position of MHPL, GHPPL and MDRI as per the
Companies Aet, 2013 are given below and also provided to the consolidated financial statement of the
Company,

1. MHPL
MHPL is 2 100% subsidiary of the Company.

During the Year the Company was issued 63,29,113 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each on conversion of
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares {CCPS) on 27th August 2020. Further 24,78,929 CCPS
of Rs.10 cach at 2 premium of Rs 90.85/- was allotted ta the Company amounting to tatal investment
of Rs. 24,99,99,989.70 during the financial year 2020-21. The Company holds 7,17,36,341 Equity
shaves and 24,78,929 CCT'S of Rs 104 cach as on 3 Isf March, 2027,

Medanta Lucknow commenced its operations on 05th November 2019 and is now offering state-of-
the-art Patient Care Services in Cardiclogy and Cardiac-surgery, Neurosciences, Nephrology.
Urology, Orthopedics & Joint Replacement, Digestive and Hepatobiliary Sciences, Internal Medicine,
Puimenary Medicine, Critical Care, Anesthesiology, Transfusion Medicine and Biood Bank,
Radiology and Nuclear Medicine, Pathology and Laboratory Medicine and 24X7 Emergency
Medicine and Trawmma Cave.

Spread over 12.58 acres , MEDANTA LUCKNOW - a 1000 bedded haspital — is an excellent
combination of future generation healthcare services comprising of 350 critical eare beds (CUs),
more than 30 super-specialties, 37 ultra-clcan operation theaters, state of the art high-end Laboratary
Services, 24X7 Blood Bank, Bone Densitometry, Mammography, Ultvasound, high-end MRI, €T,
PET Scan, Gamma Camera, cie,

Jiz financial performance for the year ended Masch 31, 202) is as under:

{Rupees in Lakhs)

020
Income fiom operations 21,963.17 ' 2,84908
Other Income 23992 111,70
Total Revenue 22,203.0% 2,960.78
Total Expenditure 25,763.81 841330 |
Profit(Loss) bafore Taxabion (3,560.72) (545252
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2. GHPPL
GHPPL is a 100% subsidiary of the Company,

Globat Health Patliputra Private Limited (GHPPL) has been in process of development of 500 beds
Super Specialty Hospital { in 4 Phases) in Pawna (Kankarbagh) over an area of 7 acres approx through
PPP mode on a design, build, finance, operate and transfer basis.

GHPPL has already commenced its OPD operations with effect from 18" September, 2020

i order 10 provide necessary medical support to public during COVID pandemic, the Company has
started COVID ward of approx. 40 beds in emergency and heart command prea as per request of
Government of Bihar during April 2021, Operations are gearing up for starting 330 1PD beds by 3rd
guarter of current financial year, Core operation team is on board. As of now OPD and COVID
isolation facilities are operational. The Company had subscribed an additional 10,00,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs, 100 Crores during FY-2020-21 and subsequently 6,00,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs.10 each amounting to Rs. 60,00,00,000.The total amount invested by the
Company in GHPPL iill date is Rs. 255 Crores.

GHPPL’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as under

T
Revenmue from :(‘.-p.cré.l.i.ion 22,65
Other Income 66.75 2.48
Tolat Revenie 59.40 248
Total Expenditure 172435 1,256.34
Loss before Tax 1 (1634.95) (1,253.87)
3. MDRE

MDRI, & subsidiary of Global Health Private Ltd. (GHPL / Company) wherein GHPL was holing
10,001 {50.01%} equity shares and Duke Medicine Asiz Pie. Lid. (“Duke™ is holding 10,000
{49.99%) equity shares.

MDRI is in the process of voluntary liquidation under Section 59 of the Insolvency and Bankruptey
Code, 2016 (IBC Code 2016). The share capital has been returned to shareholders by Insolvency
Professional/ Liguidator and the matter is pending with NCLT for winding up orders.

The Company does not have any Associates Company and Joint Venture.
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Coansolidated Financial Statement

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Accounting Standard (AS) - 21,
the andited consolidated financial statement form part of the Annual Repori. Further the salient
features of financials of the subsidiaries for the financial year 3020-21 is provided in the prescribed
formt AOC-1 a3 Annexure-II which forms a part of the Annual Report.

Directors® Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirement of the Companics Act, 2013, the Board of Directors confivms that:

(a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31% March, 2021, the applicable
acconnting standards had been followed aleng with proper explanation relating {0 mateyial
departures,

(b) the directors had sclected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
jadgments and estimales that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 2021 and of the profit of the
company for that period.

{c} the directors had taken proper and sufficient eare for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other imregularities.

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

() the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively, :

(f) the directors bhad devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provision of all
applicable laws and that such systers were adequate and operating effectively,

Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls for preparation of financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operation wag observed.

Report on the Tnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Subn~section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 formed part of Audit Report. In addition, the Company
has adequate Risk Management Controls in place considering the nature and size of operation. The
Risks atteibutable to the business are evaluated regularly and remedial measures are ensuled.

Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or Courts

There are no significant mateial orders passed by the Regulators / Courts except the matter pending
before the National Green Tribunal (“NGT™) regarding ‘Jharsa bundh’ land.

Sarv Jan Kalyan Samiti filed a case before Hon*ble National Graen Tribunal (NGT) seeking direction
for removal of concrete wall constructed by the Company in Gurgaon an bundh area (Protceted
Forest) and restoration of encroached bundl/forest land.
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GHL has submitted before the Hon*ble NGT that it is a bona fide allottee and were allotted the said
tand on an “as is" basis by Haryana Urban Development Authority. As supgested by the Mon'ble
NOT, the State authorities discussed the maiter and offered that the Company may apply for
conversion of the land. GHL has initiated the process of conversion and has made the payment of
requisite fee. GHL has alse got Stage - 1 approval and fina! approval is awaited.

Particulars of loans given, Investinent made, Guarantees given, and Securities provided

Your Company has made an investment for an amount aggregating to Rs. 100.00 Crores in the shares
of GHPPL and Rs.25.00 Crores in the shares of MHPL duting the financial year 2020.21.

Details of Loans, Advances, Investments, goarantecs given and outstanding during the FY 2020-21
Torms part of the Notes to the Financial Statements,

Particulary of contracts ar srrangements with related parties

All the Contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with
related parties wete in the ordinaty course of business and on an arm’s Jength basis, The Company has
obrained all necessary approvals as and when required and applicable under the provision of law,
while entering into contracts or alrangements with related partiss.

Pavtjculars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188 {1} of the
Companies Act, 2013, in prescribed form AOC-2 is appended as Annexvre-11 1o the Board's report.

Your Directors draw your attention to Note No(s) 38 to the standalone financial statement which sets
aut related party Disclosures.

Conservation of Energy, Techuology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings aud Outga

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange carnings and
outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Agt, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is detailed in Annexure-1V.

Auditors and Auditors’ Report
A, Statutory Auditors

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Charfered Accounntants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the

Company for a period of 5 consecutive years at the Annual General Meeting held on 15% September,
2017

Mfs Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Statutory Auditors of the Cotnpany have submitted their report for
the financial year 2020-21. The Notes on financial statement referred (o in the Auditors’ Report are
sclf- explanatory and do not call for any further comnments. The Auditors” Report does not contain any
qualification, reservation ov adverse remark.

B. Cost Auditors

Mfs. Ramanath lyer & Co., vetiving Cost Auditors were eligible for re-appointment. They had
confirmed their eligibility to the effect that their re-appoiniment, if made, for (he financial year 2021-
22 would be within the prescribed limits under the Act and that they wers not disqualified for re-
appointient,
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The Cost Auditors have submitted their Report and it does not contain any qualification, reservation

or adverse remark,

C. Internal Auditors

M/s Pricewaterhousecoopers, Services LLP, Chartered Accountants, (PwC) has been appointed as

Intermal Auditors of the Company.

M/s Pricewaterhousecoopers, Services LLP, Chartered Accountants, (PwC) have submitted their
Report and it does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. No Fraud was

reported during the Financial Year under review.

D. _Sccretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuaneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, with the consent of the Board
in their meeting held on 23 March, 2021, the Company has appointed Mfs VAPN & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-

21,

The Secretarial Audit Report submitted by M/s VAPN & Associates for the Financial Year 2020-21 is
anpexed as Annexure — V and forms part of this report. Fusther, there has been no qualification,
reservation, adverse remarks or disclaimer made by the Secretarial Auditors in their report for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2021,

 Seoretarial Standards

Ducing the financial year under review, your Company has complied with applicable Scoretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretarics of India.

Acknewledgements:

Your Ditectors place on record their sincere appreciation for significant contribution made by your
Company’s employees at all levels and ook forward to their continued support.

Your directors also take this opportunity to express sincere thanks to the medical professionals /
fraternity and patiems for (heir continued co-operation,

and its services,

Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation and acknowledge with gratitude the

patronage and frust reposed in the Company

support and co-operation extendéd by State Governments, our bankers, consultants, cusiomers,
vendors, affiliated hospitals, shareholders and other business associates for their confidence reposed

in the Company and its management.

Place: Gurngram
Date: 17" September, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board
Giobal Health Limited

)
Dr. o /
Chairman and Managifg Director

{DIN No.: 00012148)
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ANNEXURE-] TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR™) ACTIVITIES
[Pursuaat to the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014)

1. Brief outline of the Company's CSR policy:

The Company (Glokal Health Limited / Medanta) is committed to incorporating policies, systems and
approaches to achieve its positive imipact growth objectives. Deeply inherent in our vision statement
are the principles of sustainability. The CSR approach stems from our vision statement focusing on
“eontinucusly enhancing stakeholder value”, which includes the larger society and environment in
which the Company operates.

Medanta aims to be commitied to social causes and relevance for its inclusive growth and to
contribute to society by supporting causes on the health and other well-being platform. Through CSR,
the Medanta intends to proactively engage with the society by working with communities to inmprove
their well being in an empathetic manner, The core areas for Medanta CSR programs are Healtheare,
Education, Sustainable Livelihood, Infrastructure Development and Social Change as all of these
areas”are vital preconditions for promoting secial good. Concern for the environment is in line with
our belief that thiy

global cause demands ouy attention o ensure a sustainable and productive planet. Thege themes are
established centrally for adoption or adaptation across all geopraphies. Cur Corporate Social
Responsibility policy conforms to the Corporate Social Responsibility as stiputated in Section 135 of
the Act and the CSR Rules

2. Composition of C8R Commnittee as on 31 Maxch 2621;

8. | Name of Divector Designation / Nature of No, of meetings of CSR
MNa. Directorship Canusiiftee
“held during | attended during
the the year
yeay
l. . Maresh Trehan Chairman of  Comunittee, | 2 2
Chatrman &  Managing
Director
2. Mr. Sunil Sachdeva | Member of Committee, Non- | 2 : 2
Executive Director
3 | Ms, Praveen | Member of  Commitiee, | 2 2
MMahajan Independent Director
4 Mr. Vikram Singh | Member  of  Commitiee, | 1 |
Iiehta Independent Director

3. | Webulink  where  Composition of CSR | hitps//www.medanta.org/inverstor-
committee, CER Policy and TSR projests | relation
approved by ihe board are diselosed.

4, Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects | Not Applicable
carried out i pursuance of sub-ruie (3) of
Ruie & of Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy Policy) Rules, 2014
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Derails of the amount available for set off in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rale 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Ruoles, 2014 and amount reguired for
set off for the financial year.

Naot Appifcable

Average net profit of the Company as per
section 135(5)

Rs. 9,727.00 Lakhs

(a) Two percent of Average net profit of the
Company as per section 135(5)

{b) Swplus arising out ot the CSR projects/
programmes or activities of the previous
financial year

(¢} Amount required to be set off for the
financial year, if any

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial
year {7a+Th -7¢)

Rs, 194,54 Lakhs

i

Nil

Rs, 194,54 Lakhs

8 (a} CSR amount spent / unspent for the fimancial year: As under: -

Total Amount Unspent (in %) ‘
Amount Total Amount transferred to | Amount transfetred to any Tund specificd under
Spent  for | Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
the section §35(6) 135(5}
Financial Amount Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of
Y oar transfer Fund transfer
nd by |
Rs. 42,72 | Rs, 151.42 | 28" Aprif, | Not Not Not
Laldhs Lalhs 2021 applicable applicable applicable
i
{b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financia! year:
5. | Nam | ltem Loca | Locatio | Proje { Amou | Amou | Amount | Mod | Mode of
No. {e fromm H n ot nt nt transferr | cof | Tapiemen
of the arca | of the Dura | allocat | spent | ed to Tmpl | tation -
the listof [ ({Yes : project | tion |ed in Unspent | emen | Through
Proje | activiti | /No} | (State & for the | the CSR tatio | Tmplemen
ct cs Districts project | current | Account | n- fing
in ) (in%) | financi { for Direc | Agency
Sched al the t Ns | CS
ule Year project | (Yes/ {me [ R
Wil (mn as No) Re
o the ) per gist
Act Section

Page 15 of 34

CIN: U8511GDL2004PLC128319
www. medanta,org:

Regd. Office; E-18, Defence Colony, New Delhi 110024, Ph No.011- 44114411




mebanTta

el
ar

VO BRI sae @ . !
_...Global Health Limited -
135(6) oh
{(in%) ™
mil
er
L Prev | Preve | Yes | Haryana | 5 Rs. 10} Rs. Rs. Yes{ | NA | NA
entiv | utive . Delhi, | vears { Crores | 12.63 151.82 Diree
¢ Healt Uttar with Lakhs | Lakhs i
Real | heare Pradesh, | effec
th (Item Rajastha | {
Care | 1) n from
Prog {(Mathar | 13"
. ram i, Tuly,
Goralchp | 2018
ur,
Sonipat,
Siesa,
Jhajjar,
Karnsl
and
Panipat)
{c) Details of CSR aniouni spent against other than ongolug projects for the financial year :

S. [‘Name of | Ttem from | Local | Location  of | Amount | Mode of | Mode of
No. | the the Area | the Spent Implemen | Tmplementation
Project Hst of | (Yes/ | Project forthe | 1ation Through

activities No) . moject | Direct Implementing
in schedule (Yes/No) | Agency
VII State | District Mame | CSR
to the Act repistrat
ion
number
I. | Mission | Preventive | Yes | Bhiwani Rs. Yes NA NA
TB-Free | Healtheare Patehabad & | 28.03 {Divect)
!—Iaryann Hissar districts Lakhs
of Haryaia

(dy Amount spent in Admpistrative Overheads ; Rs, 2.03

{(¢) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nol Applicable

(1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (80+8c1-8d+8e); ¥ 42,72 Lakls

(g} Bacess amount for set off, if any: Nil

8. No,

Particular

Amount {in T}

1

Two percent of average net profit of the Company as
per section [35(5)

Rs, 194,54 Lakhs

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Rs. 42,72 Lakhs

pii.

Excess amount spent for the financial year [ (5)-(1)]

NA

Regd. Office: E-18, Defence Colony, Mew Delhi 110024, Ph No.O11- 44314411
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v, Amount available for set off in succeeding financial
years [(iii}-(iv)]

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes
or activities of the previous financial years, ifany

NA

NA

9 (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Preceding Amount Amaunt Amount transferred to any | Amount
Financial transferved Spent in the | CSR Fund as per second remaining
Year to  Unspent | Current proviso to Section 135(8), if | to be spent in
CSR Account | Financial 2Ny succeeding
under section | Year (in ) Anoant  {in | Date of | financiat
135 (6) T) Transfor years
2017-18 NI NTL NIL NA NIL
2018-19 NIL NIL NIL NA NIL
202021 Rs. [51.82 | Rs, 4272 | NIL NA NIL
Lalkhs Lakhs

() Betails of CSR amount spent in the financial vear

for ongoing projects of Lhe preceding financial

year(s):
S. | Project | Nameof | Finanecisl Project Tota} Amount | Cumulati | Status of
No { ID the Year in Duration | amount | spent ve the
Froject which the aliocate | onthe | Amount project -
project d for project | spent Completed
was the inthe lat  the | /Onpoing
conmHNenge project | reporti | end of
d (in &) ng reporting
Finanei | Financial
al Year
Year (in ¥)
(in 3
1 | Preventi | Preventiv | 2018 5 years Rs. 10| Rs, Rs. Ongoing
ve e Health Crores | 12.65 10£.79
Henlthe | Care Lakhs
are Program

10 In cose of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so craated
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Nij
{assel-wise details).

{a) Date of ¢reation ov acquisition of the capital assei(s).: Not Applicable

{b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.: Not Applicable

{c) Details of the enfity ov public authority

registered, their address etc.: Not Applicable

{d) Provide details of the capital asset
of the capital assct).: Not Applicable

Regd. Office: E-18, Defence Colony, New Delhi 110024, Ph No.Q11- 44114411
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{1 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed 10 spend two per sent of the average net profit ag
per section 135(5).

The CSIt acrivities were affected due 1o COVID Pandemic, travel restrictions and lock down impoesed
by Centre / State Governments and Company could not organise camps for CSR activities. The
activities were resumed from month of October 2020 however the beneficiaries have shows less
mterest i participating in czmps due to COVID issues.

On Behalf of the Board of Directors On behalf of the Board of Directors

My, Pankaj Kwmar Sahni . esh Kumar Trehan
Clijef Executive Officer Chairman CSR Committee
(DEN No.: 00012148)
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Annexure-If to Directors® Report

Form AQC-1
(Pursnant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of sabsidiaries/associate
companics/joint ventures

Part “A"; Substdiaries

{Information in respect of cach subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

1. Name of the subsidiary Medanta m:"'“iéé Glgbé[" H.calth T Medlazlié
Research Institute | Patliputra Private  Holdings Pvt.
Private Limited Limited Lad{ MHPL)

( MDRD* ( GHPPL)

Reporting period for the 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2021 31 March, 2021
subsidiary concerned, if ~

different from the holding
company’s reporting period:

Reporting currency and INR(Rs} in Lakh | INR(Rs) in Lakhl INR(Rs) in Lakh
Exchange rate as on the last “ :

date of the relevant Financial
year iv the case of foreign
subsidiarics

Share capital - 19,500.00 7,173.63
Resewes & Surp]us ' (4588.92) 21,155.97
.-Tota ésﬁ‘eis ' : 41,524,5] 81,985.94
TQtal Lla’[}ﬂitlcs : 26,413.43 53,208 46
1Invcst;ncnts ' 00.00 00.00
Tumover : . 22,65 21.963.i7
Profit (Loss) before taxation (1634.95) (3560.74)

Provision for taxation - _
Deforred Tax (credit)

expenses \2 33!% (.44 (2348 .40y

Ncw Dt?,'lhl.
Pag 9.0f 34
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Profit (Loss) after taxation (163539  (1212.34)
Proposed Dividend T NIL] NIL;
% of sharcholding - - | 1001 100

. \A,.—a
*MIDRI is under liquidation

¢ Notes: The following information shail be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence opcrauons GHPPL has cammenced its OFD
_ operations from 18" September, 2020,

- 2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liguidated or sold during the year- MDRI is in process of
tiguidation.

Part “B3*: Associates and Joint Ventures

- Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures:

Not Applicable

E

SN Yo

Group CFO  Company Sceretary

s ] Z\...-E"' /
Chairiman aud Wg
Director

g

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified,
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Annexure-11 fo Directors” Reporl
FORM NO, ADC -2

{Pwrsuami to clanse (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the.
Companies (Aeconnds) Risdes, 2014,

Form for Discleosure of particutars of contracts/mrangernents endered indo by the company with related
parties referred fo in sub scetion (1) of scetion 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain
arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

t. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions sot at Arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or anangements, or transactions entered into during the year ended Mareh 31,
2021, wihich are not on arm’s fength basis,

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or iransactions at Arm’s length basis:

Tof | Ameunt
¥ | paid as
advance

IFAN  Giobal | Agreement  for | Three The Company has availed | 22.12.2617 Nt
India  Private | Human years Recruitment services from
Limited Resource IFAN and paid a fee of
Setvices Rs.95.85 Lakhs during the
(Nursing) year.
Mr. Naveen |
Trchan, CBO of :
TFAN iz the
brother of Dr. :
Naresh Trehan,
CMD  of the
Company.
Law  Chamber | Retainership One year | Retainership and NI
of Kapur and | Agreement Appearance  fees  before 28.09.2020
Trehan Courts/ competent forum in
India on Dbehalf of ihe
Company in relation to
Ms. Shyel legal cases and any other
Trehan, Parimer cases as the case may be,
of the firmi, is (Transaction dwring  the
the daughter of year was Rs 26,46 Lalkhs)
Dy, Naresh
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Trehan, CMD
of the-Company

Vidyanta  Slilt | Service Thres VSIPL ldentifies training : 05.11.2018 Nii
Institute Private | Agreement years requirements/  needs  of
Limited Mursinp Personnel of the
(VSIPL) Company.
(Transaction ducing  the Nit
year was Rs. 14,84 Lakhs)
Mr, Naveen
Trehan, director
and 1member of
VEIPL.. is the
brather of D,
Naresh Trehan,
CMD  of the
Company,
Raksha  TPA | TPA Agreement | Open- Raksha avails the medical { 01092010 | Nil
Private Limited ended services for Raksha TPA
Members  at Medanta
Hospital (GHPL) for 1PD
Dh. 7 Maresh services.
Trehay, CMD
of the Company
is director in (Tvansaction  during  the
Raksha  TPA vear  was  Rs.2065.18
Private Lamited Lakhs)
M, Panla) | Employment Qpen Total amount paid o Mr, | 28.09.2020 Nii
Sahni ended Pankaj Salhni, Chief

Executive Officer {CEQ) of
the Company during (he
M. Panksj year was as under;

Satmi, CEOQ, is

: Parficulars | Amount fin
the son in law Lakhs
of Dr. Waresh
Trehan, CMD
of the
Company, Remuneration | Rs 213.63
Page 22 of 34

Regd. Office: E-18, Defence Colony, New Delhi 110024, Ph No.0211- 44114411
CIN: UB5110D1.2004P1.C128319
www,medanta, orge




3 :ﬁ m e D a nTa ;:.:Hmlnl [P e

7" __Global Health Limited

ESGP Rs 25.05
Perquisites

Total Rs.238.6%

22.07.20]19
Futther, 4,000 equity shares 25.01.202)
of Rs.l0/- each were
allotted to Mr. Pankaj Sahni
during the year

Medania Contract for | Open The Company has given a { 21.12.20)2 Nil
Institute of | providing ended space of 250 sq. feel to

Education & { services MIER and provides Clinical

Research services to MIER,

{(MIER)

(Transaction  during the
year was [0.17 Lakhs}

Dr, Naresh
Trehan, CMD
of the Company
is  trustee  of

MIER.
Global  Health | Board Open Tnvestment  in GHPPL | 10.07.2020 | NijI
Patliputra Resolution  for | ended during  the yewr was
Private Limited | investment  in Rs.10,009 Lakhs 25.01.2021
{GHPPL) shares of
GHPPL
Bank guarantec
100% ’ Two years
Subsidiary date(ﬁ‘:""fol; ; w.ef 15" | Re-imbursement of | 28:09.2020
providmg - banic Sep, 2020 1 Performance Guarantee
Company guarantee as provided by the Company

Performance
Guarantee (o the
Health
Department,
Government  of
Bihar,
investment  on
behalf aof
GHPPL

Board
Resolution for
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sale of Sale of equipment/assets | 27.08.2020
equipment/agset and providing Lab Services
s and providing to GHPPL
Lab Services to L
GHPPL The Company has received
Rs.78.52 Lakhs on account
of sale of
assets/equipments,
The Company has paid the
expenses of Rs.8.86 Lakhs
and Tax amount of Rs.2,33
Lalds on behalf of GHFTL
during the year
Devyani Agreement  for [ 15 years, | The Company has provided | 06.01.2016 Wit
International serving food and | effective | space to DIL for serving
Lud (DILY beversges at ! from Feb | food and beverages at Food
Food Cowmt of | 92013 Court of Medanta,
Medanta (Transaction during  the
My, Ravi Kant year was Rs, 112,46 Lakhs)
Jaipuria,
Director of the
Company is
Dirgetor of DAL,
Diagno  Labs | Agreement  for | 279 Dec., | The Company has provided | 13,05.2017
Private Limited | providing  tests | 2019 to | space to DPL for providing
(DPL) for | to patienls 318 July, | clinical disgnostic services 01.03.2019
Ind,orf: ‘ 2021 o th(la Patients visiting the 05.06.2020
Hospital* Hospital  or  Referred
Patients at Medanta, Tndore.
‘ The Agrecment has been | 23.03.2021
Mr. Ravi Kant terminated with effect from
Jaipuria, March 31,202}
Director of the
Company is {Transaction during the year
Director of DPL was Rs. 286.06 Lakhs)
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Medanta Board Open The Company has made
Holdings Resolation  {s) | ended investment in MHPL during 10.07.2020
Private Limited | for making the year was Rs, 2,500
investment  in Lalchs.
share capital of i 19122019
MHPL, The Company has given
providing guarantee on  behalf of
guarantee to MH.PL for Rs.15.68 Lakis
Custons during the year.,
Authority on The Company has sold | 27.08.2020
behalf of MHPL assels/ equipments for Rs
and  sale  of 3372 Lakbhs duoring the
equipments & year.
providing  Lab
Services to The Company has paid
MHPFL expenses  of  Rs.108.59
Laklis on behalf of MHPL
S.AS. Infotech | Re-imbursement | Open Company has  supplied | 29.03,2019
Private Limited | of  electricity | ended ciectricity  during  the

("SAS8™

My, Sunil
Sachdeva,

Director of the
Company is
divector of SAS

charges

financial year 20120-21 1o
SAS for consumption of
electricity in SAS Tower.

{Transaction during the
year was Rs. 265.2% Lakhs)

Note: In addition to above, some relatives of directors/femployees have availed medica)
hospital of the Company which are in ordinary course of business as mentioned

standalone financial statement.

*These contracts were entered when these were not related party transactions,

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman &Managing Director
(DIN No.: 00012148)
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Annexure-1V- to Directors’ Report

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134(3)(M) READ WITH RULE 8 (3) OF THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS®
REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2021

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy

The eperations of the Company are not energy intensive. Howewver, significant measures are being
taken to reduce the energy consursption by using eovergy-efficient equipments. The Company has
ptanned for the following additional Bnergy Conservation Measures during the Financial Year 2020~
21,

DG Set fuel conversation kit installation for H8D and FNG both in 30:70 ratio. The plan to convert
the DG sets with duel fuel kit which was likely to save RS 52 Laes per year depending on load (65 %
to 80%) and fuel sharing (50% to 70%) during the Financial Year 2020-2}. Project cost was
Rs.25.28 Lacs for DG Sea1.

However, due to Covid Pandemic, the Company will implement the above in due course of time.
TECHNOLOGY ABSCORPTION

In s continuous endeavour 1o serve the patients better and to bring healtheare of international
standards within the reach of every individual, your company has introduced the latest technologies in
its hospitals as undes:

Upgrade of Cath Labs for fuvasive Cardiology and Neurology
Artis zee Cath labs — Upgraded to the level of Avtis zee pure

We have upgraded five cath labs from Artis zee fo Artis zec pure level, now ihese cath labs ave
equipped with industry-leading imaging technology, unique dose management tools, and the latest
clinicai applications based on the innovative PURE® platform. With addition of new software and
hardware equipment life got enhanced till 2027,

Cost invelved for Cath Lab upgradation was approx. Rs 4.25 Crore,

Upgrade of Syngo via & syngo dynamics

PACS software version was upgraded from VB0 (o VB40 which is even more intuitive & helps
clinicians 1o read snd complete reports more easily and quickly with greater accuracy. It enables fast,
secure, and consistent access to critical information and images, necessary to improve outcomes.
Added new software for Cinemat VRRT, Breast Cave package, ALPHA technologics as per need of
radiologist, - Up gradation of system will enhance the Life of equipment til] 2027, niegration of
Radiotogy PACS with Lucknow HIS SHAL ielp radiologist of Medants Gurgaon io report Medania
Lucknow scans, '

Also, we have added ordering message integration from modality to HIS to prevent revenuc leakage.
Cost irvolved for upgrading Syngo via & syngo dynamics was approx. Rs 2,76 Crove.
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Upgrade of Elckta Hinear acceloratoy platform

Elckta Linear accelerators platform Synergy S upgraded fiom Beam Modulator to Agility and Linear
accelerators Infinity from MLC to Apility

Agility is the next generation, high resolution beam shaping solution from Elekta. Built on a strong
understanding of the factors that are critical to patient plan optimization and treatiment delivery,
Agifity is designed to meet the needs of modern radiotherapy facilities. Agility offers excellent
clinical flexibility and efficiency, while ensuring that patient safety and comfort remain a priority.
Agility reduce unwanted dose to healthy tissue or organs-at-risk is critical, the Agility feaf bank
pravides extremely low transmission (< 0.5%).

Upgradation of system will enhance the Life of equipment ill 2027,

Cost involved there in for Elcitta linear accelerator platform up gradation is approx, ®s 10 Crove,

Samsung DR system for Radiology

Premium mebile digital radiography system AccE GM8S5 provides advanced driving expericnce and
advanced applications to support enhanced usability and high image quality, AccE Detector is a new
intreduction to the Samsung DR prestige fine-up te acceleratc connection and promote synergy
between the systems. Its user-centric design of the deteclor support patient positioning and alleviate
daily burdens,

Software SimGrid™ streamlines the warkflow by guarantee in image quality without the use of a
conventional grid. This allows the omission of grid installation and removal step filom
the conventional workflow leading to 28% reduction in toral exam time,

Cost involved there in for EECP Therapy SR System is approx. Rs 55 lacs,

Thopaz+ Digital Chest Drainage system for Thoracic Surgery

Medcla's Thopaz+ takes chest drainage therapy to a new level of care. Thopaz+ allows the optimal
pressure te be applied for post-operative chest drainage management, And as a result, patient’s length
of huspital stay can'be shortened and can help reduction in cost of hospital. Cost involved there in for
Medela's Thopaz+ takes chest drainage is approx. Rs 69 lacs.

FT10 Encrgy plateform for Thoracic Surgery

The Valleylab FT10 energy devices helps in fast sealing & culting and can reduce upto 50% time of
procedure. Valleylab FT10 encrgy platform delivers precise amount of energy where and when it is
needed most,

FT10 energy devices is best in ¢lass advanced energy and clectrosurgery devices and are powered by
smart generators that manage cnergy delivery with precision enabling algorithms,

Page 27 of 34
Regd. Office: £-18, Defence Colony, New Delhi 110024, Ph No.011- 44114411
CIN: UB511001.2004P1LC128319
wWww.madanta. orge




mebDa m‘a Ml

T Global Health Limited

Cast mvolved there in for FT10 encrgy platform is approx. Rs 27 lacs.

ERBE APC 2 for Theractc Surgery

APC is an electrosurgical technique for the management of bleeding and the devitalization of tissue
abnormalities, During the procedure, the electrosurgical current is transferred to the tissue via ionized
argon gas. Creating cffective hemostasis and homogenous surface coagulation with limited
penctration depth. Since transmission of the electrosurgical current is by a non-contact technique, (the
instruments do not come into direct contact with tissue), and the instruments never stick 1o the tssue.
Simplified Control — Reduces the nccd for constant foo! pedal interaction, allowing you to focus
more on iarget tissuc areas.

Cost invelved there in for ERBE APC 2 energy platform is approx. Rs 16 lacs.

1688 Advanced Imaging Modalities (A1M) 4K Platform for Thoracic Surgery

Styker’s 1688 AIM 4K Platform is the first system to 4K fluorescence, This system gives clinictans
seamless commeetivity to images and surgical teams can see in greater defail than ever with superior
mage clarity, more accurate color reproduction, and enhanced light quality, With the added benefit of
4K fluorescence, this system has tuly taken visnalization beyond the limits of any previous
technology.

The system bas SPY Portabie Handheid Tmager (SPY-PHI) and utilizes SPY Fluorescence Imaging
Technology and allows surgeons to visualize blood flow in vessels and related tissue perfusion during
plastic, micresurgical, reconstructive and gastrointestinal procedures,

Cost involved there in for 1688 AIM 4K Platform is approx. Rs 50 lacs,

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Payticulars
Foreign Exchange Eamings Ty ey 4 118.49
Foreign Exchange outge { vemittance) (;,) 2 (57 .03

. L]

For and on behalf of the Board

. /
L
Place: Gurgaon / ’ﬁ\‘

Date: 17" September, 2021 Dr. Naresh Kumar TI elian
Chairman & Managing Direcior
(DN No.: 00012148)
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CQMPANY SECRETATIES

FORM NO. MR - 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE RINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH, 2021

[Prrsnant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 md Rule No. 9 of the Compaiies
{Appointuent and Re mittieration of Munageriol Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Global Health Limited .-

(Formerly known as: Global Health Private Limited)
CIN: US5110D1,2004PLC128319

Registered Office: Medanta-Mediclinic E-18,

Defence Colony New Deihi 110024

Corporate Office; “Medanta The Medicity”,
Bector 38, Gurgaen 122001 Haryana

We have conduciked Secretarial Audit of compliance with the applicable statugory

provisions and adherence to good corporate practices by Global Health Limited

(hereinafter calied ‘the Company’) for the Financial Year ended on 31% March, 2021,

Secretarial Andit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our .
opinion thereon.

Based on ouy verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
retumns filed and other yecords maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during,
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in ocur opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 315 March, 2021
{'Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed herennder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manper and subject Lo the reporting made hereinafter:

We report that, we have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on
318 March, 2021 according to the provisions of (as amended):

Office - E18, Ground Floor, Gury NE@P@;
g
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The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’) and the Rules made there under read with
notifications, exemptions and clarifications thereto;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA’) and the rules made
there undey;

The Depositories Acl, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed there
under;

Foreign Exchange Management Acl, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
there under to the exient of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Divect
Investment, Bxternal Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securitios and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Acl): -

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011~ (Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period under review];

() The Securities and BExchange Board of India {(Prohibitions of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015~ [Not Applicable to the Company during the
Andit Period under review};

{c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018- [Nu¥ Applicable to the Company d, uring
the Audit Period wnder veview]:

{f) The Securities and Excimnge Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014~ [Not Applicable to tie Company during the
Audit Period under veview]:

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008~ [Not Applicable to the Company during the
Andit Perivid wunder review];

(/7 The Secarities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Shave Transfer Agents} Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and




CONIBANY SECRETARIFY

dealing with clienl- [Not Applicalile to the Company during the Audit
Period under review};

(g) The Securities and IExchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2000 [Net Applicalle to the Company during the Audil
Period nnder review}:

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018~ [Not Applicable o the Company during the Andit
Period tnder veview]:

(i} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligalions and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015- (Not Applicable to the
Compamy dyring the Andit Period inder review];

We further report that, we have also examined, on test-check basis, the relevant
documents and yecords maintained by the Company according to the foliowmg jaws
applicable specifically to the Company:

(i) The Sexual Harassment of Women ai Workplace (Prevention, Prolubxtmn and
Redressal) Act, 2013;

() The Bmployer’s Provident fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
(iif) The Employee’s State Ingurance Act, 1948

{iv) The Matemit}f Benelit Act, 1961;

{v} The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

(vi) The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Aet, 1970

(vif) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

{viil) The Minimum Wages, Act 1948;

A
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Based on such examination and having regard 1o the compliance system prevailing in
the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of the above laws
during the audit period.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

I, Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India-
Complied witl.

2. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Discloswre
Requirements) Regulations, 2015~ [Nof AppHeable to the Company durbig ihe
Audit Period wisder revieiw],

.Dutfing the Financial Year under report, the Company has generally complied with
the provisions of the applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Secretarial
Standards elc. as mentioned above,

We further report that during the audit period under review:

1. TheBoard of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of executive directors and non-executive directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review ware carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

ot

Except in case of meetings convened al a shorter notice, adequate Notice was
given to all Directors to schedule the Board meetings and the agenda and
detailed riotes on agenda was sent at least seven days in advance. However, a
system exists for seeking and oblaining further informalion and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

3. All the decisions made In the Board/Commitles meeting(s) were carvied out
with pnanimous consent of all the Divectors/Members present during the
meeting and dissent, if any, have been duly incorporated in thie Minutes.
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4. There seems to be adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to.menitor and
ensure compliances with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

5, No specific events / actions having 4 major bearing on the company’s affaiys in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards,
ete. referred to above has occurred in the Company other than mentioned

ahove.
For VAPN & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries
Firm Registration No.: P2015DEG45500
Peer Review Certificate No. 975/2020
‘t\’.'ﬁ% 03 Mw
j 3 EE?N Prabhakar Kumar
Y f&%ﬁﬁf%w Partner
— Membership No.: F5781
ok CP. No.: 10630
UDIN; FO05781C000959041
Place: New Delhi

Date: 17/09/2021

Note: This report is to be read with letter of even date by the secretarial auditor, whicl
is annexed as ‘Ammexure A’ and forms an integral part of this report.

COMPANY SECRETARIES
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To,
The Members

CONPANY SECRETARIES

‘Annegxure A’

Global Health Limited

{(Pormerly known as: Global Health Private Limited)
CIN: UB5110DL2004PLCI28319

Registared Office; Medanta-Mediclinic E-18,

Defence Colony New Delhi 110024

Corporate Office: “Medanta The Medicity®,
Sector 38, Gurgaon 122001 Maryana

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter,

Munagement’s Responsibility:

1.

It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain the
secretarial records, and to devise proper systems, to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and {6 ensure that the

systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility:

2,

fad

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records,
standards and procedures followed by the Company with respects to
Secretarial Compliances. '

We have followed the audit praciices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of fhe
Secretarial records. Verification was done on lest basis to ensure thak correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.
LY
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5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representations about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations & happening of events etc.

6. Cur examination was limited to the verification of procedures on kest basis.

Disclainer

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company.

For VAPN & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries

Firm Registration No.: P2015DER45500
Peer Review Certificate No., 975/2020

abhakar Kumar
Parmoer
Mernbership No.: F5781
CP. No.: 10630

UDIN: FO0A781C000959041

Place: New Dellv
Date: 17/09/2021

Qtfice - £18, Ground Floor, Gury Narakpura, Janakpur, EJelhi-ﬂﬂOﬁ&;ﬁgia




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Watkor Chandiok & Go LLP
fFormerly Walker, Chandiok & Cob
23zt Fioer, BLF Sguare
Jacerandy Mare, DLF Phase
Gurgaon 122002

Iredin

T +81 124 462 8000
F +31 124 462 805)

Independent Auditor’s Reporr
To the Members of Global Health Limited (focarerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

f. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Global Health Titnited {formerdy known
wt Colobad Floaltl Private Limited) (the Holding Company™) and its subsicliaxies (i Holding Company and its
subsidiaries wgether referred to as “the Group?), as listed in Annexure I, which comprise the Consolidared
Balanee Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Consclidated Starement of Profie and Loss {including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consotidated Statement of Changes
in Byaty for the year then ended, and a sumemary of the significant accounting policies and other explasintory
informaljon,

2 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given 10 us, the aforesaid
consolidaied financial statements give the informasion requited by the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) in the
mannet so required aidd give a true and Falr view in conformity with the aceounting priuciples generally
aceepted in India inclading Indine Accounting Standards (‘Tnd ASY specified wader section 133 of the Act,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, as ac 31 Manch 2021, and their consolidated profit (including
other compyrehensive income}, consolidated cash fows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143010} of the
Act. Qur responsibilities under those standards are {urther deseribed in the Auditor's Respansibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Finaucial Statements secton of our report. We are independent of the Company
it accordance with the Code of Iithics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accovntants of India (TCAL
tugether with the erthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitles in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit cvidence we have
obtaived is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinton.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Iudependent Auditor’s Repott to the members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global
Health Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
(canc’d)

4. The Holding Company’s Board of Dicectors ave responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the informaticn included in the Director’s Report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon, '

Crur opinion on the consolidated Hnancial stztements does not cover the other information and we do not
express ainy forrm of assurance eonclusion thereon, :

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statemen ts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidaced financial stasements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 1o be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have pecformed, we conclude that there is 2 matetial misstatement of
this other information, we are required 1o report thai fact, We have nothing to report in this regazd,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

"

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s Board
of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Disectors is responsible for the marters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a rue
and fair view of the consolidated financial posidon, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and cousolidated cash Hows of the Group In
accordance with the accounting principles penerally accepted in India, inclnding the Ind AS specified undex
section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Di.rectors;’management of the companies included in the
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions.of ..
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frands and other
lrregulatities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and pradeny; and design, implémentation and maiatenance of adequate internal financial
conwols, that were operating effectively for cnsuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
tecords, selevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financiaf statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from matesial misstatement, whether due to frand or error, which have Lieen vsed
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, 23 aforesaid,

6. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Divectors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, maiters refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accountng
unless the Board of Direcrors cither intend 1o liquidate the Group or 1o cease operations, o has no realistic
alvernative but to do so.

7. Thase Board of Directors arc also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the comprnies
imcluded in the Group.

Auvditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemen s

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasovable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud og errer, and o issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable sssurance is 4 high level of assurance but is not a puarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstarement when
It exists. Missratements can arise from fraud or exror and are considered material if, individually or in the
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Health Limited (fortrierdy known as Global
Health Private Limited) on the consolidated linancial statements for the year ended 31 Murch 2021
(cont'd)

Lt
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9.

ST e e ConsBldaTed inancial STALAMNCH LS,

As part of an audit in accordance with Smodards on Auditing, we exercise professionat jadgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whather
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidénce that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The tsk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from curor, as fraud imay
wrvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentatons, or the override of internal canteol;

¢ Obtain an undesstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
thar ave approprirte in the cireumstances. Under section 143(3)(3) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate inteinal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

¢ Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting esimates
and related disclosures made by management;

*  Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncernainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group 10 continue s 2 going concern.
If we conchude that a material vncertainty exists, we are required (o draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequare,
to modify our opinion. Qur conclusiots are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However,future events orconditdons may canse the Group to cease o continue a8 1
going conceen; and

*  Evaluare the overall prescatation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statemends,
inchading the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underdying
wansactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

11

and timing of the audit and significant audic findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act age not
applicable to the Molding Company and its subsidiaxy companies, since none of such companies is public
company as at 31 March 2021, as defined under section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting undex section
197(16) is not applicable.

12, As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we repost, to the extent applicable, that:

a} we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements:

) in our opmion, proper books of account as required by Jaw relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global
Fealth Privare Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{cont’d)

d)

~relive consoidated Brmicial SR EN T deaT Witk By this report are in agrecment with the relevant books

of account mnintained for the purpose of preparndon of the consolidated financial statemenus;

in owr opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified ander
section 133 of the Acy

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
subsidiary companies and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the respective companies, none
of the ditectors of the group companies, are disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Acy;

with respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial contrals with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company and s subsidiary companies, and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure 1T and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and accouding to the explanations given to us:

I the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigatons on the consalidated

financial position of the Group as detailed in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statemnents;

i the Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivarive contracts for which there were

Hi,

any rnaterial foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2021,

Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaty companies, during the year ended 31
March 2021; and

the disclosuse sequirements relating to boldings as well as dealings in specified bank notes wese
applicable for the period from 8 Novembes 2016 1o 30 December 2016, which are not relevant to
these consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause Is not applicable,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charrered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 0010761N/N500013

Rajni Mundra
Pastner
Membership No.: 058644

UDIN: 21058644AAAALGE636

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17 Seprember 2021

Lhariersd ACLounlanLe

thege were no amounts which were reguired to be wansferred fo the Investor Education and.



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Mealth Lioited (formerly known as Globaji
Health Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2021
{cont’d)

Annexure

List of subsidiary companies included in the Consalidared Financial Statements;

1. Medanta Holdings Private Limited; and

2. Global Health Patliputra Private Limited

Chansredt Acosuntapis
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Annexure [T o the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Global Healeh
Limited (foemedly known as Global Health Privare Limited) on the consolidated financial statenents
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d)

Annexure I

%23

' ibferad ooyl
5 ¢
L Aes

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference 1o the consolidated
financial statenients under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Acr’) '

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Global Health Limited (ormerly &nown
as Global Health Private Limited) (the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries {the Helding Company and its
subsidiaries together referted to as ‘the Group”) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited
the internal financial conieols with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies which are companies covered under the Act, as at thar date,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chagged with Governance for Internal Financial Caontrols

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companics
covered under the Act, are respensible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the
essential componenis of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Andit of Internal Financial Controls
over Fiaancial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indja
CICAT) These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
fnancial conwols that were operating effectively for ensusing the orderty and efficient conduct of the
Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assers, the
preventon and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the umely preparation of reliable financial information, as requized under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Stutements

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
starements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, based on our audir, We
conducied our auditin accordance with the Standards on Aunditing issued by the ICAT prescribed under Secrion
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Anancial
statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note redquire that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and pecform the audit to obrain reasonable assutance about
whether adequate inrernal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures (o obtin andit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
contrels with reference 1o financial statements and theis operating effectiveness. Gur audit of internal fingncial
controls wath reference 1o financial statements includes obtainiag an understanding of such internal financial
santrols, assessing the risk that a matexial wealkness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, tncluding the assessment of the risks of materin] misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due ro fraud or enor.

We believe that the rudit evidence we have obtained i+ sufficient and appropriate w provide z basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies as aforesaid,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

pany's intemal Anancial conuols with reference 1o financial statements is a process designed 1o provide
reatefighle assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial stalements
for :ﬁ(&;pai purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting prineiples. A company's internal
fan é:f kcontrols with reference 1o financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
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Aunexure II to the Independent Auditor's Report of evenr date to the members of Global Heulth
Limited (formetly known as Global FHealth Privare Limited) on the consolidated {inancial statements
for the year ended 31 Masch 2021 (cont’d)

to_the mmaintenanece of records.tha fpubty “M'cnﬂahlc““‘i‘?‘mu’s‘“ﬂ%_’z“"?“-‘#}““ﬁ“l‘ld"_r“{*'ij‘-‘-i‘_lm‘i‘_a—ﬁ’l?—l'i‘ﬂ‘!‘!ﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁ—mﬂ‘—_ —

dispositions-of-the-assets-of the-company; (2) provide reasonable ASsuraTics that THsicaons 4ee Tecsrded o = "
necessary to permit prepatation of financial stalements in sccordance with generally accepred accounting
principles, and thar seceipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
avthorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance tegarding
prevention o timely detection of unavthorised acquisition, vse, or dispositon of the company's assets that

conld have « material effect on the financial statements.

Infherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of theinherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financisl statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaternents due 1o erroy
or {tand may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaloation of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements to furure periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial conirols
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ox that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedutes may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opmion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the
Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial seacements and
such controls were operating cffectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal contro] over fnancial
reporting criteria cstablished by the tespective companies consideting the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Fos Walker Chandisk & CaLLP 7
Chartered Accountants
Piom’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Qc\(-{’w;' Mnan
Rajni Mundra

Partner

Membership No.: 058644

UDIN: 21058044 AAAATGBE36

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17 September 2021

>
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Global Health Limited flomtscrly known as Global Heslth Private Limited)
Canzudidated sistement of changes in cquity for die year ended 31 March 2021
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Background

Globat-teslte Privwer g L PV Was (corporated on 13 Aupust 204 and s enguged_in.the bysiness of .

. or aftey l»v\( wil 2020 as well. The Group is evaluating the requirernents of these amendnients and the
- -the financialgratements.
et

providing healtheare services. Subsequent to the year-ead, GHPL has been converted 1o a public company namely
‘Global Health Limited’ {the Company”) as mentioned in ‘Certificate of Incorporation consequent UPOnR CONVversion
from puivate company to public company’ dated 11 Avgust 2021 as issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affaits
{MCAY). L'he Compady is domiciled in Indiz and its registered office is simated at E — 18, Defence Colony, New
Dethi - 110024, '

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company and its
undermentioned subsidiasies (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Group’):

(B Medanta Holdings Privare Limited, 100% subsidiacy with effect from 20 March 2018.
{if) Global Health Padiputra Private Limited, 100% subsidiary with effect fram 11 August 2015,

Upto 31 March 2020, the consolidated financial statements also included the financiat information of & Joint venture
(xcfer ndte 46(L)).

The consolidated financia statements comply izl matental aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (heveinafrer
referred 10 as the ‘Ind AS" as notified by Minisuy of Corporate Affairs under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standayds) Rules 2015, as amended snd other yelevant
provisions of the Act. ’

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were authorized and approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 14 September 2021, The revision te consolidated financial statements is permitted by
Bomd of Directors of the Holding Company after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instasice of regulatory
authorities as per provisions of the Act.

. Basis OF PICPALATION - - v e oo e o et e i et e et e

The conselidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles geneally accepied in India. Further, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis except for share based payments and certain financia) assets and Financial iabilities which age
tneasured at fair value.

Recent accounting proncuncement
Amendments to Schedule [{{ of the Act
On 24 March 2021, the Misustry of Corporate A flairs ("MCA™) through a notification, amended Schodule Y1 of

the Act. The amendinents revise Division 1, 11 and 1] of Schedule 11 and aze applicable from 1 April 2021. The
vevised Division It which relate to companies whose financial sttements are required 10 comply with Companies

. (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, a5 amended, prescribes amendments for various additional disclosures,

The Group is evaluating the requirements of these amendrents nnd theit impact on the consolidated financial
slatements.

Amendment 10 Ind AS 116, Leases

On 18 June 2021, Ministry of Corporate A ffairs {MCA’) has issved an updated amendment to Tnd AS 116 in
respect of rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. The effective date of
these amendments is 1 April 2021, However, in case an entity (fessee) has not yet approved the financial staternents
before the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be applied for anaual reporting periods beginning on

N
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Amcndmcms 10 Ind AS 107, Financial Insteuments: Disclosuses

New-disclesures-requirements aie-added-in the standard-to-enabletive usery o wdlerstaind thie eTfect 6 F Hterest i

5.1

benchmail reforms on entity’s xisk management strategy. The related amendments are also made in the orther
accounting standard as applicable. The Group is evaluating the requirements of these amendments and their Hmpact
o the financial statements,

Amendments to Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and Ind AS
16, Property; Plant and Equipment

There is change in definition of recoverable amount from ‘fair value less costs to sell’ to “Fair value less costs of
disposal’. The Group is evaluating the requitements of these amendments and theie impact on the fnancial
staterngents. :

Summary of significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements  have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and
measurement bases summarised below. These policies have been consistently rpplicd o al} the years presented,
unless otherwise stated,

Piincipies of consolidation

Subsidiaties : _

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has coawol The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable xeturns from its involvement with the eatity and has the ability to affect those
retuens through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. The Group has powes over the investee even
if it owns less than majority voting rights Le. rights arising from other contractual arrangements, Subsidiaries aze
fully conselidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases. Statement of profir and loss (including other comprehensive income (fOCIN) of subsidiasies
acquired or disposed of duting the period are recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effecrive

“date of disposal, as applicable. Al the Consolidated subsidiaries have 4 consistent repotting date of 31 March 3077

The Group combines the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries line by line adding
together like iterns of assets, Habilities, equiry, income and expenses. Inter group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on wansactions between group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiades have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Gronp.

Non-controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s statement of profit
and loss and net assets that is not held by the Group. Statement of profit and Joss balance (including other
compiehensive income (‘OCIY) is atuributed to the equity holders of the [Holding Company and to the non-
contgolling interests, basis the respective ownership interests and such balance is attributed even if this resuits in
conteling interests having a deficit balance,

The Group wears transactions with non-controlling interests that do not resalt in 4 loss of control as ransactions
with equity owners of the Group. Such a change in ownership interest results in an adjustment beeween the catiying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative jnterests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment to noa~controlling interests and any coasideration paid or
received is recognized within equity. :

}Oint ventures

Favestments in joint arrangements are classificd as cither Joint operations or Jainr ventures. The classification
depends’on the contracrual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal strucrure of the Joint
arrangement. The Group has classified its investment in joint arrangement as joint ventures.

Interest mn joint venture is accounted for vsing the equity method, aftex inidially being recognised at cost. The
cacrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the share of net aseers
of the investee or impairment, if any, adjusted where necessary to casure consistency with the accounting policies
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of the Group. The consolidated statement of profit and loss {including the other comprehensive income) includes
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5.2 Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method in accoun ting for business combinations. The consideration nansferced
by the Group to obtain control of a eatity is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date falr valves of assets
transferred and labilities incurred. Acquisition costs are expensed as incureed.

Identifiable assets acquired and linbilities and contingent liabilities assumed in » business combination are measured
initially at their acquisition-date fair values, Goadwill is measured as excess of the agpregare of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount recognized for non-controlling interests and falr value of any previous
interest held, over the fair value of the net of identifiable assets acquired and babilities assumed. 17 the fair value of
the net of identifiable assets acquired and labilities assumed is in excess of the aggregate meationed above, the
resuliing gain on bargain purchase is recognized in other romprehensive incomie and accumulazed in equity as capital
reserve. However, if these is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognizes the gain directly in equiry
as capital resexve, withour routing the same through other compichensive income.

5.3 Current versus non-curtent classification
All assers and Habilities have been classified as current or non-cutrent as per the operating cycle and other criteria
set ont in Division 1! of Schedule IIT of the Act. Based on the natuze of the operations and the ime between the
acquisition of assets for processing/servicing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has
ascertained its operating eycle a5 twelve months for the purpose of curent/ non-current classification of assets and
liabilities. '

5.4 Propeaty, plant and equipment

Recoguition and initial measuremont :

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises puschase price,
cost if capitzlization criteria are met and directly attebutable cost of bringing the asset o its working condition for
- the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in aciving at the purchase price. Propexty, plant and
equipment purchased on deferred payment basis are recorded at equivalent cash price. The difference between the

cash price equivalent and the total payment is zecognised as inresest expense over the period until payinent is made.

Subssequeni cosir undl disposal :

Subsequent costs are incloded in the assers carrying amouat or recognised as a separate asset, as approprate, only
when it is probable that futare economic benefits associated with the item wil flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The careying amount of any component aceounted for as a separale asset is de-
recognised when replaced. Al ocher repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as
incwrred.

L[rems such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recopnised as property, plat and
equipment when they meert rhe defition of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such jtems are clagsified as
fnventory. )

An irety of property, plant and equipment inidally recognised is de~recognised upon disposal or when ao funace
economyc beaefits are expected from its use. Any gain or Joss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as

" the difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asser) is recognised in statement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capinal work-in-progress includes property, plant and equipment under construction and not ready for.intended
use as on the balance sheet date.

Subsequent nieasitoment {depreciation and wsgfief Jives)
Freehold. lasid is carsfed at historical cost. All other items of propezxty, plant and equipment are subsequently
Angasured at Gost Jess accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciaton on praperty, plant and
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equipment is provided on n staight-line basis, computed on the basis of vseful lives {as set out below) pescribed

in_Schedule 11 1o the Act,

5.5

- Intangible asseris-de-recognised upon- disposal er when no-future-economic benefits are expected-fron its wse o

5.6

5.7

Asset class Useful life
Building 30 years
Medstal equipmyents 5 t0 15 years
Medical and surgical instruments 3 years
Qther plant 2nd equipment 15 years
Fusnsture and Axtores 10 years

TT equipment 310 6 years
Qffice squipment 3 years
Flectrical installaton 10 years
Yeluscles 6 to 8 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lower of useful life and the lease term.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of ate reviewed at the end of each finoncial year.
Intangible agsets

Reegprition and initiaf ricasuremeny

Intangible assots (software) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost compzises purchase price, borrowing
cost if eapitalization criteria are met and divectly attvibutable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use.

Subsequecnt measerenent
The cost of capitalized softwaze is amortized over a period of five years from the date of its acquisition.

De-revgguition

disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (caleulated as the difference between the net disposa)
praceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is
derecognised, '

inventonies

Inventorics are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Cost is caleulated on weighted average
basis. Cost of these inventorics comprises of all cost of purchase, taxes (excepr where eredit is allowed) and other
costs dnewrred in bringing the inventories to theilr present location a0d condition. Cost of purchased inventory is
detenmined alter deducting rebates and discounts,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured ar the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognived upon
uansfer of control of promised products or services 1o customers/patients in an amount that reflects rhe
consideration the Group expeacts to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenug is measuxed net of
rebates, discounts and taxes. The Group applies the revenue recognition criteria to sach component of the revenue
transaction as set out below.

Faconre fiomr healtheare services
Revenue from healtheare services is recognized ns and when telated services are rendered and include services for

patients undergoing ueatment and pending for discharge, which is shown as unbilled revesue under other current
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itnancial assets. The Group considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine

the-tansacton price: Hermamsacuor price s U atoent of CoNSATtE IS Uhich e Ciroup-expects to De entified

5.8

5.9

s.recognised when it arises..........

i exchanpe forthe services, excluding amounts collected on benalt of tiurd parties (for example, indizect raxes).

A recetvable is xecognised by the Group when the control is teansferred as this is the case of point in dme
recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required. When either pacty
to a conwact has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as 4 contract asset of 2 contract
Hability, depending on the relationship beswaen the enury’s performance and the payment.

Licome from aut-pationt Pharmiacy

Revenue from phanmacy producss is zecognized as and when the contzol of products is wansferred o the custamer.
The Group considers its customary business practices to determine the tragsaction price. The transaction price is
the amouat of consideration to which the Group expects to be eatided in exchange for the products, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of thied parties (For example, indirect taxes). :

Clinical research .
Clinieal reseacch income is recognized over tme basts percentage completion method which is determined based
on achievement of milestones.

Tnterest inconre
Intexest income is recorded on acerual basis using the effective interest rate (BIR) method.

Spossorship inconte
Sponsarship income s recoguised in the accounting yeac in which the services are rendered as per the apreed terms
with the oustormers.

Qrber trome
Revenue arising from revenue sharing agreements is recognived as per the erms of the RErANgement.
Rental incame is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease rexm, except for contingent rental income which

Borrowing cost

Borcowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rare (EIR). Borrowing costs dizectly atuibutable
1o the acquisition, constructon or production of a qualifying assct are capitalized during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended usc or sale. Qualifying assels are assets that necessanly
take a substantial period of time to get seady for its intended use or sale, Al other borrowing costs are expensed in
the pesiod they oceur.

lcases
Group as a lessee ~ Right of use assets and lease labilides

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asser (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration”. '

Clascification of leases

The Group enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several
factoss, ncluding, but not limited to, tansfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease tem, lessee’s option to
extend/purchase ete.

Recoguition and indtial meagucement of right of wse assets

Avlease comniencerment date, the Group recognises a righr-of-use asser and a lease liability on the balanee sheet,
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made wp of the initial measurement of the lease liabitity, any
initiat direee costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs 1o dismantle and remove the asser at the end of
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the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives

ey
FenRIAedy
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Subsequent mearnresent of 5ight of wee assels

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets.on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the vseful life of the sight-of-use asset or the end of the Jease rerm, The Group also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impaisment when such indicators exist.

Lease lubifities

At lease commencement date, the Group measures the lease lability st the present value of the lease payments
unpaid ac thar date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the fease if that rate is readily available or the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the iease liability are made
up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an iadex or rate,
Subsequent to inital measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is
re-sneasured 1o reflect any reassessment ox modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fived payments.
When the lease Hability is re-measured, the cotresponding adjustment is reflected in the tdght-of-use asser.

The Gioup his elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recogising a
right-of-use asset and lease Yiability, the payments in relation to these short-term leases are recognised as an expense
in statcment of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Further, the Group has also elected to apply another practical expedient whereby it has assessed all the rent
concessions oceurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, basis the following conditions
prescribed under the standard:

a) the change in Jease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, of
less than, the consideration for the lease immediacly preceding the change;

b} any seduction in lease payments affects only payments origioally due on or before the 30 June 2021; and

<) there is no subsiantive changs to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Jf all the rent concessions meet the above conditions, then, the related rent concession has been recognised in
statement of profit and loss,

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asser are
chissificd as operating leases. The respective jeased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their narure.
Rental income Is recognized on straight-line basis over the lease-term.

Impuairment of non-financial assets

Assessinent 1s done af each balancee sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
For the purpose of assessing impaisment, the smallest identifiable group of assets thar genevates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered
as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asser/cash
generating unit is made. Assets whase carrying valne exceeds their recoverable amount are written down 1o the
recoverable amount. Recoverable amaount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's net selling price and its
valuc in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash fiows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessenent s also done at each balance sheet date
as t0 whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior aceounting periods
may no longes exist or may have decreased,

Foreign evtrency

Frnctional and presentaution cirrency :
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (INR), whicl is the

Holding Company’s functional and presentation currency. -
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Transactions amd belances

bl B S

Forelgn Cluzency wansactions are recorded in the functional-cussency, by applying 1o-the S ——
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Fovesgs: currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date ase converted 1o functional CULLency using
the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in 1 foreign currency which ate cartied at listorical cost are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences atising on menetaty items on settlement, of restatemenr as ar reporting date, at rates different
from those at which they were tnitially secorded, are recognized in the statement of profic and loss in the year in
which they arise.

5.1% Financial insuruments

Recaguitéon and initial measurement ‘

Financial assets and financizl liabilities ave recognised when the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual Provisions
of the financial insuument and are messured 1nitially ar faix value adjusted for tansaction costs, except for those
carnied at fair value through profic or loss which are measured initiatly at fair value.

The classification depends on the Group’s busisniess model fox wanaging the financial assets and the coneracrua)
terms of the cash flows. For assets measored at fair value, gains zand losses will either be recorded in the staterment
of profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instuments, rhis will depend on the
business model in which the investmeat is heid, For investments in equity instnuments, this will depend on whether

the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity invesunent
at fair value thebugh other comprehensive income {(FYOCH. ’ '

Non-derivative financial assets
Sulrseguent measavonent

Financial assets carried at z_:mc;_t_i_scd'_{:ost
h '"'f'ollowing conditions are met:

*  The asser is held withia a business model whose objective is to hold assets for colleciing contractual cash flows;
and .

¢ Conuactual tenns of the asser give rise on specitied dates o cash fows thar are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the prncipal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets age subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interese eate (BIR) method. '

Investments in equity instruments of othets — These are measured at faix value through other comprehensive
ncome,

De-recognition of financiat assets .

A Financial asset is de-recognised when the contracrual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired ox
the Group has tansfesred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Naon-derivative financial liabilities

Satbsequent meavieremeut

Subsequent o initial recognition, all non-detivative financial liabilities are mensured at amortsed cost using the

effective intevest method,

i)e-a_u‘agm’{iarz_g{ finascial fabifitier
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A financial liability &5 de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires,

= When-mexisting financil bty iy replrced By ARCHEE Toi the e Tendes on SubstRntaly diffcrens texms, o0 .

5.13

5.14

the ferms of an existing Tinbility are substantially modified, such an exchange ox modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original lability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carylng
2mounts is recognised in the statement of profit and Joss.,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Finafcial assets and financial liabilities ave offset and the net amount is eeported i the balance sheet if there is 2
currently enforceable lega) right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a ner basis,
to realise the assers and settle the liabilities simultanecusly. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
futuse evenes and must be enforceable in the nomial course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptey of the Group or the counterparty. . '

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on » forward looking basis the expected credit losses associnted with its Fnancial assets and the
impairment methodology depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit tisk.

Trade recetvables

In respect of wade reccivables, the Group applies the simplificd approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of Joss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit Josses. Liferime expected credit losses
are the expected credit losses that result from all possible defavlt events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Otber fintancial assets

In sespect of its other financial assets, the Group assesses if the credic risk on those financial assess has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significanty since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expecied credit losses, else at'an amount equal
to the lifetime expected credit losses,

When meking chis assessment, the Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurting over the expected life

of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a defavlt occurring on the financial
asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default oceurring on the financial asset a5 at the date of inial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportble information, that is avaifable without undue cost or cffort,
that s indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, The Gronp assumes thar the credit
tisk on 4 financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is derermined ro
have low credit risk ar the balance sheet date.

Taxes

Tax expense comprises cuscent and defened tax. Current and deferced tax is reeognised in statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recogrised directly in equity or othet cotnprehensive income,

The curenr income-tax chazpe is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted ac the balance sheet date.
Muanagement periodically evalvates positions taken in tax retusns with respect to situations in which applicable tx
regulation is subject to interpretation, It establishes provisions where appropriste on the basis of amounts expected
to e paid to the tax authorites. :

Deferred s is provided in full, on temporary differences asising between the tax base of assets and labificies and
their canying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is-detesmined using tax rates (and
lawsy that have been enacied or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting petiod and aze expected apply
when the relayed deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liabity is settled. Deferred tax assery are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences and upused tax losses only if it is probable that fuare eaxable amounts will
be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Cutrent tax assets and rax liabilities are offser where the entity has a legally enforceable right 10 offset and intends
cither to settde on a ner bagis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously. Deferred tax assers and
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Liabiliics are offset when these is a legally enforceable right 10 offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the

Casls and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with the banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturity of thzee months and less.

Employee benefits

Short-terve exsployee bumefits
Laabilities for wages and salaties, includiog non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service mig classified as short-term
emnployee benefits. These benefits include salasies and wages, shoxt-term bonus, incentives ete. These are Myeasured
at the amounts cxpected to be paid when the labilities are secdled. The liabilities ace presentect as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

Defined contribution plan ) :

Contibution towards provident fund is made 1o the regulatory authorities, where the Group has no Ffurther
obligations. Such benefits are classified as defined contribution pian as the Group dees not carry any Further
obligations, apart from the conuibutions made on a monthly ‘basis. In addition, contributions are made to
employees’ state insurance schemes and Jabour welfare fund, which are also defined contributon plans recognized
and adminisiered by the Government of India and Haryana respectively. The Guoup's contrbutions to these
schemes are expensed in the staternent of profit and logs,

Defined benefit plan .

The Group has unfunded graruity as defined benefic plan where the amount thar an employee will receive on
retirement is defined by reference o the employee’s leagth of service and final salary. The grawity plan provides g
fump sum payment 1o vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employmens, of an

determined {using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. This is based on standard rates of
wilation, salary growth 1ate and morrality,

Discount factors axe determined close to each year-end by reference to market yields on government bonds diat
have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Sesvice costand net interest expense on the
Group's defined benefit plan is included in employee benefirs expense,

Actuaval gains/losses resuliing from re-messurements of the defined benefit obligation are included in other
comprehiensive income,

Odtber long-torm ermployee benefits :

The Group also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of Jong-term
employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to e availed moze
than one year after the- balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actoasial valsation perfonned by an
independent actvary using the projected unit eredit method as on the reposting date. Service cost and net interest
expense on the Group’s other long-texm employee benefits plan is included in employee benefits expense. Actuarial
gains and losses agising from experence adjustments and changes in acivatial assumptions are recordéd in the
starement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arse,

Government grants

(arants from the government are recogaised at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with al] attached conditions. When the grant relates to & vevenue item, it is
recognized o scatement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the related costs arc
expensed. The grant can either be presenied separately or can deduct from related ieported expense. Govermnent
grant relading to capital assets are recogaised initially us deferred income and are credited to statement of profit and




Giobal Heabth Limited (formerdy known as Global Health Private Limited)

Consolidated summarty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2021

loss on a straight line basis over the expected lives of the zelated asset and presented within other operating income.

5.18 Share based payment expense

The faix value of options granted under Global Health Employee Stock Option Scheme 2014 and 2016 is recogmized -
as an cmployee benefit expense with a comresponding increase in equity. The wral amounnt to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair valoe of the options granted; -

¢ Including any market performance conditions {e.g., the entity’s share price)
Excluding the impact of any servive and non-market performance vesting conditions (c.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and

*  Including the impact of any non-vesting condidons {e.g the requirement for employees 1o save or holding
shares for o specified peviod of ume). '

Lol expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all the specified “resting
conditions are to be sadsfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of optins
that aze expected to be vest based on the non-matket vesting and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity,

5.19 Provisions, contingent liabilites and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has 4 pesent {legal ox constructive) obligation as a resule of past events,

for which it is probable that aa outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate

of the amount can be made. Provisions requived to setile arc reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary

to reflect the cutrent best estimates of the obligation. Provitions are discounted to theic present values, where the
“time value of money is matertal, :

Contingent liability is disclosed unless the likelihood of an outflow of resources is semote and there is 2 possible
~obligatdon or 2 present obligatiotr that may; butprobably will-aot; require atroutflow of resonrees: e -

Contingent assets are disclosed only when inflow of economic benefits therefrom is probable and secognized anly
when realization of income is virtually certain, '

5.20 Eamings per share

Dasic eataings per shate is calenlated by dividing the net profic or Ioss for the period attdbutable to equity
shareholders (after deducting atwibutable taxes) by the weighted average mumber of equity shares outstanding

- duzing the period. The weighted average number of equity shares ourstanding during the period is adjusted for
events including a bonus issue or share split.

For the purpose of calevlating diluted earnings per share, the net profit oz loss for the petiod avtriyutable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average numbes of shares cutstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potensial equity shares.

5.21 Rounding of amounis

All amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been roonded off 1o the nearest lakhs
25 per the sequirement of Division [T of Schedule 11, ualess otherwise stated.

§.22 Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated linancia) statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition,
wili seldom equal the acrual results. Management alse needs to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judpement ar
complexity, and of items which are more likely 1o be matetially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning
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Consolidated swmmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infornation for the year
ended 31 March 2021 )

out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information abour each of these estimates and

Tudgermersiy cloded n-retevimn notes WoEEher With nfGEHIEUen sbout the Dasl of calculation for each affecied

Ine dreny in the consalidated financial starements.

2) Recognition of deferred tax assets ~ The extent to which deferred tax assets ean be recognized is based on
an assessment of the probability of the fatuze raxable income (supposted by reliable evidence) against which
the deferred tax assets can be utitized.

b} Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets —~ The evaluaton of applicability of indicators of
impairment of asscts requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
dererioration of recoverabls amount of the assets.

¢} Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheer date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Group assesses the frequirement of provisions agaiast the ousstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual furare outeome may be different from this judgement,

a) Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, existing marker conditions as well as forward. looking estimates, the mMAnagement assesses the
expected credis losses on outstanding receivables. Further, management also considers the factors thar may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and counuy in
wliclh the customer operates.

¢) Defined benefit obligation (DBO) .- Mansgement’s estimate of the DBO is based on 2 number of vaderlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and antcipation’ of future salary
lncreases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amonnt and the annual defined
benefit expenses, '

£ Useful lives of depreciable/amottisable assets ~ Managenienat reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utlity of the assets. Uncertainties

-in these estimatss relate-1o technieai--and-eeaneﬂ-ﬁc-ebselcscenee-ﬂ-mtamay-ehange--t-he--utilisatien—eﬁ-assets.--

g) Leases - The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies 1o be 2 lease as per the requixements of Ind AS 116,
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgemesnt in assessiog the
lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Group determines the lease
texmn as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with botfy pesiods covered by an option to extend the
Jease 1f the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease tf the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option o tenminare a lease, it
considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an ecanomic incentive for the Group ta exercise the
option ¢ extend the lease, or not 1o exercise ihe option 10 terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease
term if there is @ change in the noan-cancellable pexiod of a lease. :

h) Government grant— Grants teceivables are based on estmates for vtilization of the grant as per the repulations
as well as analysing acrual outcomes an 2 vegular basis and compliance with stipulated conditions, Changes io
estimates or non-compliance of stipulaced conditions could lead to significant changes in grant income and are
accounted (or prospectively over the balance life of the asset. )

1} Fairvalue measurements ~ Management applics valuation techniques 1o determing faix value of equity shares
(where acuve macket quotes ave not available) and stock options. This involves developing estimates and
assumptions arcund volatility, dividend yield which may affeet the value of equity shares or stock options.

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated, They are based on histodeal expericace and other factors
including expecration of fuwre events that may have 1 financial impact on the Group and that are believed to be
reasonable vnder the clycumstances,
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Glohal Health Limind ffacmerty krewa as Global Hegith Private Linvred)
Cousalidated summuey of significant aceounting policies sud ather explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2021

6B Right of use assess (¥ iadnkdis)

Particulars . Building Otherplantasd  Vehicle fcase  Lessehold “Towl
i ) QUApFRETIT T Azl
e BIooH — oo = =

Badsnce asal ¥ Apal 2009 - recopnised on transition 10 308 AS 116 0,871.68 127,50 138,34 7,429.73 1156734
Balaney as w1 ¥ Apal 2049 - seansferred fom property, plantand epipiment® . K . 16,995 11 16,9954
Addiss 4,623.20 2261 - . o, (45,
Balance #5 u1 31 Marcl 2020 )  T4,4%4,97 . 150,20 13834 24,424.84 32,208.35
Additiuns ' - . - - -
Dizpusads/ sdjastmentsdd (937.66) - (942 . - {1,017.08).
Balxoee as a1 31 Murch 2021 13,5731 150.28 5892 24,424.84 38,191.27
Accumulated depreciation ' '
Bulaoee as vt 1 April 2012 . - - . n -
Uhasge for the year i,258.20 kN 7584 450800 1,790.44
Balance ns at 3§ March 2020 1,258,320 2.1 5,58 45800 1,79%.49
Cliege for de yoar$ ) 1,203 711 L8 0,60 456.00 1,782,294
Dispogais/adjusimes Z04.09) - {7948 - {283.51)
Bubagee a5 at 31 March 2021 2,782 17.56 46.84 956001 32022
Net block as a1 34 March 2020 ‘ 13,236,77 42,49 62,76 23,966.84 37,404,860
Net block as ae 31 Mareh 2021 ’ ] 11,239.4% 132,64 12.08 23,508.54 34,803.05

* T March 2199, teaschold Tand amd sekased babilitics were ceoognised as “oance leases” under Ind AS 17 'Leuses’. Leaschold land was prestated ns pacl of property, plans and
cquipmens and ihe Babiiios as defesred payment Eabilities os part of the Croup's bouowings. Howeear, under Ind A8 £16, these ave boen Lransfered 1o right of use asscls
and tease iabilives,

# Change of € 45.12 Tkl on aceount of kase madificadions dusing the yiz
3 Louring the pene ended 31 Maceh 2021 depreciaiion of T 25440 takhi has been capitsbised as paer of Caphial work-in-progress,

(This pace has ban fueattonally &fF blonky




Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Lirnited)
Consolidated summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021

e 2 Intangible assets T @i lalchis):
Software

Balance as at 01 April 2019 _ 275.82 N
Additions 846.36 * -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 ) 1,122.18
Additions : ' B5.14
Balance as at 31 March 2021 : 1,267.32
Accumulated amorrisation
Balance as ar 01 April 2019 138,82
Charge for the year ) 135,22
Balance as at 31 March 2020 214,044
Charge fos the year 208.76
Balance s at 31 March 2021 e 48280
MNet block as at 31 March 2020 848.14

Net biock as at 31 March 2021 . : 724.52
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Tuveshinens-aocouied-Loruting the-equity-thethod
Joint venavre ~ uaguned
Audania Duke Heseareh lassituie Poivste Limancdt
WMl equnny wlares {31 March 2020 T80 copay tiases) of € 10 cach}

Lecs ; tnpammeas m the vaiue of investments « 0E venture

Agpecgmic ook value of ungusied wvestmenty
Aguieipne amoun af impament i value of mveswies

HEhe imrd of Direceors (the Board) o Medsew Duke Research Instinste Pavale Eimicee (7 joint veruuge) in ite enceding dickd on 19 June 2000 had sesolved 1o initiae the
e sfurementioned entiey and sbregquently, they have intiated die peocess of voluntary fiquidation ol she ssid entty in aceandance with tive
aadl wirh 2asolvency wnd Bankupiey (Volantry Liquidation Process) Reguiations, 207, This has also been afirmied by the shacchobden in
[Resenechs stitute Prvate Limited held on 25 Septemlbe s 2019, Duning the year, un 25 Febaey 2028, the official fiquidasoe hae subritied final applicasan for liquedation fwvinding up of e 12id enaity

sl Madswiad Cowgry Eaw Pribunal (INCEYY) Hawevee, dhe finat prder oms die NOLT i awaiied,

Invesiment in equiny instruanents

Oubers - wnquoted §

{Measuisd an fairvaiug teough other compichensive ineome)
Szl Dyygneal Health Foundation
50080 cauney shaver (33 March 2020 M) of ¥ 100 cathf

Aggregate ook salue of usquoted invenments
Agaregate amgont of imgaicmend in value of invesnients

& Mleasured an fair valus thermgh ciher compreliensive incums, The underlying obiective 6l 1his investment {s nor o eaen peofils and henee,

Note -0 '
Lyans - non guirgn®

{Usnsecured comiidered good)

Secenty deposits

boass « CHeng®
(Hisecnrd cansidered guod)

Secunly depusis

" the Gromr docs not Juve any toaos wlich are cidher csedin irejsaied ar whese dhere 5 sigmificant sucense in ceedit ik,

Maie - 1#t

Oibes finuncisd sssers - nonscurrent

{Unseeuned consiored pood)

Bank doposts with masuring of mode ihan 12 mondis {lor noie below)

Mutes: .
Bank depimite foscludung mtesest accrucd) of £ 12840 Jikhs {31 March 2000 ¥ 48.39 Jakls) hiwe boen Ko marked as 3 STl

poveenmunt suthoriliv and lerer of craic sriued by espective banks.

Other finsnelul usuess - curreny
{Unsvcurcd cansidered good, unless ntherwise $1aicd)
Tteeaweelie Fram celated partior frcler note 38)
Unladlead revenue
Recowables under cupon benel sehemett
Oabet rececables®
Commdeced good
Canssleicd duubiful

Leass Alliwanee for expecied credi ioss

¥ {iher reeewablis st pomanly oa secouns of revenue shanng amangements,
HMoverient of receivobles wnd br export bensfi sthicme

Upevang Inbutce

Adid 1 gemne weeved duoig e vear

Lasa ¢ gpeainis s eanisderied iy the pear

Legas . gpase expareddwinten dunng e year

Less awnltsed foe poschae of propeny, plan s espaipmenls consumatyles

119,25

755"
£479.253

479.25

process ol winding up of
provisions of the Lesolency and Bawkruptey Codo, 2016
the Avaual Geaeral Meeting (‘A GM" of Medan Duke

Uiz dows Aot earey any price nvk.

51773 g5
81773 785,81
3 29719
I8 A4t "
1,BEQ.5E 23H4.50
1,840.58 2,364,30

Cor serviting of intesest of leom loans,
sk duposits {exeluding inerent accoued) of B 833,54 ki (35 déacels 2030 ¥ £52.45 Takhs) e dept vander lien with bauk oF masgin money sgaiest te bank guaraserns agsaed in favnur of vasious
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(1) Bank depasics of 2 8857 bkhe {31 March 2020: ¥ 48857 Inkhs) ate phedgenl aginst delot service seservy aptount [ISILAR.

=

4aputn] advactes
Advances other taat capiod sdeonees

Prepaid cxpendes

Other current agkets

Prepud expenses

Advance wr maienat/seonee provides
Advance w cmp!ay:ti

Badmees vt poveensmenl avthiorties

Mo - M
Eaventarics™i
Pliarmacy, medical and [abosmtoey consumaliles coated to i patent services

Mhasmmacy ravd madical consomables reduied to sl of pharmacy products 10 oulpaticas
Cenanal srorer

" valued 2t cost ur el ealicaltie value, whichevtr s Tower,

I st pam passu charge onosversaes, both present and faoare,

e - 15 .
Trnde teeeivablees
Toaske regenables + sonsidored grod, wisecoredst

Teacke vecewalides - et imynieed

Leset Allowance for exprcted credi boss

Trade reccivables . conndesed pond, sntocured

Trade eteivables » eredit impaied

¢ Hart pant fasss chasge an tmd soncivabiles, both poesent and future

) s g, inchudes ¥ E08.51 Tt 0 MR 3030 295 55 VRN roceralles Fiom volicd jrareins feolar mone 383 T

Nowe - 16

Cash und cash equivaleins

Balamees wals Banke 10 curtent aecounes
Chyuaes pn hand

{asltian hasat

Bank cheposits with gdgazk mawney less tden isee months

Moe « 17

Oiher bank brlances |

ek deposits with masurity ol morg thas tave monibs and upte hvelve moatls (vefer noges Dby

Photest

Bank deprisats o T 279352 kb 8 hiarell 20202 1 TR Takingd wee hept under licn withbank 2s m,

af ceedu st

¥ feba kst
v

1,224477 i
3216 Gk
1258.23 SIEA2
$17.0% A5 14
12615 21231
9.41 19,64
13.18 -
76672 i60.75
319533 351440
304,52 K
31847 FET A
157502 385090
15,2418 16,4554
4OT1LG REYREIS]
13,960.41 20,957,51
{1926.32 £y 50300y
£,671.260) [EEIRE
1336283 14,985.49
6,374.22 ERARRH
545 . 1A
19,57 16H2 .42
37,85 9,573 54
6,940,567 i4,757.12
21 BEaNT WLE348,17
Z1,983.47 10,255.17
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_ vt at L1314
MNate - 18 31 Mascd, 2021 H Murch 2024
A Equity shure cupitsl g — -
P - ; J— LT T S— e : . Amount
i Authorsed® Nunber {2 i lakdie) Hunbes {E in fakhis)
Chiss A Muyury eares of ¥ 10 cael) . 10 102 4,000 010240 31 034,000 16, B2
Chsg B Boguny shares of # 140 el 1,006 1] EANR TR
10,102.50 10,102.50
i [sived, subécribed end paid upr
Clhass f Bquiny shaees of F 10 caghy 43,555,818 4 D5H, 58 44,345,000 . 401450 i
. 4,058.58 4,934.56
' Subsiquent tu the gear-cad, die Loacd of Diccctors of (b Holding Conipany have spproved siars spht of Class A cquiry shacee from 2 30 per shiase 40 2 2 poe shiace and die same Las boon duly
approved by the shacelolders of the Holding Company. Accordingly, the number of Sl A equiy shares in authorised share eapital and Bawed, subscribed and Tutly prid \ip have incrensed fram
1R L0440 sha s o 503, 120,0XK sharvs and from 40,563,618 shares ta 241929080 shaces vesprenively. la wdiston, the Board of Dircetors have alio aqpvved conversion ul Class I equity shares to
Clas A equaty shdes, Comenaendy, 1K Clase 8 equsty shares of s, 10 oach Tk Becn convered mea 5,003 Chiss A aquity slees of 3. 2 cich aod accordingly, suthored dire capind of Oazs A
aquity sl el 613G i Re. 2 cach shalt be inereaed 19 Clgs A equily shares of 05,135,000 of its. 2 each. Fuather, the "Class A equary shace’ Was alsn bee sonamed 1o Equiy shae'.
i Reconeitiation of number of squity sharex outetanding we e bogiuning and a1 the end of the year

Equity shares

Batanee atthe begivung of the year 49,343,003 +934.50 4132778 +013.0%
Adhid: Fssued dusing the year fon avcoont of exereisp of sioch optiun) 240,815 08 it e} -9 fd o]
Babance at the end of the year 19,585 8138 4, 758,58 49,345,043 4,034.50

w Righes, preferences and restrictions sttached 1o equily sharg

The Metding: Compang bas two class of eysiy shares with fae vatue of ¥ 10 pee share, In case of chss A equity share, cach holdee af cquity is eatitled 16 ane vere por shase, In exse of ¢iase B hares,
every &UUKRI class B shaces vhal liave voring rights cquivalent 1o one class A shases,

The dredend praposed by dhe Beasd of Direciors is subjeet 1o ihe approval of die shaccholders in the enruing Annual Geneeat Aeeting, vasopt in case of imceien dividend,

v Deowis of shatehalder hotding mare than 8% of equity Ehare capital )
MName of the equity shareliolder Nuniber kil Number

Numbor

Dr. Naresh Teelian HL300, 508 TR 10,360 607 2T

M. Saisal Sactdeva jounly with M Sunan Sachdevn 6,800,000 $3.71% 800,000 3.8 %

Be. Matesh Tochan joinely with Mes. Madhu 7'rehan L Gdnaons DO ... SOR L

Dunchen Jnvesiminis fnediig D16 & AT 4 1 A R ¥ U 17aEn

Anant Investawenis . 13 S0 6K 26,22% 3,000,000 25.35%:
vi Agyregeee number and cluce of shares alfotied ug lully paid up p 0 santraci{s] withow payment being recoived in cagh, by way of bonus shares and shaces bough hack far the

pered of 5 years inuneditely preceding the hatance shea dage

Ve Holding Carnpany chd auk isvue 20y fhares pursunnt o contesctfs) wiilion payment being received fn casly.

Toe Hakdsng Conpaoy <id notissue Yons shares in preceding 5 yoars

The Holdmg Company bas aot undenaken any buy back of shares. i
wil Bhorar severved for issue under opticng

lraan dewsals o shaces wisred foc isiue under die Employee Steck Opsian Plan (ESOP} of the 11olding Company, cefer note #3,

\)\9 ajr;f;

{0 apwiie bos btvas Sutendionntty it ddands)
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Globab Fealeh Limited ffowmedy known as Giobul Fealih Petvare Limired}
Conzakidated sunniry ol significant scequating policies and oiher enplanatacy fufurnastion for the yeas ended 31 March 202§

B instewsnents entirely equity in aature -
As at Az
MM 2021 3 Masel 200
nu .L.Al A PMrmier ARG
i Authorised . (®im-dakhs) e
Campulariy convennbi preference shares (Class A) af T 096 mach 46,054 3, 250008 LICAHT 325050
i 466,354 525000 40805454 325000
# [sEued, cobrcribed uad fulty paid up
Compulwonty convernble preference shares (Clage Ayol ¥ 606 ¢xch F06,%54 3,25000 165,954 35,2500
08,954 2,250,040 460,954 3,250

Righes, preferences and resinicsions attechicd to Compuliurily Convertible Prefecance Sharos (' CCPS® o "parference share')

These shees ace monecumutative Cliss A compulienly coneertible prefecenes shaces having an votiog vghis andl aat entitled ta voie togesher with the holders of cguity shaees o che Fir

alirys

Compary and manduonly eotiled w dividead @@ 0O00M% of the fage value jres amnum. Fhe shares ace convertlabe sana Clast 4 JEquity Shaces a5 per the ovents and condinons staned below -

Lonversion event®

Conversion ratio

Nyaeeendr awniverseny af the fisuance o the Class A peeferonce share

e

The e on which the Asant hvestmenis (holder of tie aforemenliored CUPS) nwns
Fewer thiae 6,030,000 Class A cquiny shares.

The aecuteence 58 Quabfied Jnmial Public offer {'TPO™) ar the lest dars by which af)
canvenible Secunites in the Group shaukl be convesied into equity shargs in order foc
the Quadified LY o be peernined andec Lndion Law.

One Clars A eqeny shares lor every 466,454 Chus & profesence shares

-

Tine aaucrenes &/ s lnitict Pubilic Offer whiel is nota Qualificd Imuat Pablic Ofier
v the dast date by which alf convemnble seeuntics in the Heldwg Cempany sirowd oo
convirted ima Bguity aliates a8 permitted under applicable law,

1nch Glasy A prefence shase shall conver ws e lewer of
D O Clags A cquety share; ar .

{0) "Phe fellowing aumber of Class A cquity thaces = E832 * W) - Ry /406054
oo

X = Tots] aumber of equity shates owaed by the liolder of the Class A DT08

smenedingly hefore conversinn
Y = Actual PO Price

FCLPS & clasuhed a5 cquuy a3 the Holding Company LNpeCts o iEsue
Company,

h'ulhn‘q:wm 10 ¢l year-end, ewing s the shares 3pht enumeraied 1n neta 18A4) and (1),

bxed number of cquity shares on 1he occusecnor of conversion teomt, the fature of which & comtroleg by e Feliling

the aforementionod conversion event and convenion mio las beom upthazed and tabratarcd brelow -

Canversion event

Convension s1ie

Mhnenee st ansiversacy af e sseance of the Cisss A preferenze vhare

The dase ow'which e Anzit Tovesnienss [holder of the alorementomed CCPEY owns
fiesserr thows 53,1 30,000 aquity whnees.

The aczurcence of 2 Qualilicd tniial Public Odfer of the Ins; date by which a8
comventilde seewnities i the [okding Company should be sonvened into oquily shares
i arther fur the Qualified I} Public Offee ro be pesmitted wndee Indiag Law,

Trave equidy shaces of Rs. 2 cach for oveny A66954 Class A cors

&=

The arcasence of an 100 which is nor » Qualified TR0 ar fhe fast daie By wineh all
convertible Securitics i the 12olding Company should be convered into Tamity Shares
i ordes for the PO whieh is not s Quatified IPC 10 be pereviered uader applizeble
law:,

Lach Class A Peeferente Shate shall tonvent into the lower af

{1} Five equity sharcs of [16. 2 eachy or

{11 Fhe followang ssber of cquity shaces of Re. 3each = {1861 X3N] - K}/ 466,954

Whee

X = Towl number of cquity shases of Ky 2 tach owned by vhe lotder 6f the Cliss A& preference sl
immedinely bofare cunversion

W = Indieative 1M Maee

Reconcilinion of aumbar of GGPS mustanding ar the beginniog and at the end of rive yees

A ac AR G
31 March 2021 31 Mdareh 2020
Anouni Alcunt
Mumber (T inlakhis) MNumber (¥ i taldg)

Batnnes 2t the beguising =ocd at the ead of (e year 466,954 215000 466,954 32500
{elaite of eliarehulde: ﬁo]ding maore thon 5% of CCPS .

Mame of ihe shareholdey ’ Murabes o MNuember b

Anant [nvesimenty 56 534 W 466,954 ACHEnTE,

Aswm An ot

Mote - 19

Quher tquity

Sepunted preatum

Share opis cesianding asecnns

Rewmed earmngg

M Marcl 2821
A in okl

H Merch 2020
{¥ in fokins}

44,02 3 A7 nEr AT
120242 LR ki
T BOR A2 [EREYRY
1,192.74 o 1,192 74

R6,025.7%




Global Heulth Limited (formerly known us Globul Heutth Privace Livsired)
Cuossoliduced sunminary of signifies i eccovrting polivies and other explanatgey information for the yeur onded 33 Murch 2021

Mature and purpose of gihor resrnes
BeCunLes firen s

Secuntes premuum 1 wyed 4o reeued the Priciiain on ue of shacee. Tihis badance can Le wtilised in accordanse with provisions of e Companics Aet, 2013,

Share oplions culEamling dccount

(
4l

=

sd

Thas ageount i ureed 10 rvcoynae the grao dare e valie of e opuans wined v employess ander the Hotdisg Compang's smployee xisck option pha,

Rewnned carings

Retanved sareimps o used 11 record balince of slatement of profi and 105 and othes equicy adiusimems.

Capiral rese v
Capmal eoserve represema difference bowween share capinal of wansleror estity and shase capial sued 16 ersiwhite slireholibes of tewnsferor cadiy.

As ol Ay
Mata - 20 : M March 200 31 Miarcls 2020
Borrowings uoi-curreat (¥ in lokhs) {¥ in lakha)
Seaured louns
Term loans
Feote banks frefen noke {23 belon} 50,124.90 048N
Eosir cuzeend manunities of long-wom Loroningg (L2070 {3,008, 12
L5008 B3L.97N.60
Vehicde Juans
From funanciat instwting {reles aute (6) betow) 96,32 . {40:02
1y garvent aanstues o Yong - borsewings ' {iR.5%) ' [LERES
4130 96,33
IMeferced paymend diabilises {refee sone (c) Doknw) 1,638.50 7 0K £k
Laws: Curset nusunies of deferred paymcn ficbibiies ’ {5 L0 I {330.44)
262740 GATY.86
51,770.23 . 60,551.55

Repaymene ternas {including surrent itics) and iy details {or .erm Toan fromw Banks:

D ol ehe subsisliary companics have availcd a loan fediy from Yey Bank Limiwd (VI amounting 1o 3 50,000.00 Bakhs ounof which VB has novared T 5000.00 Takhs o St Bask af ndia
{0 Luting che gear, the said subduliaey comypyany has availed mortonuny Bty mven by YBL in Tne with poidedines from Teserve Bank of Tnbia CRBIY a0 9 coiult of wiieh imterests fncluding
IMGEgst L Nseesl) dhae durbag e [rrescaled iy panod A g T 3,73237 takhs was convesed s Joan. YRL hae also revized the repayment seheduls ascondiagly. The ainount
srutsearaling a5 o 31 darch 201 s payable in 28 quartedy insal - T v of i ason 31 March 2021 3 8400 per anaem and inet is payalic menthly, The cotstanding baltance 25 ar 31
hhargln 22T 15 33,696.16 Jakhs (31 Macch 20200 T 144,07 aklss). .

The l@an is se

of first chsge on s

- eyuitablc manm’t ciMedamg M ospiad m Lucknuw {l:cmma&:r roierred 1025 the rujece’ in this ace) lind silnieasunng 1280 Gees Bald Bl T 7 0 e b

- all carqenl zssels and mwvable propeay, pland and equipment of the Project;
« Projects book delns, opeeing cash fows, receivables, commission and intanpille 2ssers {exeluding goodwil) pectaining @ the Praject; and
-l $'ogee s bank abcounds
Vhe borrower shall smaingain @ delies senvice eeserve sccount {IDSIUA} fos one monde's princinsl and intesest sepapmen, prineipal D3RA 10 be manuamet ot guarter proe to commuencenent of
regryent. fugesst DBRA 10 e oreared updtont at the dne of each disbursement,

(e afl 2l sgbsicdiagy campaaics have avahied a Ioaa facdiy from Siale Bank of Indiz (8B1'] amouniing 10 ¥ 5000.00 akhe, Dudng rhe yeat, the said subsidiany company hay avaibed mipraconum
faoaligy goeen by SELmn line woh guidelines (om Resecve Bank of Tadia (RI7) as & resubt of wiueli werests Greludavg inscrest on interest) Jue dutitq; presceibied mosonum peried amaunting
WAL iakhy wese convened o Toam SB has alio cevised the cepayment sehedule accordingly, The amiouat gustanding a5 an 31 darch 3021 is payable in 28 quarterdy insiabnents. The caw of
imarest s on M March 2021 w 0% pa and wwecest & payable monihly, The cuseadiag badance as a1 31 ol 2023 i 35, 000,80 iakis (30 March 2020: € 4971.22 Jakhs).
Tl loan 15 seeured by way of finl pac passy <harge on -
- bl moogags en Medas Hoopir] is Lackaow thereinabier refeecod 16 a5 'the Projest’ in this pote) land admeasuriog 12,50 acter and buiking
- all cuivent assers and movalde paapessy, plas sod eyuipinent of the Peojecy;
- Progeet’s book debis, ppemiing cash flows, receivabley, cummission and inaogible zsser (excleding poodwill) peaaining 1o the Pro;ccl, and
- all Pitgpeet's bank ateuunty.
I'ne burrower shall nuimnin & debie service wserve accennt (DSRAY for one gquatier principal and one rnunth iniceest repagment, pikncipal DSRA to be mainiaimed one quaners prive o
covnnaenttend of teprymient. |oteress DSRA 10 be crenicd up o ar the e oF cach distursemen.

o) Cne uf the subsilaey companies lave availed o Joan ity from Ramakae Daok Limived CILBLY smoaating o € 36, 50000 ks

) The doan s secined by way of by way of hypothecaion of popecy, whee ilyphu:ccalr:d peopecy meany alf poosear and furire Cucrent ond movable propecy, plwn .md cquipness of thy

Taapaiswas, ek

i witioul Bmitaiion, 1he swocke, buok delis, plan asd machinery, seceivables, Bille of gxchange, movable fkings, cyuwipments, computer hacdware, compater o fivate, s iy
spares, b wld asvmranes ad ol nmuh'ca.hotll present and funare whedier now Jying laum of in gases or which acs now Iying.or Frored in araboaz o diadl desealiar ftom Geme 1o time duting
e continezace oF the scewnty 0F Uie loan be brought o ar upon be stored or be i or il the borower's purmses warchaouscs, swrckyads, odowns, but i limited 10 2hose mevable 20 of e
v,

iy The boan o cepayzile an quaneely installmenti sarting from Oetober 2022, Tnteagss i changed a1 the rie of bank's six mandy syagingl cost of funds based fending sue (MOLR)F D% pet
A pay ke atanidy.

v e anwouet) suneanding s s 3 Aifech 2021 5§ 15,030.00 lakhs (31 harch 20206 € 1593000 Takins ).

(0} The Flolbag Cotapany bas avaled vebicke Taan of T 25075 hkhs from Daimler Financiat hoovices fadia Povare Limited wivicls carnes aw intovest st 1T5% pee amanni, sugued by way of

{c}

Fwpsselweeatieen aof vehain purehased vide die sant loan, Fhe loal s cepayable in 48 monthdy snatallmess and wepayment has commicnsed feoas 14 by 2008,

e represtniy Tabalig Tis saedical vquipinest purchased on deforeed papment wems 1 be wepad Boaween Apnd 2026 o Mayp 2023

{Yivs o Bara Dieens iasteaiounedly dept Dliands}




Glubat Healole Liwsitedt (lormenty knowert as (inbal Healeh Povee Limired}
Consolidaied summary of significant seeomning policies and other explsnatory infarmation for the year ended 21 Masch 2621

e elvanpes in the eatitres Talalites aeinop (rom financng netivties ree supnonansed &y {oflows (2 in lakhgy

Pariculars Botrowings . [inence coscf Toral
Mon-gwtront® Cuevend
“TApnLZ0D i S i 1 71 B —— Tm—— TREAY
Lash fowe '
+ Praceods Erom nan-gurrent Trmsings MW - 1,3% 00
- Repaapritsnt bl nowt-cotrut Buretwving (tE324%5 143243}
- Procecd s from qursent basowngs face) - - - .
o P -eaah melpuseme e 270 . {270
- ececst pard . (219841} [ERL T
- Engere s expense fnchaling wmaeres capdtatised) . - 5:223.51 5,223.54
M March 2020 55,185,818 - - B5,185.81
Cash ows:
« Hopuynten el TEuriem haoerowengs (Fe2.2m A
- Interest paid (1,727.08 B N R AT
- Luterest expense findudmg ineeest capiiebised) . - 5,665.35% . § 66535
-« trgerarst of enoeioranm geeod converied s borcowings 103737 {10307 .
31 March 2021 . 56,831.29 - v . 56,821.29

* Tlne includes curcen) matunnes of nancure borowiags.

# Openimg and clasing balanves scpressat infzes ssenied (exchating inteeest acemed on defecced payment liabikities} vutstanding =t the cesprcive prav-end

A5 ot Asar
31 Maech 2025 31 Muasch 2628
(¥ i fakdas) {T in lakhs)
Mo - 21
A Lesge lizhilities - non-currem
Lease alnbities {refer noie $1) 2507207 TIOR8 4T
2B.072.07 TN L
B Lease livbifivies - enrrem
Taase Salndsties {refes nowe 1) 340556 360813
3,505.86 38,1
The ehanges in the Group's lease indsiliies anting from Financing xedvivies can be thissified as follows: (€ inlakhs) B
Farticulars Amoong
Lease Habilivies as a1 1 April 2619 (curent and noa-cortrent) L
Adadignons 4 455
Taieren on lease liabibines 33848
- Ly OEICAS R IAMRIES. . o i e (+232.18)
Tooaae liabilitles 25 we 31 March 2020 {current and non-current} 30696.75
Cihangre o socount of Tease modifications {45.12}
Loeletiasfadiustrneris on aceoun of sarly lermmalion (RO
Pnterest o gt Balibtes ERELERA
Fagmune of Tease babifitwes {Ho3e.84
Kot snteysums rom bessor (12032)
Leuse fubdites a8 ac 3% bacch 2020 feurment and non-currend . 2867193
“Maone - 22
A Provisiong » ned-guerdnt
Beovian for employes Beachie
oty {refec note 42} 2600010 TG
Conypensaced absences ’ . 1,5043.91 133645
4,233.40 3,4508.80
B [Provisions - curreni
|Fropvamn e eovpiloree Bene hits:
Ciaatumy (refoe o 423 SHN4H EYERIE
{ompeasaled abrode A67.20 2T
Vrarasaan for conbngenenst! fnefer note below) 144 TAILE AR .
2,17L58 1.8%2.55
Hidovement of provision far cantingenedes
Cipening bakanee 101508 1T
Add 1 addimomal provesie made dunng e year 8.6 Hob ot
L.cgs - amoont uldised dunng the year - .
187584 §.015.08

[ttt

() e poevasan foy SUMRRTNE PUiRms 1 e eumace al the peesonl probialle ablipaion 1af gash sunllome sowands <debay i campaleton of the wader coascactnn ety pes yresaen.




Glolia! Healih Limited (formeey knowo ne Globat Healih Brjvase Limdted)
Gonsoliduted cummary of significans accouniing policies and other eaplanatory infommation for the year ended 31 Masch 2021

Asat
3L hacgls 2021

Az
31 Maech 2020

Mot - 2

{¥in lukdhs)

(% in lukhs)

A Onher nppeurtens &

iniye#
Lyelerred jrovemsnen granrst 503496 390830
. 3,034.16 3,908,268
¢ Dedermed govemment grant
Opening balance 4, 505,63 INS06T
Cirmnts cecomved dunng (e yras 1,33t.30 2,176,235
foean s Nuleaseud to stricenen of ol and low {1,550.32) 1,620,600
4,277.61 4,305.67
Classified into
héum vhrtent poron 3,634.56 3,908.2%
Clurzera oo 443,45 .39
4,277.01 4,508.67
B e 1o chnge i accuuntug finlicy, provions peas numbers have been restated. For desals, refer naw 4,
B Chiher current Haliliies
Parable 0 standory wthanbes 152157 BilGa7 )
Advanet frunn sustonicis ALY 2IHLGL
X lerzed governmant gravins G435 9139
e fiabiliies 135,55 101,28
i 5,216.k5 4,325.45
# Due to changt m accounting pebiey, previaus yoar nuisbers bive been eesiancd. Fer details, refer nowe 4
Mate - 24
Tradu payables - cutrem .
A Vol cueiansding dues of micee caiopases and smalt peivest 3mady 179455
5EH2.44 1,194.58
“Dischorure andes the Micro, Small wnd Mediue Entoepeves Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Aci, 2006 a5 210 31 Macch 209'{ antd 31 Magch 2020
Puricaiun : H March 2621 33 Wurch 2028
{¥ o bakhis) {3 i fakhey
1 [fhe pringipat amaant and the iitencst due thereon teaining unpaid 10 aiy supplier a8 al 1he ead of eaely accounting pear; 10124 119458
1) { ihe amnpunt ol vre prid- byt DU TN LEaRE SIS0t 1rn-Lb, AI0AR1Y) th. Dhe. 3 FORATs 0 LA p;}mm:mzdud LRy R PR P sk S R
appounied day during cach sssounting year;
gy the amount of micvest due and payable for the peaod of delay ia making paymear [wich have been pant but beyond the appa.rucd day .
durongs dhe pear) bur withoue addurg die inteeest specificd unders Me MSMED Act;
i the amoun of e rest zecosed radl fEMMnIng unpald at tie endl of cach ac\:nunlurlg Yokl £33 i)
v} fthe amtams af furches inreest reamxinig due 4nd payable cven i the siescedig 1oars, until such Gric whea tha (Iceest Oaes 25 Abave At
actually pavcl 4 dhe small eaveqamee, fur the pumuse of disillowance ai a deduciible expenclivusy wnder secpon 23,
B ol ovissadig dues asf ceediloes vilier than nueco coteapnses asd small entemprizes
Vue tes sebatedd practues (vefor note 38} 23437 a2
Bue w odiers .M5.40 1,057.47
10, 142,77 11,279.40
o - 25 )
Crher Enancisl Bubiities » current
ELUnenn Mg s ~I|l TRUT-CALFELH boﬂm\'inp 141977 140813
Cugeznt materties of vehicle Joan 1802 4361
Curcot niavurities o deferecid payvest liabidines LTaIE N3 S30LE
{imeress pedravd IEA5E 471794
Caparal creduiors 335740 G, 57003
Seeuety chposi Rocived 8.50 5.4
VayHoyes selatid payabiles 5,180 W 11533
gher Talpdunes L83 -
15,7750 12, 60600

(Firin sposc fins B dneciiosnfly & trhied)




Globat Health Limited (famcrly kirowr ny Glotad Heoaktt Privaeo Limited)
Consotdaied sumimnry o sigmificans accounting policies and olher explanuiory iefanmation fof the year onded 31 March 2021

A

4

Mare - 1
Ledeered 10y asgers (et

As ol
31 Mareh 2021

Azox
3L hdarch 2020

(2 in Jakhs)

(2 an lakhs)

[V .1 137 . RE R LI T R DI TER L R

Lruabsorded Mevness lasace amd depresiating
Engpburver bue i

Fax inysact of expenses wiich will e alfowid oo pay et bait

Exapuuied fredit bivs am e snd oflier recowaliies
Ripta of e 152005 Astik Base labinies
Lihers

. Peferred iz linbiilios prising on account of

w

(

=

{iiy

Paugfseny, pinest #nd equipment sod swiaeyeble assels

Defereed eas nzsewx (peg)

32088 653,340
L ADABE TP
AL
171887
161384
- 9220 .
§,591.57 7442
(G50 (C74.0%)
16,017,585} (614,07}
R X

Ehefereec eas Habilinics fnet)
Deferand tax liabibiicd ariging on accounl aft
iYeraprerty, (land And cqapinent arl aitagpilide anpew 4903 6
Dhwferr o rax psscts arlsiniy on azeount of
Tinaqbonpee beoefits (10635
Tapeoied ool 1ovs on trade and ot coceivelies - (L5612
Taieee sl erst and lorse paymenls selated 48 Yeasehedd haid (146,263
{ichers IR
- 8it.37
Sulbtsiilaey companies bave veaboprbed business 1ogses incloding vrabzoibed depreciadon) ol T 301741 akhs (3t March Wk ¥ T 82249 Lzl Defomed tax awsets on ansbsorhed basiness losser
{enclughuegy urabrorhed dgpreciasu i) ace recogised 1o the exieut thnt it is probable thar ir will e aiidbied geainst futore xable income. Futther, e uaabsorbod business loster age avatable for s tion
for & pnsirnim gieend of cipht years,
Capon wise movernen in delorred 1o, assew as follows: [ ins lakhiyy
[ L April 209 Recognised in | Recagmised in other | 30 arcls 2620 Hecognised in Recognleed in other 35 Mnecii 2021
sintement of comprehensive sustement ol [enmpechensive invoma
profit and loss inncume profiy and foes
Assclx
Unalzurbed bustness lnsses and depreciaton Ml o221 - 455,30 255 - ER RS
Enarhoper beneds 204 1121 . 25 it i du48 {ite1y M1
T smpacn ol sxpenste which wid be 1owed on - - - 4U6.64 . HI
paymiHi Basis
- : .. 5N LA
K L] {0-48) - 5185 4745
g of vt assees aol oxse halbairies B . - 38,50 - 3550
Liabilities
Frogpenry, plong amd ecpaspgnens andd aaangiule gssecs F{EX ] {6713.9¢) {614.03 {81519 IR IEAL
Subrasenl EERTY {34083 {02ty - ot {126k 2,335,798
g whenaee @y cocdi endideinen £33 .53} . - . .
et defoired tax fswers .62 {34.33) {029 - 2,348.10 X7 2,335.74
€3 ity fakshs)
[Eneticonas 1Apeil 2012 | Recognised In § Recopmised in aher | M Mureh 2020 Recopuised in Recognised in oar 3 Mareh 2021
snteonent of cormprchensive stareenent ¢f | eompreleaslve ncome
profie and loss eame prodly snd loss
Asscty )
fpaengnt s value ol invesimenes [J AT (11215 . - . . .
Bl benelis FS TR X {270, 20) 3BT [RLE (L) 139.23 1363 [RITRE]
Expesicd fredit boas o wadie and onher eoceivables 173176 (L7033} BG4 13621} 111272
High ol wse areers amd lezee Balliies B164Y Sah00 L4620 438.00 163525
Chbors O [ )] 16R43 13013 FRT
Tinlikivie
Preperey, plans and eoquipanicnt and nangdbe zeos (733638 2542585 (4, 190.54) 545 . {4,495.39)
Mot deforred bax sesers/ lehilitigs) {3,122.43) 2,252,058 '58.97 (&1 1 $35.9% 13463 2821
Mewe - 12
fnceme-wox sssebs (oet)
Advance sax {eed of pravishin Tar (s amounting to ¥ 43§36.73 lakbs (31 hareh 2020: 3 34,087 00 bid1s) 4,712,090 £1, 385,75
4.712.55 ¢,505,75
Movernent i indoiRe taa sseets (net) ¥ in fakisy
' aricalars . A & As &l
1Y hlrchs 202E 31 Margly 2020
Upemag balance £,595.15 5,550,450
Adlid Tases pat 159742 501704
foss Durrenn G peovaled for 3O REF N
Glosing bubange 4,712.90 6,595,745

\?\ea!f};

@\Obaf

X

tew Dalhi] =

=
O

4




Globat Health Limited @Forarcrdy known a5 Globel Flealth Frivate Litraited)
Congolidutod suavmury of significant accounting policies and oitier explunatory inforniuiion for the year ended 53 Maceh 2021

FPurthe year ended For the your eaded A
3i March 2023 3 Mareh 2020
(® in lakhs) &in lakhs)
Nate « 26 — - -
Beveaue from oprrations..... .. . - — o R
Incame rom healibeaee serviceey
o pagenn 116,655.00 119412403
Chut pativnl : 13,130.50 98,645.08
fncome from sulg of blaammcy pradugis L su-patienrg
Sale of pharmacy preducis 1,145.32 .
Ouher uperating eevonue: .
Lravenmaet poiol meomc#H : 1,550.32 1,620.62
Clizcal ergensgh ingonne 3320 180.82
EHher spering wrenue 93.57 17745
144,674 .35 156,047.3¢
H Lt 1o dhiege it vivviending pedvy. presiang yedr wineler has bees mestared, Far debeacty, refer moie 49, i ’
Wote - 27
Odher income
Inteeest income on Lok deposit 1,503.42 1,546.89
Ineeest income o olher finaneia) assets mcasuced @t smomtsed cout 44.8] .60
Ineerest insome e refund of income-taxy 2EVAA .
sl income 7189 158,33
Profit on disposal uf piopersy, piael and equipment {ace) 8630 -
Spankarship income . ) 103,45 TE0 55
Revesial of impainies 11y the vater of invesimeats . . 218
Revente siare foom food voure 490 245,04
IRevesue share fam phaseacy ' 206,38 776.39
Liaie ol dle-regognilion of jease linbhilites and nipht of use sy ’ B335 -
Renr concessions (om losnars V2632 .
Miscelianeows incame ’ 471121 . 30252
3,141.83 4,584.50
o atioiut of sl fonwivitivn of fse
INee - 28
Cust of matednls consumed
Phizrnracy, medical 2nd fnboratory consumables refated in-paticor seevices i
Opening sigek 3,614.40 . Ziatasn
-Aih: Purchases finchudies povernment aesitanes of F.nil. (33 Mareh. 2020, 2 ZTASLEBSN s i e e e e e BAOTBAG e L .3330233
Leess: Closiog vagk (49333 (3,614.40)
Maorerals consumed i 33,599,565 3590024
Gongral supes _ )
Opreontg sinck 23750 116,65
A Purchases - 631.20 03,35
Lasu Clasing stock . PBTEOT {237,509
Wdawgrials constined 49063 582.50
Pharmacy and medicot consumzables refated to vale of phurmacy praducts 1o ou-patienrs
Opeang sinck . - -
Al Purchases . 1,270.06 -
Less: Closing, siock [5134.52)
Marerisls consumed 76554 .
COMBES T 32,482.%4.
Nore - 28
Employee benefits expense
Sabmries o wapes*d 44,300, 7% 56,758.60
Comubuion w giovident fund ane siher fuds 1.648.32 '2_029,00
StalT wellan! espieases 43 13348
Hropltoyor shase based pagmient expense (refer note 43) I7LAE 056,47
46,633.55 53,678 05

" Dhating the yoar caded 31 Marel 2021, coployee beaefu cxpenses of T 86.66 iakhe {31 Macch 2020; ¥ 762,66 lakhe) hav been capitabived os a part of ¢apiial wodk in- frongress.

7 This fufrialia, ncludes sshiry cxpense of employes working Fot teseaceh aad devolopment amapating w 2 18,36 laklis (35 Macch 2020: € 9929 Iakba}
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Global Health Liniwed (formecly knowa ax Glubel Hesfth Priviee Limited}
Consolidarad summury of significant accounting policies and nther explaaatory information for ihe year ended 31 Marel 2028

Por the year ended For the yuar ended
M March 2021 31 Maredy 2020
¥ in lakchy) (T in lukdis)
P ettt e et
Inego st uny e boeng 05509 37903
hperest un working eapitat nans 41,74 -
Tittepest an velnche |mu |32 1137
{nterest an lease habidines 300508 .3,!.18.4%:
Enterasl on defecred payroeot liatwlites 5A8.%2 56322
{iher boorowing coss ) ) 1.2% 56,25
[T 5,154.75

T irnring the year ended 31 Maech 2021, bacewing cost of T2,524.34 tkhs 31 daeeh 2020 X 3,828.72 lokhs) ks been caphialised 3¢ part af capiral wouk-in-propress.

Mate - 31
Beprociation and aninrisadnn expense

Depeecinuon of propesey, plant and equiprent# 10,584.83 Y,509.27
1Zeprreciation o right oF use assieis” §,527 89 £,709.44
Aooisanon ofinlr.l}g‘ib}ﬂ [ELONE 288 133,22
. 12,321.43 , i1,503.94
¥ e (o change in necounting policy, previons yesr number bas beew revtaled, Tar deils, sefor notws a4,
During e year eoded 31 Moveh 2021 Dcpr:xntmn on fight te use asset of T 2544 takhe (31 March 2020 :2 nil) has been enplitabised w8 a part of eapinad wosrk-in- prr;.g;egg
Note - 32
Impairment losses on financial askets
Bapected cradit {nss un bade cecevables ' 53016 1,1k 61
Expeceed credil loss on uther receivablis 05 Hy
: 625,95 [REERT
MNoie - 35
Otlier expenses#
Thvwrr auk Fuc] : 3655.60 R450.70
Lasy unl:
itemises - 135,47 13533
Vehitles : 44.35 A6
iLguipimie e 346035 1H65.20
Repaics and mainwannce: "
Tiguipteris e e R, R . 381090 L7
‘Office o . T aksr o 342.0%
Hauilding 12492 221.06
Rates and tanes 1,346,986 143862
Ressiitmicn expunsea 23041 34590
Msucnes 12733 §711%
Teavedioy wad conveyance . 28679 721.95
ConmisiCatan expenies 25952 IR6.50
Auditer's ronanecstion .
Statuberry audil foes Gnclushg takes) 14.75 T4} .
Heimburseowent of expensas neluding faxes) 2.3% il
Paniry caponses . 1640027 §.585.50
Lawndry expenses k.03 40103
Scourity exponses 116625 1,107.5
[Foedily imanspomenl expenge: 485561 4,53 67
Addvgctiverent aad siles prosunion 23879 445,24
Research and development expense® I i2%
Chatsoaurece! aceviges . 548,64 G556
Retmner and eonsulan: fee - inedicat ) iNTITGS 537892
Fanbistion ee §76.3%5- 308346
Lol andd professicn) fee 2340 2,792.75
Praiag and sinusmery : . 444,37 SOH. IR
Sulreriptitn s swmdsecsip charges 104,28 16,68
Cowparate sovial resposabiliny oxpenses ©1MESa 2124 4%
Tlucciers’ siegug feps 12,99 LA
fhank chags 540,71 A ur
ovewigm exchanpe « kss fnet 20804 135,43
Avsets wridten off 125,70
Lo an dispoil of propety plant 20d cquipment (e . 9.45
Tranveh, boadiag and ather related expenses inc sonferences 123,23 SRT.MG
Reecivaliles wiler expor boaelit pehone woaten off ’ 474,83 .
Masgelocous expronses 55348 55T Ak
4341519 43,906 43
¢ This i professicnal-feos ingurred for zezeacch and development work.
# Luno the year <.|1dcd 3 Mareh 2021, other expenses of € 2(‘:1 A6 Sakhy 1 March 20300 T SUD.2T Ilhe} bas been caphtabised as 4 paet of capital worck-ae -t {‘aiptsf.
v, .
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Giobal Healtls Limitvd tfamaedly knowst 03 Giabud Health Private Limfred
Consolidated swninary of significant accounting policies and other explanetary information for the year ended 31 Marel 2021

Por the year ended Yor tw year ended
31 Muech 2021 31 March 2020
% in Jakhs) (¥ i Jukchs)
Mot - 34
- FUR SXDENRCE . s e < et e . a

Clurrct 0% - for tic year 3,677.20 407183

Curent iax « cacher yems Frut .
Lrefereed 1ax credis . L 13,3B4.34) {2:417.70)
Tax expense tecognised in the siement of profit and loss 305.83 i 2,.754.07

it magore compoments ol income e expease and the reconcilinton of sxpected tax oxpense based on tie domestic effective 193 10t¢ of the Geoup ot 25.168% and the wepncd jax
expunse iy prohit or boss are os follows: ' .

Avcounting prafic befope favome ox . 3,246.50 0, 38696
Adel: Lovses incureed Dy subsidianies and jaing ventuee un which no defesred 1ax aszel is crented ' 1,034.95 4,708.54
Accounting profic before incanic tax (gross) 4,481,51 13,095.58
At Tnckit's seatuteny ineeme 4ax gate of 25.168% (39 March 2000: 25, 16A%} 1,228.58 330547
Tax effyct of amouns whicl ars not deducrible {tanable)y in caiculniing wxabile i

o ienpact of sansory deduction aowed s per Fneome-tay Act, 196] under the head income from 'Howse Propemy’ L (50,98}
T dspact of defened s on iops in value of invagiments . YIRS
P impact of expenses which will never be atfowed wader Fncome-tax Acr, 1961 . 56436 Rvy Iy )
T inpact on ageount of enanfe in income Inx 1 . .20y
Tax impact of wnabserbed business fosses (L0018 -
WA nngiact a0 reipect of earfier pears . 1201 .
Dths ) 13481 ) 17.90
Tax expenscs . ’ 365,83 1,954.07
Nutg - 35

Euaraings per share {E15) -
Eaerngs per shase CEPSY s deteronined bascd an the nol profit mecibuable 1 the shasghioklers, Bosic camings per shate is computed using the weighted avesage smmber of shaces

outstiading dusing the yeae, Dilvied camings pee shase is compuied wsing the weighied average sunber of conmon and dilutive commun squivaleet thates outrmading during the year,
sakept where the resul would be anti-dilutive, .

Erofit uttributnbie w equity sharehalders for basic and diluted EPS . 2,880.73 3,632.89
Weighted average number of equity sivires for basic Egw - ' 251 408 994 251255311
Fttuer of dilution - weighiage aveeage number of potemish cqity shiares on aczount of conplayes stock opions™y . 64739 1,304,763
Weighted dwerape minber ol equity sharcs adjusicd for the effegi of Silition Lo e 252,056,185 281,559,891
Barninpe per equity share
Bakc 1% 145
Patdmed ; [BP 1.4

“Mie Holding Gompang bad ssied compubiswily converible preference shages which ae oxpeeted 10 be converted inig wquity shaces and Uee sace hus boen doly considured in
cateabticn of basic carning pre shace, tonsidering maximum number af saquity shares to be issued upon conversiun.

“Shace oprions {uavested} sader vie ERO1* lan 2014 aud S0P Mg 2016 ace coniidered to be patentind cquity shavex, They hwve beea ineluded in tha deteamination of dileted camings
per s 10 the esieat  which they s ditudve.

& Subsequint 1o the yearend, the Board af Diceooacs of ihe Folding Company has approved thawe sphit of Class A equity shaces feom ¥ 10 gor share 1@ € 2 ggr share and the some has
subsequendy been duly approved by the shacholdess of the Holding Company. As jrercabed undes i AS 33, Tagnin s pet Share' , the Geowg has presonted basic and dilutod shrings
per sivnee o consideding the aforementioned shace splic for ihe currein ap well 25 eevioos yeae,

{Vhis sniase bus Deva satentionatly bt blinds)




Giobual Fealth Liniiced fremerly hnouwn as Glubaf Mealih Private Linrirod)
Congaliduted summary of sigoificant nocounting pelicies ard other explunutary infoemation for the year ended 31 Marely 2031

Mate - 50
Fuir value cdisgiosurs

(£} Fair value hivrseely
Thelolluwing s plainsthejodpementsand o s rrrrde g i ML U L 4T Ol I (07 i) B 6 T T o s P P ST g s v provide an indicatinn sbhoue
remrnmre s s S BlUGE {cii'alnility—of—ikmnputﬁ-wcﬂ-imlucmimng-fair-mlue.—t‘n HGrowphas clusifiedqirs Grancik insrromeaTs i ks Hes 15 g sandind. s
Level 1z quoted prives anadjusied) in sctive markels for financial instramems.
Level 22 iapsuts other than gusted prices included within Levd § that ace observable foe the axiot oc iabiliry, cither directty o nditeelly
Level 3: unobmervable mputs for the asser or habibly.
Valuwiban techiniques wsed to determine fair vatue
The fair walue of dw finavcial assers ned Gabiliies aee fnctudled a1 the amount that woule B¢ regaived L sell anoassor and podd o teasfor 4 linksilivy in an vedirly trasaction Betawon okt
particypants. The Tallowing nielhods wery vsed & sstiniate the fir vatues
- Feade recewvables, cash andd eash equivaluig, athes bank balences, loans, other current Gnancish wxses, 1ade prgaiies nod othee current fingaeiab Falsilines: APPROSiIMAtE theic Careying mmounts
Taggely shoe to the shoettuem mavoriies af these instruments, .
- Botrowings whea by the Growp ate st per the Grovp's credit and liquidity sish assessmnent and thee is o tomjwmeble instremen having the simlar retms and eonditians with related sccurivy
iy plediged aad herce the caryng vadwe of the bawowings sepresents the best estimate of faie valae,
i} Vais value of asses ond Nabithics which aee measnred at anvoniged eost for whieh fair value dre Sincloged ¥ in hihfl
- . At at 3 March 2021 As al 31 March 2020
Particulary - -
Carrying valae Taie value Caerydng value Fair vatue
Finaoeiat ansots
§amns ’ #34.15 836,15 09,61 Pt
Frade recovatles 12,362.83 13,362,835 1491509 491500
Cativand cash cquivalents ' BHGGT 694007 1475712 F,757 12
Orther baak Lalpnges 21,98%.47 2198347 o3I HEi255.17
Dlwer naneiad pssers ’ i 5,019,588 50 BER 570000 370404
Totel finsncial asects 48,060 60 48,149.0¢ 46,521.03 94,523.00
Borrowings (including cucrent maturivies of longe1eem borcowingy) G A5 TR B4 45078 62, 193.80 2,191,580
Teade payables . } 13,1551 13,165.2) 13,074.04 13074004
Chher finpocin! linbiliies {oxchuding cusrent marunitios of Igitg- leems bivreowinps) D03800 SB2R00 1£,162,81 HREEE:E]
Total finwncial fabilities 86,642,909 86,642.09 86,431,658 65,4565
Noe - 37
Financial itk mennggment
{i} Financipd instropiems by catepary (# i faklis}
Talr valuel Amonised cast
Fartieulars . Ao at Asm C Asw As wi
33 Magch 2021 | 31 Merch 2020 31 Murch 2021 I} March 2020
Finaocial asetrs
[avustmeings 1Y) - . ' .

. Loans . —— - - . . BiGaS -l
‘Fencke reveivables : . - 13,362.63 HLA15.00 .
Cagh and cish uyuivalenrs - - 6,46.67 14,7512
Crher bank balances - . . : 2tSHNAT HLIRA1T
ther Mnmocinl assers . - 5040848 5T
Tatat Krrancia) nesets 5,00 - 48,169,846 45,521,803

© [Fimcial abitices
Barspwinggs (including cureent manisitics of non-cecrent TheH EGwings) - . 11, £ 5978 G218
barase bambitities _ . . L Xcr ko) A 4T
Tracle payalles . . 13,3582 P3,07451
Cher Fuancial liabilivies fexeloding curgent manirities of non-cuersat Dorowing) . . 9,028.00 TRIER S
Tow! finaneial Habilitjes - + 115 320,92 417,124,445

il anvesiment is mensunel 81 7 value though other CoMPrORCNNYE INTOME and % cateporised 25 level 3 i Gaie value hivenecly

(i) Rigk mansgemens
The Group's aeuvites expose 1t e mackel risk Horegen excliange and interest tisk), Niquidity risk and eredit vtk The respectve boaed of diveeion of the Heldiag Company ang audicies semenicred
e the Graup have bwecall srspoaibiiy e the esmblisheent and wiersight of the «isk mansgement framews rk. This noie explains the sousces of cisk hick the entity is cxposed to aod how the
eutity sanages the sk and the relared inspact i the financial sratements.

Hisk Expusure arising from Measure meet Mansgement

Lrody sk Logay, trade reecivables, cosh and cash cynivalonisi Agring tanlysis Divewification of baok depbsits and crodht
other bank Dalances aad other financial nssees tirity and segulae menitoning and folow
aeavigd aL amocised cost uge

Lagqundety esvk Borowiags, trade payabler amd other fmaneialiCosh fow lorecasts Availalality of commiteed crodil hines and
Falulitios Yorrowing facilitivs

Market fizk - form exeliampge Fulure cammercisl tanaachions, recognised financisliash | Moy forpensting  seasiwity|farwmrd fortign exchiage contrages
nssets and liabibities nor nated in Inds lyzis
rupec

flaedt oot — anterest e . Long-tenm boecawings at vanable chles Sensitrity analyais v pesilicntion of bustowingy




Globad Heatth Limised (fenerly known us Global Hoth Private Limfted)
Conzolidated swmmuny of significanr accounting policics mid ofher eaplunatery infonmnacion for the year ended 31 Macsls 2024
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M AL 3 SusioInee O 0 1y 40 b fioanciat asgey s Lo piect 35 contacpalibligieas, The Latup’s.capodue o gredit £ ks iluenced iy~
2§ asven. Thia enreping amowne of Grancial ssaets sogresest the masimum crodit sk CRpOsLe,

v al vach finm

A dhefaufl on o feaneial assed i when the countrpany Rils (o make conted tual paymens 2 frae ageeeit eons. Thie defimiten of defutle s dewermisad by considesing she business eaviranment in
whith eriiy epeaies avsd alliee @ntee- econoniic feloes. ’

Vi CGorotap T ceeit rish wanngement policy i place 1o limdt credit dosses due o aan-pecdosmange of counterpartios. The Givomp smoniars s eeposuee 1o Ceedid tiak ononn eryeing basis. Asicti

are weiien off when thee iy 1o seasanable expecrition of cceovery, Where loans and receivables are weilien off, te {heoup continues t coglge in enforecment actvity (o attenipr 10 rweover the
Jues.

Vewdr veceivivhics
Tiw Graup choscly monites e csvditworthiness of di regaivalles taoupgh intitaal systeas that are configured 10 define <oedia Hnits of o vi, theeeby, bimiting the eradit ik o pres

cateubsted msannts. The Group wer 3 siphificd appooach Qlifctisne expereed eredit oss model) for the purpoie of compuiaian of expuated credit oss for tade 1oecivabiles. ixpected coedit losses
aee tetdnted an eollietive basi for each of the follovwing categarivs « ’

Cacpory Inpute for naensurement of expecied eredit ) ABsumpgiong
ossas )
Lhovg i Hhfermation on dedustons mado by govesnmem{Trede nceivabies autiianding faf more thas ro yiwns 3 consideeed ireccomgenlle.
Eagenciot o past yoork Allowaace for axgected ceedit 1055 on receivaliles outsianding for kas than tw

yeaes is recognised baved on expecied deduciions by oveenmin) agencics.

Mon-pravecanent

Judividuals B "fhdividual costores wise trade ccoeivables and] Teade Teceivables autitandimg for mot then Iwo pears sre conpdered irecovomiie.
infacmation chiamed Hirough vales recuven follow] Other ecoivaliles are comsidered good due 1w OnoIg comounmcition wit
ups . SRHOmMEC,

Coapruntys Collectinn againg oulilanding recavalbles in pasti Teend of collections swde by the Ceolp over o petind of s yrars freceeding
yeary batauee sheet date and cansidering delfult 1o have ocouered i seecivabler ase nat

collecied fivt o thian w years.

Thid party sbanniztsaors of insumace compames | Coliection against gutszading feccivables in past) 1rade tecovables vurseanding {or more than two Years s considered iTreeovesable.
' yoasi Allowance foe expested ceedit Joss or cecaivables aunmading for less Hkm wo

yenrs is reeopnived based on expacted dvtfuctions by rhird pany adientiseragey.

Thlice Customer wise smude reccivables nnd infoemation Specific alfownacy is nade by assessing Panty wise utsanding recewabics baged on :
chsned theough sules regovery follow ups COMMUIEALIEN b Lweun salos toam aod cusiotios, e

Coodatr outef eatady rqpueiesndounss stoed cobes firaeds uslanees )
Uit sisk cehated 1o cash and cosh equivalients and Lask deposits 5 managed by only yvesting in deposits with daglily

d bzaks ansl fiazacial insdiions md diversifying bank deposits and
eeownes @ Jifferent banks. Credic eisk 4t ¢ongideond lew bcause the Group deats with highly mied Lanks and Bagncial instiution.

Votectans” ckiid aEfore faciasctiad ol . \
Lasams ansed ithyee futaciil assers measured ar amertized cast includes secunty deposils and other recvivables. Credin risk gelaced o daese financial assews is unanaged by moniioding the cecoverabilig
0 Suein oty conbimnessty, while 3l die same 1iime inreonat conteel spivem e in plee epiune the pnosuits nee within defined limis, Credic risk s consitiered low becatge the Greup B in
pewsessinn of the undedyitg fsser (0 case of secutty deposi) or ar pur teade espericice fin e of unbibud cevenve Mom pasteit and other wecivables from mvese ShAing 2 ecangemeatsy.
Vunlier, the Liroup treates peovision by assessang individa! financial asset (o7 expretion of vy ceedit loss basis 12 month expected eracliz loss mode,

{68 spwne dar Deess Catesiosiatiy fE? By}




Clobgl Health Limited fformerly knows is Glabof Meaith Privae Litfred)
Conzolidstad summiry of significane cccaynting pelicics and other explanalory information for the year ended 3t March 202

[} Credit riak expasure
# Nixpetied eredit logs for lade reconeables vader simplificd nppronch i.o. provision soatris npproach usiig [nsvarical trends,

Ao I T - R {Fin fukhs)
........................... o p— s I S e e e Noa-go\-cmmcnl
Individuals Curporaeys Third party Others ‘Tatal
aelminsigirany of
[ T
Compuhics
Grress eterying value 11,870,820 1,142.15 1,293.33 LHIEM LEERT) 19,94
Lacas: Bpucred coedit bos {intpairmaan . 3,223 .53 5.0 1.155.41 941,57 48985 0,597.57
(.‘ar!yitig sevound (e of impassmentd 8.656.30 385,14 100,72 AH68.74 34224 13,362.43

* Ruree wtin, vehading uistanding Laliice from partiss net of expectied Crodit 1085 of Sar LEOROMIT THACITICRINES Liy (ALY L ovamment Foallh Seheme (OGS amounis 11 1 3392 65 1kl
and Hxv-senvceman Contribnoey Hegit Scheme (ECITEY amounts to ¥ 147796 Inkhs.

Aot M March 2020 (¥ o babcsy
Trardculars ' Governmenl® Nos-govemniend .
Individuale Corpursies “Third prarry Dhars Youu|
sdministrators of

ANEUrANGe

compHnicg
Grows eanying vaiay 12,625.80 99359 1,734.3% +319.51 130805 AOMHE. 3N
loogs: Tlxpecced aredit boss nypaiomant) 3061435 a4l T RREE THG DR GAH67.42
Corrying amount (ner of ingairment) 2,558,714 35248 919.89 3,547 41,77 34,1500

* detet wlin, including outstandiny bakace from partes nel of expeeied eredit lodi of timifar econamic chameteristics i.o., Conkral Goverment Health Scherne (SO amounty w2 3.496.24 Ixkhy
and 1x-rerviceman Contriburory Henith Sclieme [ECHE) smowats to 31 March 2020: T 246815 okhs, .

i) tinpreaaed cecdit Iosser Jor eiher Giangial assets (measused af an ameunt squal o 12 months expected ¢rodil losses)
Asar M Warch 262

- {® it loklis)
Particulars A Belimated grogs T Exprcted ¢redit Carrylng smaunt et of impairment
. cumying amouns st defoalt ~ losees provivion
Lonns 56,15 - 83615
Cosle and cash cquivsbears 6667 . fi 667 .
Chlwer bank Balanees 20,983.47 . 21, 885.97
Criher Boaners] asser; 5,252,157 23230 SR8
Aot 3 haecly 2020 ¥ 50 balchs)
Particufare Estinyured grose Bxpected credit Catrying améunt net of impairmasit
crtrying amovnt ad defaul loskes Trovision
Joeies . : Gy ' . .41
Crsh and castt vquivaleat: 14,787.1% . . 1475732
Onhaer Bamk Dalasces 10,255.17 . W5
Uit furantil assers 5,090.64 13660 FRCIE
i} Reconciliation of cxpecied credit loss for other Rnaneiols aascd and trade recelvablen {¥ in jalehs)
Tegoneiliatian of lags allowance Daliee finaneiat asso1z Tradde
) racetvalies
Lass allowance en | Apel 2014 156 60 AMRE B
Alowanue for expected coedit boss - LARIE:H
Loss oliowsnce on 3 Murch 2020 - 136,60 6,067 42
Allwanee for capecied coedit fus w53 33006
Loss allowance ¢n 30 Murcl 2021 ) i 23239 6,597.58

The boss alowraee i respeet of trade seteivables has changed duc 10 merense i gross caceyieg 2mownt aad change in expected vecivery eales,

{b,

pii

Liguichity nish
Jaguidtivy sk w5 ahe risk that the Group will cacownter difficalty in meeting the ebligations assecinted with its Tinancial abilitics hat are seuled by delivenng b o another Aonncial asser. Yhe
Cry's apprach o managing Tiguedity 3s 10 casue, that it will have safficicnt Tiguidity to meet it Balsiires when they are due.

Yhe Gootp eaantams fesibiliy funeling by maintaining availibibity under commiued eredit Nines. Mnnngcmc-u owniton U Growps kgudicy pUsititn {eompeisiog the undmwn bryrtenving:
fueiltres budowd and cash fal sash cguivilents om the basis afl expreied cast flows,

he Group takes watn accoust the hquiday of e sarket n which i entity opeeates.

donuriives df Bnenelal liabiiting

Flig folliowing ace che ebmming contractaal marurtes of fasneial tislilivies a1 the sepoating date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, snd inglude conmmotual LB AAPMGILE AR eNChge

the smpact of et agrecenents. '
! {% in dukiiny
As a1 31 March 202§ Less thun 1 year 1-3yeacs Mere thon 3 years Tatal
Mon-denvalives .
Berrmmpwaige i a1 15, 7L 48 39,298 35 65,1 74455
Feose imlsdnies 4 04029 1330 1763182 015 5 20
Trade payably 1%,155.3E - - [ENES R
b finaneiad habbaoes ‘),trlﬁa.[ll . N i
Towt : : : 333239 25,959.87 318,935.48 176,282 48
\e\e ajm
. <
&
L3 | Now Deftn | -
o) ;i
O/

i



Cialyat Healih Limited (.I'F:!fmaz{y Ko wy Globad Bewfil Faivare Lindted)
Consaiidured sunumaty of sipnificant uccounting policies and othor exphinsiony information far the year ended 31 March 2021

¥ in luddhs)

A i 31 Murch 2026 Lcss than § year

L-3years Mare than 3 years Tozat
Min-defvarives
| megeviags, s - e i - IR SRS W 11X £ S 13 1'oY Y3 WRANELY Y17 SO et i
Lazs Bl 4,289.14 BIL681 36T 6,41 504
Trade payaiite I 3T 04 - - 1307404
Uhilser Baanceal ikt s I §,103.84 - F . T1iG581
Fora) PN TEE] 72,666.85 330,835 SETIIRE |
T Crvoupr absr baas aeeess 10 the following undern Lorrowang from baaks ab the eod of Uie reporing pedod.
¥ ina lakhs)
Farticulary Ak a As at
) 31 Murch 2021 31 Murch 2020
‘l_:ndmwn hpirowing faulngs KR REIEH 21, 280.32

(=) Marker sk
{i} Foreign exchange nsk
The Group lias inteenationsl Liamactions ad is exposed 0 frign exchangs sk sdting from forcign cucconcy mnsactions (impares and cxpos), Foneigy exchange risk arises fram fuue

commmerciad masaciions and rweopmived sesots and hinbilitres denaminated a n cugrendy that i not the Groups functicnat curency, The Cioup hay nipt hedped its foroipe exchange weevivalabys and
payalidcy as al 31 hiarch 2024,

Forcign cuirency ogk cxpusure:

A ot 3 Maoech 2021 Ag a3 March 2020
Barviculars R Fareimm gurn INR Foreign cur INR
SUCTRE SHITEREYT i Lubde) Feign eureency (¥ in dakhis)
Asita
Twbe redevenlion {grossh s 242.27 [ ] GHAA0
25797 | L4221
Liabititics
Trade payabies ' EURE [ER 1 EUROD 1955
Teade payalies j11:1v) {01 USD 1708
Ieade pavalihes Gy 62,74 GLI 23234 *
Delered papment Sabdices 350 206,74 S GE
Pelerecd pagrment alilive, CURD 5,646.18 BURO 4,185.36
6,115,823 5,835,035
Fuasitivity
The sensivity of peolis or Toss 1o changes in the exclinge mies adies from foreim currency denominated Gnancial instrumcis. ¥ daa Laiclys)
Parrigulary 31 Mlarch 2021 31 March 2020
Cumency Euchinge rate { 'Buchange rue Exchange raie Exchange rate
mareine by 3% | decreuse by 3V intronse by % dégreass by 6%
Assets '
“Frade recervaliley fross) usn .62 {B.62) A1.2t 4124y
Liubilitice
Trade prynbies LR 040 {3,085 1.37 (117 o
Terde payalries LR 040 {000} 142 {103 -
Teye pagables GHP 168 {1.a8) 3 {1394
Peferoed pagnent Balilitics LISL $2.20 (1320 2184 (2254 .
Belecocd papmend lalibities [ W {e} 169,39 {109.3% el ] {26313} ..

(i) Intereet rae risk
The exposure ol e Group's boetowings to intescit rle changed 3¢ the end of reporting period aro s follows.

Fhe Group's vorivbie cale borrowivg is subject 1 mterest rale. elone is the overal exposure of the bormawing
Trarti¢ulars ) ) ) :

¥ i laichy)
31 Maech 2020

31 Murch 2021

Vaniable ray Dittowing 56,724.90 55 03,70
Tutal borrowings 56,224,96 HETTED)
Seneitivisy .
Peadin aar logy 15 seosibivy 1o lighe e Juwee s sntere st expense fram borreawvings as a cesu) af changes 40 indeerst rates, {T i lakhs)
Yurticularg i 31 March 2021 3 March 2420

Interest eaes ~ anezense by 100 baxix painly
figereat mawes — secease by 1GHY basis poun

Eérig
50725

(530.4¢}
53006

Linange dease wbligntiun, vebicle Toan and deforred payment Labilitis ace at fswd care,

(2is goewr buar frere duteectionndly ft fekentz)




Globaf Fealth Limited fformseddy kaovwn s (Fobal Mealth Privare Limired)
Consolidated summary of sighificant accounting policics and other explanatory informsrtion for dic year ended 31 March 2031

MNuoie - 38
Retated party transactons

—ITmm«ﬂmﬂmmhmwm'em'{ﬁ“ma s Jtcl‘ued Py Eﬁtmlms, Ui dnied oF (W HTEd PATnes, Trasach
el By ihe nianageaiEst Tid green Below T

STV W ;demsf'" "
iy Endsies where controlfjoint comrol exises

Inint vepbare

{1 Medanra Duke Resenrch Inptine Private Lindred (refor nowe below)

The Board oof Bireciars [the Boaedy of Medant Doke Research Institute Private Limited (2 joint venmre) in s mecting held on 19 June 2019 hed tespived 1o eitiate the
process of winding up of the afocemensiomesd entity and subsequently, they have inigated the process of voluniary liquidation of the said entity in accordante with the
provisions of te Insolvency mnd Bankouptoy Code, 2016 cead with Tnsolvency and Bankoaptey (Voluntary Liquidation Process) Reguladons, 2087 This hae alse bien
alfirmicel by the sharehokders in the Annual Geaerat Meeting (AGMT] of Medanta Duke Researeh Institute Private Limited held oo 24 September 2039, Duting the year, on

© 25 Februane 2021, the officiut Bguidator bhas submitted final application for liquidation/winding up of the said entity with Natiosal Company Law Tebunal fNCLTY.
Tdowever, the final order from the MCLT 15 nwaited.

i1} Individual who exercise control over the Halding Company

31 March 2021 31 March 2026
{ I2r. Naeesh Trehan® {i) Dir. Narash Teahen
* Bewird ehie #hls aiiibehle as per Asticles of Asoociation, Pre. Naresh Trehan exenises controf over the boitfing, Company,

ifi) Key management peesannel (KM

31 March 2021 : 3% Mareh 2020

(is 13r- Mavesh Trehan « Clwirman pad Mansging Direcior (i) 1>r. Nareshs Teehan — Chainnan and Managing Director
{iiy Mr. Shnit Sachdeva {3 M Sunt Sachdewn

i} nde. Rawi Kant Jaipuria . (1) Mr. Ravi Kan Jaipuris :

(vt M. Neersa) Bhaeaduen (ivh'Mr. Rohit Sipshimalani {upto 26 Sepiember 2019
{v) Mr. Sanjeey Kumnr {vy Mr. PMeceaj Bharadwa)

{p M Pankaj Sahni {el) M. Shapama (hona fupte 24 Febaery 2020}
(\'ii) Wy, Udairam Thad Koatiady {frem B3 June 2020 uplo 21 Feloroary 2021} (i) dr. Sanjees Kunar

{vinn) Mr. N Shanker Bhacia (from 23 Mareh 3021) (uiti) M, Pinksy Saln

Gix) M. VYikeam Siagh Mehin [from 25 Janoary 2021}

{x) we. Venkotesh Ratnosamd (from 23 Maceh 2021)

{xit M Peaveen Mdhagan (from 10 July 20200

i) Relptives of KMF

" 31 Marchs 2021 and 31 March 2020

Nasue of Relatives Rc!aﬁonshlp with KMP
Mr, L. Sachdeva Facher of M. Sunil Sachdeva
Brs, Spvivt Sechdova nother of Mo, Sondl Sachdeva
Mus. Shovan Treban Uaughiter of D, Blacesh Trelian
¥irs, Shyed Trehan ) Daughter of Dr. Naresh Trelin
MErg. Madi Techan Wike of e Naresh T'rehen
My, Mawgen Trehba : Brother of Dr, Nagesh Trehan

v) Enterprises under the conol/joint control of KMPs and their relatives or where hc individual exercising contiol over the Holding Company is exercising
signifieant influence or'is 1 KMP, with whom rangactipns have been undertaleen or whose balances are outstunding:

3 hiarch 2021 ' 31 Maorch 2020
Y FAN Global India Prvaie Limited MIFAN Global Tndia Povare Limited
{ijL.aw Chambier of Japur & Trehan Lo (iLaw Chamber of Kapur & 'rehan
i hakha TIPA Privae Limred {iiiyRaksha TPA Private Lirniled
{iv)Sharak Flealtheare Private Limited {iviSharak Healtheare Privae Limited
Wihangeage Architccnire Body {(LADB) {“ILanguape Archiecure Body {LAB)
feifVadganin Skill Dnscinene Privare Limived ) {riVidyania Skilk Tnztture Private Lionied
{erivleclanta institoe of Education & Rusearch {nust) (vifiMedama Instiwee of ducaim & Rescareh {Urast)
(it R} Comp Limaied (i Corp Vieited
{sx3fevvan Jutermationsl Limited {:Devyant Tnceenativeul Limied
M iagna Labs Peivine Linited (x30iagae Labs Privaty Limited
{2848 Tafarech Prvale Limied (O AS bfotech Privive Limited
{xii}V'arun Beverapes Limsigd sty Vanun Beveegpes Limied




Glebal el Livsiied glonnecdy knoeng sy Glirfsal FAcalth Privaee Jdimdied)
Coustliduivd sumntry of sgaficont accounung policies sad ot cxplanatocy infummaiion Jur die year ended 31 hurel 2021

tay rameacions il rebucd pantics conded Sl in e ordinaey eouree of buineess

4P in bk}
Rkmed panizs
Tndivdualy wie Joi venune Key wanagement | Biuerpriics undet the
5N Tonicuwlupy . Yeur ExEreiies conal peionnsd and diie| coniral of KAST4 and igjr Tatul
phas La by LR L S I [ F T T TR e8]
. ] - e R R T R S Th TG
e

Mlednins ke les » Eannuted [ PO

bt b ]

ch IOk

Masdanes bitanete of lvestion b Research (Tisn

e R e 3 Maedh 2020 n T s e
iy Togpd coust e B R T T
Drevyan Iatgenation sl Fachites ¥ Murch 2021 . 1 o R o Elj i s
[ e . 3 hiareh 2026 s . . - - 555 245,53
A, |Roswismen expenses : e e 245,53
3 Masch 298 : - : TS e .
—— 30 Macch 2020 R T " T s .
SR : - :
3‘_. -.h _2-?-2-0_ - - sgs .‘—.—. .
31 Mareh 2021 B
k1] h[‘.lrl‘!l_ 2020 - -
| 3t idawh 2071 T ) -
- —e 31 Adnich 020 i T s sttt PRS—

crreig ol gapenice

vpane Diterawgnrd Lunsl .. St Blach 202E — - (A L%
) 31 Magch 2020 e - ‘-
arer Wit ST - e e e e
M March 301 e - 51,51
M hinech 2025 o e BPRAG 3, 000,45
e e s 1 o et e | o 3 BEAICD 342G _ : W
hasub, Heotduare Mieate Lanied '“"!ME} = .
. 31 March H2¢ - 1 .34 24

31 hiarch 208
L N Mach 20
31 hlagh 2001
3t Ak R Y

Rf Cospe sk ... 3 hiarch 2024

s, Sastn Sadubera

1 hinech 2030

30 ddmryiy 2021
. . "R R 2020
31 Magcls 2021
31 March 2636

Yiran Bevemgen Lameted

Liewiant lierspianal Lenitech
ko Sdui

31 Masch 2020 -
H blarch 2020

M N 202 N
Uhlwhzz 1.

31 blawec]) 2021

J3 0 husue of situse cupival {inctuding secun

3 hlarch 2021
Iv 2029

Trankag Baiin

e I
3t Nfarcly 202
3L Maveh 2020
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Glabal Mealth Limited fomiecly bnows w1 (labdf ieehth Privews Linhed)
Corsalideled sumuniary of ngnificant accous ting pedicies knd cibicr ouplaasiany information for the year endied 3 Macol 2621

{h Closing Datance with reloted panive in tie ardinary conese of busingas :

[Einlakhg)....

- Melated manice

{ndividuals whe Jaint voongne Koy mianugenent | Encerprioon unde the
% M, Hertiendars Vent txoreives caniigh perssmiec] and their|consgl of KM Pe and their]  Fn
aver the Holding relalivey pelntives e wlire KA LPs
Comprany B¢ LONIALGLL

b fEguiy shaee canical

3 March 2021
3 March 2020
31 Mureh 203t
31 Barch 2020
3 March 202t
M dbarely 2000
34 hiargh 2020

! Morch 20

[t Teghan

Feva Jontly with Mrs. S Sachdewn

] Covp Limited fach 2020

SO e . 31 March 2020
s o | B pRYBUCS o

Ly, Noresle Yeehog T M March 1023

o . N . M Mureds 2020

Sumd Sarhdee, T e ierte 2031

3% hlurch 2020
3 Mauch 2001
3% March 2020

IEAN Githal budia Privare Latrnted

Law Clhambser of Rapur & e B0
o N 57 Mk 7090

34 March 302t
3% March 2020
33 hlarch 3024
31 ek 2024
34 hiarch B2t
38 Msecl 2020

Lotrpminge Archatoemurr Body

Vazgries Laskss Provane Limaed

| Other reeshabeley

b b

30 harch 2020
31 Mol 262t
b o 2020
3F Wlapgl, 3031
b Rlwrel: 2020

xa Foistitarg uf |

M

Ligwpant fntean

i ; ? 3E hineeh 3021

Hokiha VA Private Larnted e e N 509
31 bhaces 2021
31 Maveh 2029

3 hbaech 202|

. R 11 Mpreh 2000
: 31 Abaech 20E
s B Lovsed , 1 e 3239

o B eI L IT T S, ST 31 hlx

Shacak Meatlicme Precare Leovieed

1 Ceirya Lansited]

Drevgnik Eveomahanal Lamued

31 blash 2o
31 Blarch 2520

a8 Infarech M e Fannicd

Vo bre

"3 iarchy 2021
31 Mlaech 2004
“ Ths 16 dhe et e asend Badanes a3 he holdsag cotmpany bas recorded imparmen far cnlire bakanee in calios yedcs.

Muodtanis Cloke Rusearch rsrre Poanae Linvted ferodd”
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Globul Hualth Limied {formecdy kaown as Glebal Benlth Fifvare Limiied)
Consolidricd swanmiry of significant accounting pakicics and othes explavatary informution for e year euded 31 March 2021

How - 39
Capital munsgrement

<=0 p1ause Grospt-abiline1o-conlinue 4 o gobngs conven, and
Bngg ¥

fi}
(i)
i)

(v}

(i)

Do Gipup a0l liva "‘Jlﬂlﬂ_ﬂ_‘d‘\%i\g‘@réiu} ATl

- P inaiertain opticsun eapital saructure aind 1o raduce cast of capital

Managernent assesess the capital cequicoments in ozder © maintadn an efficiens overall finaneing struetuee, The Growp manages the eapital swweiure aud makes adiusunonis 1o

it bn the fight of changes in cconumic conditions and the nsk charscerdstics of the underying 1vsets. The Geoup is aoe sub
Giroup has complied with dabt covenants ag per the 1ernss of the borrowiny facility arrsngements,

waivsr. The Group manages itz eapinl requirements by uverseciag the geaGng ralko:

et e exgerualy imposed copitad requivementa, Ll
axeupt fa case of one of the subsidiary, whereby, it is in process of sucldng

& in faldhsh

Particulnrs As a3 March 2021 | As ac 31 Mareh 2000
Venad bogrowings (exeluding interest scgrued) 6445978 62,193.50
‘Fesrab oy 134,234.37 134,953.70
Net deb 1o eqnity ratio A7% 465%)
MNote ~ 40

Contiogent linbilices and commitiicnis

Coniingeat Liabiliues {F i lakhs)
Particulam As at 31 March 2028 | As av 3 Murch 2020
lisome-tas matloc ) 1,081,348 1.081.38
Oilee eases (refor note i) below) 20B.36 132,08

Li s niot praceicable oz the Geoup 1o cstimace the dmings of cash autfows, if aay, in rospect af tir above pending resoluion of die sespertive proceediogs.
Fhe: anvounss dizclosed tbove reprosent the bust possible estimates ardved at on the basis of availilie informasos md do ner include any peaelty payable.

The Group is confesting employae selared cases i various forams, Rased on the internal anal

ok, eNeem as mentioned absve.

Tl Group is conteing vadows medical eelated Jogat enses in vasous faroms. Dased on he

wiews that the lkelihond of any suillow of the resources is remote.

ysis, the Group Is of the view that the likelihood of any outflow of the resoucces is

legal apinion From exernal consuliant and internal asulysis, te Group is of the

Commitment

Capital eammionoent (T in lukiis)
Farticalass Axar 31 March 2020 1 As at 31 March 2020
Property, plant and equipment 12,456.33 11,0051
Otlier comaitong il

Particulars _ As at 31 Masch 2025, | As at 30 Marek 2020,
Bank puacaniee? s B 474.53
Derfurmanee bank puaeantee § 1,500,048 1,500,400

*Thiis iocludes Lank guaraniees given ior capital goods imported undar tht Fxport Promonon Capital Goods, of the Governmens of India, at concessional rates of duty on an

andertaking to fulfill guantificd esporrs within stiputated perind of time.

§ e Ilobjing Cun{pany lar issued a performance baak gaaraniee of ¥ 1,500.00 Inkbs 160 G
avwriend sulsadineyd,

{1t spure duas deast imtentionadly Bl bland)

ovecanen of Bibias un behatl of Globat Flealth Patlipueea Privaze Limdted {a wholly
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Global Health Limited (farmery Anows as Glubal Health Private Lirnited)

Consolid

Noete - 42
Employee benelits obligations

wied summizry of signdficrnt sccounting policies and other explunstory infarmation for 1he year ended 31 March 2041

n b Defiaed contributionptan, o e e i et e gy
Paricutars Bur the year saded Forthe yenr ended
31 Muarch 2021 31 March 2040
Lmployer's comisbuvon o provideot fund chacged 10 smiement of prrofit and inss 164046 182137
Comatribution 1o employet state iusurance scheme chagged to streinent of profin and loss 19417 184.77
Conteducion 1o labour wol fare fond chirged o stateener of profit and loss 2381 22,88
Toatsl 1,858 44 2,029.00
The Group alsa has certain defined conttbelions (lans. Conrabutons are mads o recogaised provident fand administicd by 1he Govemment of Ingie for totployees at the
i of 12% of basic salacy as per repulations. The sbligation of the Group is imited 10 the amounr contributed nad it hag no facther conteenal or ponsteuctive olidipation.
B Grataity
Tl Group provides for geatuity for eonployees in Tndia as poe the Payment of Cratity Aai, 1972, Frnployees who ace in confinuons service for o pesiad of § years are olipilste
for gratuity. The amount of gratwity payalile an reiromenc/termisation is the employees tst drawa busic salory per month compored propostionaely for 15 duys salacy
einbliplicd for the ourbier of years of service
{i) Amnunts recagnized in tie balznce shent ¥ in fakhsy
Pacticulars Asat 31 March 202 &5 Bt 31 Macch 2020
Prestnd valee o the abligation st end 32177 284796
Unfunded hialility/provision in 3adance Sheet (27077 {2.847.50)
Bifuercation of preseit value of obligtion ot the ead of the yuac - Corrent and Noa Cuerent
Pardeuiars As at 33 Macch 2021 | Asat 35 Marck 2020
Current Hability SRS 57550
Mun-current lability 2.690.29 2.2712.46
Total 3,270,711 2,847.96
(i1} Txpeonses tecognined in othee comprebenuive income € in Jukdssy
For the yesr enfed For the year ended
Particalars A March 2021 3 March 2020
Acruariat iors / {gaing)
~Changes In demopraphic assuropdons (46.34) {1.71)
Chanpes in financial assumprons 0127 17744
-Changes in expuricnce adjusument (206.22) 57,35
Expentes reeagnided in other comprehensive incomic 48,73 233,42
{iify Bxpenses recopaised in etatement of profit and loss & in lnldrsy
Particuiirs Far the year euded For the year eaded
31 Murch 2021 31 March 2020
Current service cost 51258 467,07
Levesust eorsr 10561 183.74
Cose recopoized dunng the year 708,19 650.81
{iv) Movement in the Hability cecognized in the balance sheet is as unden # in iakis)
; For the year ended Por the year ended
Pacticulars 31 March 2021 31 Margh 2020
Presenr value of defined beneflt obligadon at the beginning of the year 2,847 0% 2,399 05
Curmia service cosy A12.55 467 4Y7
Intecest cost 19541 16314
Acanial inse 4847 2332
Denefits pad (334.91) {534.91}
Presont value of defined bonefis abliration a1 the end of the year 3,270.76 2,847.97
(v} Fordetenmination af the liability, the fullowing scruncial atsumptions were ueed:

Particuiars

For the year caded

For the year endodt

3 March 2021 35 March 2026
Diseount cate 6. 10% £.T6Y o 6.8
Salagy esealation rate 5% 10 8% 5.00%
Retiremeru age {yeacsd B8 yeues &0 yeaes

AT PR BCOVICE

;\\'cmg& age

Avertge tamdiningg working il
Whilideawal rate

Ups o 30 yoaes A% 0 13, 4% a4,
Froin I w44 years Ay per 3684 560
Above 48 yenes 2%t 0,400 240

.57 1o .74 years
210 JEH8 years
712w 31 years

(.85 10 340 yoarg
2813 G0 3153 yoars
TH.A47 10 3157 voncs

Morialiey eater inglustve 0F provision fior disability -100% of JALM (2012 - {4
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Global Mealth Limited (frmredy kaown as Global Mewlth Privace Limited)

Consolidared sumuary of significaat uccounting policies and ster explantiory information for the yeos cuded 3§ March 2021

(vi} Maturity profile of defined benefic obligazion

T3t arch-B21 e e 3-Marcir PO

@ io fukhy)

L e ied i o AT HE IR 2020

A 02T MARH 2027 T A Al 2020 NMaTER BOZY e TR S§9.31
Apnd 2522 March 2023 ANl 2021- March 2022 {4050 115.50
Apal 2023 March 2024 Apait 2022. March 2023 204,61 143.35
Apo 2024 - Mawch 2025 Annl 2023- Masch 2024 13076 165.17
Apat 2025 Macch 2026 Apel 2024- Muccl 2025 17642 116.64
Aprl 2026- Macch 2027 Apcl 2025 March 2026 LR 20602
Anrl 2027 powards Apel 2026 onwaeds 419302 5.769.46
Gioss Tutal 5,815.54 5,285.72
{vii) Sensitivity analysis lor grataity {¥€ in Jukhs)
] ) Porticulars 31 Maech 202§ 31 Murch 2020
a) Imipact of the change in discaunt e '
Present vadue of obiigation ar the end of duw year 3,270.36 284297
Linpact dve w inceease of 0.50 % {15202 (319.78)
Impuer e 10 decrease of 050 % 14593 130,42
by Laupact of e change fu salary Dncresse
Present valwe of obligation ac the ¢nd of the year 3,290,765 2847097
Empact due 1o sucrease of §.50% 166,42, 13219
Linpact due 1o deerease of 0,50 % {15341} {122.38)

Seatitivities due 1o mogality and withdrawals are not materal. Mence impact of chonge it not calcaiated above,

Seasitvilies as (0 e uf infistion, e of incrense of poasions in payment, rate of increase of péisions befors fetiement

anid life expeciancy s not applicable being o lump
sush benelie oo retremen

‘The above sensitivity analysis aze based an & chiasge in 31 sssuasption while hodding ol vihes apswmpdon: constant Tn praguee, this is unlikely w occur | and changes in sum of
the avsumyions may by somudatud. When eabeulating the sensilivity of defined benefin obligation to significant actuasial assumptions the same method {prosent value of defined

benefit obligaoony caloulaed with the projcewed ualt credit method a1 the end of He rupazting panod ) has bees applied 45 when calcutating the defined benefic Linblliry
cecoprased in the balanee sheer.

(viil} Risk

Actwal salary ncreases will increase the plao's fabifity. Incceave in salary inctease £a42 assumplion in foture valuations will 2ke jncceasel

Saliey inerernes bhe Habifaty

WgeIN L e

Reduction in discount ente in subseauent valuttions ean incresse the plan’s alsiliny.
Mortality avd disability

Agrual deaths aud disability cases proving lower or ighet than assumed i the valuaiion can impict the Labilities. ]

. Actusl withdeawals proviag higha or lowee than assomed withdsawals and change of withdrawal sies ar subsequent valialions can
Withdrawals . e
impact plan's Lability.
Mate - 43
Share bused payments
GHPL £507 Man 2014

“The Huldiag Company vide Geneal Meetdag rusolution daied 25 Seprember 2004 approved “Globad Flealth Menployue Stock Option Schemy 514" for pranlng employee
stick uptions in the form of equity shaees linked to the compleion of a minimum pedod of continued enplayment 1 sy eliglle mployee: of the Holding Company, The
plan was madified on 11 May 2016 where in the Flolding Company incrcased the number of avaitable options from 740,628 1o 852,973 10 ligible employees and the vessing
period was revised from 5 years from the daie of grant 10 graded vestng of 25% each yenr starting with effect from M Apel 2036, T'he Holding Company had granted 740,528
opiions 1 chgible emplopees oa 25 Seprember 2004, The elipble employess, induding directors, for the pumose of this seheme will be deternyined by 1he Remuncration

Comutities from tine w0 dme, Bach stock oplions entide tie cligible craploges @ avadl oue shave 1 the end of the vesting periodl. The vested options can be exercised within o
preriod of 3 pears feom the date of vesting.

ovemsaar in nanaber of aptions:

Purticulars Asat 3 Murch 2021 | As at 31 Mareh 2020
Opening balnge ) 260,04% | 154,123
Vswrcised dusing dbe year 5,565 43475
Lapsed durdng the year 19,830 -

Clasing halance 155,244 200,648




Global Heulth Linvited (formesly known as Global fHewlth Privare Limirsd)
Consolidated sunsinary of significant accounting policies and other explunatory inforasation for the year ended 3§ Mareh 2021

Particulars Grant 1 Grant II Grant [T1 Grant 1V
Ouatanding aptions (uavestesd and vered buy ne exercised) ax at 3] LTET ] 5o
Chnstanding apitens funvesied and vesied but not oxercised) ay at 31 44,972 26,451 10,838 173,387
March 2420

{irant date 25 Beptember 24 12 July 2016 % Muvember 2015 10 Becember 2816
Westimyy pedioad Graded  vesting  {25%(Graded  vesting  (25%[Graded  vesiing (25%|Graded  vesing  (25%

apUans e vest uvery yeat
from e daie of grand

OPUHONg 10 vest svery yoas
fram the dare of grani)

aptions 1o vesf every year
from the date of granr)

OPIUBT L VeS| every yuir
Tram dhe datwe of grany

Ereceise price 10.00 1180 10,00 10hes
Vispiny datwe 29 Apol 2022 12 July 2423 048 Movember 2023 {9 Dreceeber 2023
e wabue af opiion on me date of 9195 T42.28 75520 T55.24
Remaining contrachual life fweighted monhs) ns ar 31 Macch 2021 1313 oo R 3277
Remaining contraciued Efe fweiphited months) as at 31 March 2020 25,30 3493 43.90 44.93
FThe fair vadue of tie options Ins besa determined using the Rlack Scholes maodel, 25 serafied by an independent valuce with the follawing assumplions:

Partioulars Grant [ Grant 11 Crang 1M1 Grant LY
Weiphred averape share price {fis) 69845 140.78 162,95 762095
Exercise price (s} 10.80 1050 10.00 .00
Espected volaglin (%) 3% 3% 3% 365
Expected life of the opion {years) 1-7 17 -7 IS]
Risk- frer interast catn £.20%, TA8% 6.67% G5 1%
Weighted avernpe faic valug as on the grant date Re) 491,95 J42.28 755.29 755.54

GHPL ESQF Flan 2016

The Molding Company vide Gencend Mecting resolution dated 13 July 2016 approved “Globad Health Employee Stock Option Scherme 2016
options inn the form of equity slaces linked 1o the completion of a minimom pedod of condnued employ
empioyees, inchading directors, for the pumpose of ihis scherne will be determined by the liemuneeation
eriloye 1o avall one share at the end of the vesting peried. The avthorised share ea
stoes on 13 July 2014 with o view to alint the shares under the 7SO Dlag 2016, s

for

grandap employee stock

ment 1o the eligible employees of the Holding Company. The eligible
Committee from Uree 1o ime. Each stogk options eatide the eligible
pitat of the Holding Company was tlto increased by cecation of 1,025,000 Class A ity
ch stock options entitle the cigible employes o avall ong share m the end o

( the vesung

penod. The vesed aptions can be excecised within @ peried of 3 years rom the date of vesing,

Maovemaent in niunlics of epions: L o

Porrieulars Agar 3t March 2021 1 As ot 31 March 2020

Chpening balzrce 561,300 771.250

[Exereived dutiog the year 155,250 114756

Lapsed during the year 55,000 91,000

Cloging balange 51,250 a61,500
Particulars Grant ! Grant [T Grana [11 Graat IV Grant ¥

Outstanding upifons {unvesied and 116,250 25,000 17,400 {7,500 176,000

vered but not execcised) as ar 31 .

Minech 2001

Outstanding options (unvested and 157,500 .00 50,000 50,000 134,000

vested bt not exvecired) 4t a1 51

March 2020

(irant date 10 December 2010 19 Mareh 2018 11 Apt 2018 25 Apidl 2018 13 July 2008

Graded vesting (25% oplions
to west every year from the

Giraded vesting (25%
OpLaRS 10 VEH avoey yenr

Grraded vesting (33.33%
UPLIODS 0 VOST €Yery yesr,

options 1o vest every year|

Gended vesting (33.35%

Graded vestng (20%
OPHOIS 10 Vet eveny year

months) a2 sl 3 Macch 2000

Westing peed date of grant|  f1om the date of gant)]  from 1he date of pran)]  From the date of geanty)  from e date of geany)
Lixercise price 10.00 10.00 10.00}4 19.00 1040
Expiry due U9 December 2023 19 March 2025 16 Apcl 2024 24 Apl 2024 13 Joly 2hze
Frir matkel valae of option on the 735,24 62661 526,03 62616 G217
date of grans

Remvdwing conteactual e (weighted 2N 4530 kYRiT] 3733 PR
mmanths] w41 31 March 2021

Renwining contmergal Iife fweighted 44.93 64.47 49,23 4550 T6.50




Globa) Health Limited (Femerdy knovar us Glabad Health Peivaze Limired)
Consalidated summary of sigiificant actounting policics wnd other explanatwry information for the year eaded 31 Marel 2024

YEhe fait value of the eptions bas been detenmined using the black Scholes maded, a5 eectified by ss independent vatucr vath the following wssumptions

Particylars Srant f Lirane 1T Graor L Grant by Grant-y-
Wuigluﬁri.nvfc:agc'.-a}m.pﬁcc.(Rs.}.,-.. s sy ) JU 7 T R 7Y E AT TS S AT o gy
lisgreisy prce (Rs) 10,00 10,00 10.00 10,08 1060
linpeeted volatiliy () 36% 374 38% 38%% 3%
Expucteed lile of ilic option (veags) i-7 1.7 1-6 1-0 1.4
Risk-frev imerust rase 6.51% 7.44%, B0, 7824 3.22%
Weiglied averape Rair value 25 on he 755.24 H2644 626003 626,46 LoeEnY
grant dae (Rs) :

Cruring the year ended on 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2026, the Hoiding Company bis recorded an employoe stock compemiation expense of ¥ 378.87 lakhy and ¥ 950,97
lakhs ceapeetvely.

Dusiag the year encted tn 31 Magch 20821, the total sumber ol uptions vested but not exercided is 3,20,092 (35 March 2020 392,105),

Phe weigheed average shace price an the dale of exercise s € 574,02 (51 March 20520 : ¥ 505.88)

Mo - 44
Chuope i acconating policy on Fovernment graats

¥ Donny the pear, tie Group has voluntagly changed its accoundnyg pelicy related 1o poveramewt grants whereby, grants 1elatiag w capiid ssels are recopnised ay defersed
incume ox indial recopniton aad are crudited to statement of profit and loss ona steabght line basis over the expeeted usefol Ble of the related ssset and proseated withio ‘oiher
operating mcome’.

IF The application of new accounting policy wilk depict the renial cost of the capitnt assels and provides more elevantinformation to the vsers of Anavcial stdesneats,

T In e of the Mokliog Company and oac of the subsidiary companies, e impact of scconaung poliey change is not malerial on the preeediag pednd and in e balance ghoar
ws at the beginmng of procoding pedod. However, the impact on the relovant financid statoment bag items for all pereds pertabning w anoher subsidiay and dmpact for tie
cursent pesiod for the Group hae been abulaued below:

{¥ in lakths)

A {Pardculars As at A a1 A at
3 March 2021 31 Marpch 2024 0% Apseil 2010
Balauce sheot ) ’
tngrease in peopeny, plant and cquipmunt (et Block) 2,18%.69 IR EON ] .
[uesease in capital work-wn-progress . - 13576
[ngeease in sther nonscuezent Habilitics 1,954.21 1,815.78 1,#012.50
nereast in other ceveent lalilites 235.48 183.92 3320

(¥ in Ialchs)

B |Pasticulars Far tire year voded Por the your cuded
. 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Higrease in other operang inconw 207.660 a2_62
Inceease in deprecialion nod amartisation expense : 20766 62.62
€ Flere is no impaer on basie and dilated caenings pee shase in the respeaive yeass on accouwn of the above.

Mo - 45
Previtus pedul/year numbers have been sepronped fyochssified wherever considered fniecessary.
Badance shect T ’ ) ’ o ’ 31 March 2020 Adjuruncnts 31 Marel, 2020

(Reponad) {Reciavsificd)
Liubslities
P Cuse provisiuns 4623097 (101508 3,608,589
Currend provisions 87747 101508 1,692.5%
Asseis .
Chler carvent finangial assets 3,386.13 25,461 340974 e
Otber Cureent assets 65437 {23.62} 460,75
Caslt and exih cpuivalpnts 14,915,118 {154.06) 14,751,132
(hbses Bank balances 13,0971 156.06 10,285 17
Statecwent af profic and jusy 31 Macch 2020 Adjusimewns 31 plarch 2028 Adjustinguts 31 Musch 2020

{Reported) (Reclnssified) due to ehange in {Restated)
acesunHng soligy*

Revenue Fom opecations 14E,421.58 §,558.00 19991 58 4262 150,042,20
Clhee income 5,542.51 1,058,013 4, 3450 . 4,584,580

"Refer wnte 4 for ety

{1 s spetee Dax beew udesstionadly It Blank} Q\e, ai Up




Globai Meaith Limited (urrucerly known ns Global Mealth Private Jimired)
Cousolidated summury of siguificunt accounkng policies and other explanatory information for die year ended 3§ March 2021

More - 46
Interest in subsidisries and joint venture

Qwnership interese beld by the Geoup]  Ownership i:llcl‘!‘.'!:'t held by non- Prineipal activites
Nusie of entity Pluce of business () Soproling ivtercat () ’
A ae Az at AEut As at
M Morch 2021 31 March 2020 31 Misech 2021 31 March 2020
Ghalsal Flealth Pacipuie Povae Limsted India 100 10l - Healibeare services
Mudanta Hokbings Private Limited India 109 HI - - |Meslibesre worvices

(1) Joint veotuee {aguity method)§
§ Fhe Boaed of Directars (1lie Board’) of Modanta Duke Research Institure Privare Limited (2 joine venture} in it meodng held on 19 June 2010 had resolved 1o initiate the
prosess of winding up of the aforementoned entity and subsequently, they have initizied the process of voluntary Byuidation of the said entiry in aceordance with rhie peovisions
of tire lasobvency and Bankeuptey Code, 2036 read with losolvenay sndd Bankrupuey (Volumary Liguidaton Process) Regulations, 2017, This has ko been alfirmed by 1he
sharcholders in the Annunl Gener! Meeting (AGM'} of t 'edanta Duke Research Instune Pavare Limired held vny 24 Sepembec 2019, Durdng the yeas, on 25 Febnary 2021,
the officiat liquidsior as sebmited fisal application for liquidation/windisg up of the ssid entiry with Nationat Company Law Tebunal {NCLTY. Nowsver, he foa oeder from
the NCLT is awnited, Fhe disclarures pozraiving 1o previons year eaded i, 31 March 2020 sre ns belowe

(% in Juihs)

i Carrying amount
Name of entity Place of business | 7 of ownership Aceonating mefhod (ot ol impaimnosy) E
iuterest Asgat As ur
Al Muarch 2025 33 Macch 2020
Medant Thike Research Dsyine Prvace Tndia FIES Peparty mactteod -
Limited

(1i) There were no commuitments snd coningeat lishilities in joint venture company.

{i1i} Summariged financiad information for joint venturc§

(% in ki)

{Bummarized balenee sheer As ar 3] March 2020
Current asseds

Cagh and cash pquividonts S8.85
Totat corrent asscLy (A) 55.80
Taorat non-current azsets (8)
Ansets beld for sate {(C) - :
Total assets (D = A+B+C) 58,51
Current Habilittes

Financial lizbiliies {escluding wrade payabics) 105
Tetol cusrent Labilities {E} 105
Total noa-current fHaliiities (F) N
‘Total tishilitiez (G = E+F) £.05
Nat agsers {D-G) 57,76
Reconciliation ro earrying asiount of investment
Summarised balanee sbeet As 413] March 2020
(pemoygy retained aaenings fBa0.013

Fars For thu yerr 14,36

Chiwr comprahengive income .
Cloging net zesets {844.97)
Giroup's shase in ¥ SihAI T
Group's shase in T {41251
Gross value of invesiment 04.80
Carrying value of investmeni 479,25
Leas : {mpairment i 1he value of invesiment (479,253
Nat earrying value of investmeaat -

{This gpaie has dwen mndemtiviradly feft blanle)




CHlobdl Healils Liived fureery ki gy Glodaf Henldy Frivare Lintised)
Covwadidated sunsmary of gnificant accouning policier 104 olr sxplagaiory ibfonozdau for We rear cuded 3 Mawh 203

Hote - 47
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Global Flealth Limited (formerly known ns Globaf Meslth Privare Limsted)

Consolidated summarny of significant necpunting policies and other explanatory information fos the year cnded 31 Margh 2021

More - 48
Revenrue relatnd disclosures

o D is ﬁg‘ gf{'g&!(;ﬂ“ i revenue - o

Hevenue recopmived mainly comprives of heafthenre services. Se1 our Belew is the dissggeoganiun af the Group's evente from eonemets with custonices:

[E in Inkhnsg)

Dreseriplion

For e yeur ended
31 March 202§

For the yenr ended
M March 2020

n) Opcrming E S TE
iracome frany heabthears rervices

b patient 118,653,400 11981208

Dt patient 23, 130.50 2B,045.400%

Sub-total {(A) 141, 764,00 145,057.11
{I3) [ncome fromm srle of phammacy produces 0 sutnatdents

Sadu of phacvady proguets 1,t4B.32

Sub-iotal {B) LI4R.32 .
{13) Onbyer eperating revenue

{hnical rescarch mcome 129,04 FE0.82

e opeiating revenue $3.57 17765

Snlrrotal (C) 182,58 364.47
Totl tevenue under Ind AS 1% 143,315.00 148,421.58

(¥ in iaklys)
Deseriprion Fos the year ended Far the yeat ended
31 March 202t 3L Mincch 2020
(A) Opemiting rovenue
fncome lrom bealtheare services

Guvernrmiea 12,0935 1667725

Nog-povetnent 129,764,775 13137084
Toutul operating revenue 141,784.10 148,057.61

ii  Comtract batances
The !'nlinwing akde p{uvidcs informmaton shout receivaliles angd congeast Halaities fromm condmet el Costounurs:
(X in Laichsy

Farticainre Aaat 31 Mereh 2621 As 0131 March 2020
Contract Linbilities
Advance (rom custonicrs 1,915.40 2. 6y
Totak contract liabitives 2. H5.44 2,130.61
Contract assers
Unkiibed revenue 1,417.50 H18.41
Torat conlract asscts 1,9407.50 GIS.41

Canteact nxsed i the nght o considemtion in exchange for goods or seevices tansfecred to the customer. Contenct liability is the emity’s obligation 10 wansfer poads Or Seevees 10
customer for which the engy bas cecdived cunsidemuon from the customer in advince. Coaleact assets fuabilled receivablesy ate rennsferred o oneivables whon the righes beeany

uengsinditional amil contract labilives ase derceagnized a8 nnd whaa the pedomiaance obligation is sasnsfied.

I} Significant shonpes in the conteact linhilities balances during the year are an follown:

(¥ in lukbsy

Contracy fiabilitive « advancs fom customers As a1 31 March 2023 Ag at 3L Mureh 2020
Qpening balance of contract liabifitics «» advance flom customers 21804 1,680.61
Lass: Aenour of revenue recogaised duriog the yene {141, 784103 T{14B 5711}
Add: Addition duning the yese 142 568895 4L,558.11
Closing balance of contract ftabilinies - advance from customers 2,905,46 2,110.61

IV The apgoogie sonvunt of temsaciion price alfocated to the peeformanee obligations {yet w complete) ss a4 31 March 2021 i T 291546 lakbs (31 Maech 2020 : € 2,1 1061 izkls), This
balwce represeatr the advance received From customen {fross} against henltheare seevices. ‘The management expecets o fusther bill and calleer the remzining balanee of 1ol
constderation in the eoming period, These halances wilt be recopnised as revenue in subseguear period as per te policy of the Group.

¥ lweoncilsslion of tevene

(¥ in_foddys)

Pariculars

For(he year ended
M March 2023

For the yenr gagled
31 March 2020

T

Fevenue fram onperaions 147 Gt 5.08 193,679.4h
Aljustengin foe

iZiscuunts and celates {4,712.06) (5.622.28)
[ncome fram lismlthuare services andd sale of pharmacy produers 1o om-patientg 142,932 42 WE057.12




{Hobal Health Lindied (fornterly known a2 Global Heait Prvaic Limiied)
Consoliduted rumemacy of sigaificant aceounting pollcics and other explanatory jnformatian fos the year ended 31 March 2021

Rowe - 39

“Ihe chiaf.osperiiog degivions-nahee {COLIM-orammivion-dinGrapgs-perlonnrice feom-g-suew tprecspective-ancd-hns-identfod-the Heald erviesiarvingloburinesssegtag-the
- &y o -ds-opeetingin-Indin-which cunatines adinglegeographecal-segment:-The CODM-revipwsinternal reanageenearreporti-tw-siess the perfomanes of “thesegment Healdicare -

sesvices's

e seveuues fum cocennl cusiommers aitibuied 1 50 individual is oL moteal and there tre oo trnmetons with ® ¥ingle extpenal cusiomer which would amounst o ren percent or
nrenval the Lroup's revienoes.

Maow - 50

Research and develupnient expeadinue includes consubands and spotialist hunoraduos smounting 1o € 2.72 Iakhe (31 March 2020; T 1,23 lakths) ddd salarios of employees aneunting
fo ¥ 16,26 fakhs (31 Macch 2020: € 9939 Lakhs),

Note ~ 53

laman $hama {Compininant?) filed 2 it Inforasion Report (1) Ry dated 6 June 0020 apainst, fwfer lin, the Holding Company and cerdn ditectors snd other office Leagecs,
undue vasious puevisions of the lndisn Penal Code, the Prevention of Money Laundering Aee, 2002 and the Provention of Corcuption Act, 1982, The Complainant has alleged that the
Harpans Ehban Desclopment Authodty (HUDAY Lad iegally wllotsed horpiead Ianch parcel, tosulting in unfalr peowsiary advantage, The suid matier was investigated snd the
wnvestigaion agencicy concludsd e mutter in the favour of the Holding Company, Aceardingly, the favestigation sgeaties fed » Cancellation Report with respect 1 the FIR Yofore
the: Additional Sessions Court, Gurugram (“the Count™). ‘The Cormplainant filed n protest peibon challenging the tbove Caneeltatos Report, Vide s ordur dared 12 Macch 2021, the
Cowre aceepied the Caveelation Roport snd the FIR swod caneslled, Prios to clozing of the [, ihe Enloscement Disectosate, iew Delhi in ity letior daced 22 December 2020
{Motiee} has alza rough censia iaforntatdon from the Holding Company regacding, futer alia, the capieat investment made in and by the Roldiog Company in ladia and oveniess,
ditalls of bank atcounts af the directors of the Holding Cornpany, and detalls of fised asspes crcated it (e Rolding Company from inception onl the date of the Notee, The
Huding Company hay provided the regqucsied information. Additionally, vide telter dated 12 Apidl 2021, the Molding Company has requented the Binforcement Dirvetorste to clase
this rwanec i light of cancellalion of the FIIL The Holding Company has not recrived any furiher commuanieation from the Bnforoument Dircetorats in this macier.

Mo - 52

11 the boned meeting dated 26 Januncy 2021, the Board of Dircctoss of the Holding Company hes approved sapital eabsiog compeising of fresh issue and offer lor sl of equity shaces
Ly the existing sharcholders through as litidl Public Offecing PIPOY. Further, subsequent to the yesr-end, the Haolding Company hae allowed 652,973 Class A equity shaves 10 Dr.
Marush Teehao at fee value of T 10 each ava promiuen of T 565 por shaze on prefecennial allotment basiy a3 por provisions of the Anicles of Associaton (AOAY of die Faldiog
Compasy and the dharchiolders agreernent dawd 12 Jaouary 2015,

Mg - §3

The teade roceivables as w0 31 March 2021 dwcanda include receivalics in forcign carrency whith hive buea autstnding apgregadng to ¥ 287.27 fakhs {31 Blacch 2020 @ % 486,90
lakhs} beyond the dncline stipuiaicd by the applicable provisions of Reserve Bank of ladia ecad with Foueim exchinge mansgeorent seguiations, The Haldiog Campany has fled
negessary upplitationg with the appropmaie suthority in this feged a5 por regalations. The hamiggement dues not ecovisige any additions) Soamcial inpact of the same a1 dis suge.

Mare « 54

The Cade on Sociat Sceudy, 2020 ["the Code") welating to employee beaclits ducng emplogmens and post-employaent eeceived Presidential assent in Septomber 2020, Subscquendy,
the: Misistey of Labowr aod Venployment had relensed the draft nabes en the sforementionsed Coxde. 1owever, ihe same is yec 10 be notfied, The Group will evahuae i impact and
wminky neceasiey udiustimenis 1o ihe faancisl statements in e peaod when the Code will be noufied and will come into offecr.
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Glabet Healthy Limited ¢fomaedy Jngnen ps Globaf fealth Private Lipited)
Consolidated summary of significent rccounting policics nnd cilier explsnatory information fot 1he year snded 31 March 2021

Maoie - 5§58

“Pheouttmakeof-CGoronmame-BRisom e 2H - {EOWE 1) dechrod -y pratmic by the Wzl et T e e e R U SCeHGITIE AcOvinEs around

= the-werdincudig-todit- Doy the year onded 31-Mareh 20271, B Ceritralnuvd -Stite Govammtnitg 6T Indi lind Hssal ook dods i ohes A rfendy rerinehons which had
ledd 4cs she disrupion of all repolar business opeasions. Funthee, the secent second wave of GOVID-1Y has again rezulted o partinl lockdown/ rertrictions in vanpus siues. The Cieoup
b elowely moasoing the impact of the afurementioned pandeasic and by made s denlled asseasment and considered possible cffects, if any, on s Bquidity posidon, including
recaverability ol ir assets az o the batance shees date md cuereaily belleves hat theee wilk nat be any advesse iaipaet on the Joog tenn operstons, nancial posldon and pedummanee
of the Gzoug,

“Thiis ds the covclicased summzey of signifieant occounting policier and other explanuiny infarmatiun eeforred to n our cepore of sven die.

Froe Walleer Chendiok & o LLE for and on behalf of1he Boacd of Directors
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Basis for Opinion
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F 481120 710 5002

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Pinancial Statemen s

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Global Health Limited formerdy known
ar Global Flealth Private Linited) (he Company’}, which compuise the Balance Sheet as ar 31 March 2021, the
Statement of Profiv and Logss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year thea ended, and a sunmary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatery information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information tequired by the Companies Act, 2013 {‘Acty in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accountng principles gencrally
accepred in India including Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AE’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit {luchuding other comprehensive Income),

We conducted our audir in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
At Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilies for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (TCAT} together with the
ethical requirements

requirements and the Code of Ethics. We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropuiate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

¢ Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the othet information. T he other information comprises
he i{Qmmation included is the Directors Repott, but does not inelude the standalone financial statements

St CLE LN

& and odrggditor’s report heseon.
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hat are relevant 1o our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act..
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Global Health Limiced (formedy known-as Global
Health Private Limited), on the standalone {inancial statements for the year ended 31 Match 2021
(cont’d)

Qut opinion on the standalone financial staternents does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

fu connection with our audit of the standalone financial sratements, our responsibility is to tead the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent wish the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appeats to be materially
misstated 'Tf, based on the woik we have performed, we conclude that there is a maverial misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standafone Financial
Statements

5. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Dicecrors.
The Company’s Board of Directors is tesponsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect 1o the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a ttue and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash fows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate aceounting
recoxds in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fiauds and othex irregulatities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and cstimates that ace reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
mantenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the prepatation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a tiue and fair view and are free from material missiatement, whether due ro
fraud or error.

6. In prepating the standalone {inancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, s applicable, matters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends o liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

1. Those Board of Ditectors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reposting process.

ties for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statemesnis

o7% Responsh

8. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from matetial misstatement, whether due to-fraud or error, and to lssue an auditor's report thar
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audiy
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists,

Misstatements can axise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually ox in the aggregare,

-thhey could-rsasenably-be-expected-to-influence the economic-decistons-of userstaken-omthe iy of o

—standalone fivaneidl stavermenrs o

9. Aspartof an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgiment and mainiain
professional skepucism throughout the audit. We also:

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone fnancial statements, whether due
oo frasd or errox, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
idence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinjon. The risk of not detecting 2
plcrial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand May
l:‘iv.f;rplvc collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal Control;

S
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independeny Auditor's Report to-the members of Global Health: Limited-(formertly known as Global -
Flealth Privare Limited), on the standalone {financizal statements for the year ended 31 Mageh 2021
(cont’d)

*  Obtanan understanding of fnternal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design andit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(8) of the Act, we are also responsible for
EXpressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial conmrols with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectivencss of such controls;

s Evahaie the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based o the audit evidence obtained, whether 4 mategial uncerminty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability ro contnue as & going concern. If we conclude
that a matecial uncertainty exists, we ave required ro deaw attention in our suditor’s report (o the related
disclosures in the standalone Financial statements ot, if such disciosures are inadequate, to modify oux
epinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obrained up ro the date of our auditor’s report.
However, funire events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 1o continue as 2 going concesn;
and

© LDvaluate the overali presentation, stracture and content of the standalone financial statements, inclading
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying wansactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

10 We communicate with those charged with governance tegarding, among othier matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intesnal control that
we ideutify during our audit,

" Repert on Gth'er'chaI"and"'R'c'gulatory"Requi‘re‘m'ents‘""""“"“""'"‘""""‘"' T
11. Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of seetion 197 read with Schedale V o the Act was not

applicatle to the Company since the Company was not a public company as at 31 March 2021, as defined
under section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under scction 197{16) is not applicable.

12. As required by the Companies (Anditor’s Report) Otder, 2016 {‘the Oxder Jssued by the Cennal Government

ot lodiain ternis 6F section T45(1T1) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a staterment on the matters specified
1 paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ocder.

13, Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 1433} of the Act, based on our audir, we
report, to the exrent applicable, that:

) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which ta the best of our kmowledpe

9'1(] bclir:;f__.wexe 11Ccﬁﬁﬁﬁ}’__f_o};.._lhﬁ_purpusc.._of...oux_..audjr,.,_QE,_xlm__.ac{;{;mpﬂn.}r_in

b} in our opiuion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so fax as it
appears from our examination of those bools;

<} the standalone financial statements dealt with by this report ave in agreement with the books of account:

w0 our opinion, the aforesaid standatone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
Q‘h”lf . N‘{::xq’

Lhantered Aciounianis
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent-Auditor's Report to the: membere of Global Healtl Limited (formerly lonow as Global
Health Poivace Limited), on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
{cont’d)

¢) on the basis of the written reptesentations received from the ditectors and taken on record by the Board
of Direciors, none of the directoss is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a directos
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act

£y we have also audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of (he Company
as o 31 Maxch 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date and our report dated 17 September 2021 as per Annexure B expressed
unmaodified opinion; and

) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repott in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of cur
mformation and according 10 the explanations given o us:

i the Company, as detailed in note 40 to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the impace
of pending liigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2021;

4. the Company did not have any lotig-term contracts including derivative contracts for whicls there
were any matetial foreseeable losses as ar 31 March 2021,

i there were no amounts which wege required o be transferred to the Investor Bducation and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021; and

. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well a3 dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the petiod from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not relevant to
these standalone financhl statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

Fot Walkeer Chandiolk & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fixm’s Registration No.: 0010761 /N500013

Rajni Mondra
Partner
Membership No.: 058644

wommmePlacer-New Delhi- T
ey 17 Seprembes 2021
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A 1o the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the membeis of Glebal Téwith
Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limfred), on the standalone financial statements
fos the year ended 31 Magch 2021 (cont’d)

Annexure A

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of feporting 2 true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into considesation the mformation and explanations given to us and the
books of account and other secords examined by us in the normal course of audit, and 1o tie best of aur
knowledge and belief, we eport that:

(@ (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capiral work-in-progress, right of nse
assers and intangible assets,

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment
under which property, plant and cquipment are verified in a phased manner over a petiod of
two years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The tithe/lease deeds of all the immovable properties {which ate included undes the head
prop
‘propexty, plant and equipment’ and ‘tight of usc assets’) are held in the name of the Company.

(i} In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies between physical inventory and book
records were noticed on physical verification,

(1) The Company has aot granted any loan, secured or unsecured Yo compantes, fivms, Limited
Liability Patcnerships (LLPs) or. othee parties covered in.the register maintained under Section
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(ai)(b) and 3(Hi)(c) of the Orde
are not applicable,

fiv) In our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186 in respact of
investments and guarantees. Further, in our opinion, the Company has not entered into any
trausaction covered under Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans and

SeCanty

(v I our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceprance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 {as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clanse 3{v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)  We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuane to the
Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section

AErS

that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintined.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

{vit{a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident
fund, employees’® state insurance, income-tax, sales-fax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
else, value added tax, goods and services tax, cess and other matedal statutory dues, as
\Qp licable, to the appropriate authorities. Purther, no undisputed amounts payable in respect

héreof were outstanding at the year-cnd for a period of more than six months from the date
fidy become payable.

Charterad Accelnlants

ctian 148 of tie ActinTespect of Company s pLoducls/services.and are. o fthe opmnion . ..



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Annexuze A to the Independent AGditoi’s Répott of even date o the members of Global Health
Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limjted), on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont*d)

(>

} The dues outstanding in respect of income-rax, sales tax, service-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax and goods and services tax on account of any dispute, ate as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

Name of the Nature of Amount | Amount paid Period to Forum where
statute ducs (T in lakhs) undes which the dispute is
protest amount pending
(¥ in lakhs) relates
Income-tax Disallowance of 30.55 - Assessment Conmnussioner
Act, 1961 ceriain Year 2016-17 | of  Encome-tax
expenses {Appeals)
Income-tax Disallowance of 1,050.83 - Assessrment Comepndssioner
Act, 1961 share based Year 2017-18 | of Income-tax
payment (Appeals)
expense  and
certain  other
EXpenses

{vii)

(ix)

)

(i)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings 10 any financial institution or bank
duting the year. The Company does not have any loans or borrowings payable to govemnment and no
dues payable to debenture-holders during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has applied moneys raised by way of the terin loans for the purposes for
which these were raised. The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer {including debt instrurents).

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers ov employees has been noticed or reported
during the period covered by our andit.

The provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act was not applicable to the
Company since the Company was not a public company as at 31 March 2021, as defined under Section
2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xi) of the Order are not applicable,

(k)

(31t}

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xily of the
Order are not applicable.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties arc in compliance with Section 188 of the Act,
whete applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by
the applicable Tnd AS. Further, in our opinion, the Company was not required 1o constiwte audit
committee under Section 177 of the Act as at 31 March 2021,

(xiv)
(v

-
o W
3y

RO
S

Chnrisred Atsountantt
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During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment ot private placetnent of shares
ot fully or pastly convertible debentures.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the direcrors of
petsons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the Act.

- dag



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure A © the Independent Auditor’s Report of even’
Limited (formnerly known as Global Healtlh Private Limited

for the year ended 31 Mareh 2021 {conr’d)

xv1} The Company is not required to be registered under Section

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registraton No.; 0010761 /NE0K0013

QOEM A u..wf”

Rajni Mundea
Partaer
Mem bership No.: 058644

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17 September 2021

date fo the members of Global Health
; on the standalone financial statements

45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLLP

Anpexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Global Health
Limited (formerly known as Global Mealth Phivate Limited) on the standalone financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2021 {cont’d)

Anniexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls swith reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-scetion 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

L. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Global Health Limited (formerly knoswn
as Global Hoakth Private Lintited) (‘the Company”) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited
the internal financial controls with refetence to financial statements of the Company ag af that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Interual Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria cstablished by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internsl Financial Controls
over [linancial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note?) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indin
(TCAT). These responsibilides include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordedy and <fficient conduct of the
Company’s business, including adherence to the Compuny's policies, the safeguarding of its assess, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of relizble financial information, as required under the Act.

Aaditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Conirois with Reference to Financial
Statements

3. Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial conieols with reference 1o
(inancial starernents based on our audit, We conducted-our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
1ssued by the ICAT prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 2nd plan and perform the
audit to obrain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal Gnancial conttols with reference to
financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectvely in all material
respects,

4. Qur audit involves petforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the inlerna) financial
controls with reference ro financial statements and their operating cffcctiveness. Qur audit of inteenal financial
contals with reference to financial statements includes obtaining sn understanding of such internal financial
conrols, assessing the risk that 2 matetial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal conteol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the tisks of material misstatement of the financial sta tements, whethor
due to fraud or error.

9. We beleve that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

G A company’s interal fnancial controls with reference to financial statements is a process desipned te provide
pany 2 B B

e gsonable assurance regarding the veliabiliey of financial reporting and the preparation of Gaancial statements
B Th i
w2
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Walker Chandick & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date 10 the membess of Global Health
Limited (Tormerly known as Glofal Eleaith Private Limited) on the standalone financial statemcrnits
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (conr’d)

for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountng principles. A company’s nternal -
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that {1} pettain

to the maintenance of records that, in ressonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the tansactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that wansactions are recorded as

necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that

could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limications of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitadons of internal financial conteols with reference o financial statem ents, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, mmaterial raisstatemnents due to error
oxr fraud tmay occur and not be detecred. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference w financial statements to foture pesdods are subject to the risk that the interna) financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion -

8. In our opinion, the Compaay has, in all material respects, adequarte internal financial controls with reference to
financial smtements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the intesnal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
inicenal control stated in the Guidanee Note issued by the ICAL

Far Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fierm’s Reg_jstralion Nou DO1076N /NS00013

by RO“"‘;‘\—"-: M%\:‘ ...... A i T v pee .

Rajnt Mundra
Partner
Membership No.: 058644

UDIN: 21058644AA AARF4002

Place: New Delhi
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Seaundalune statemeot of profit and loss for the yeas ended 31 Marci: 2021

Far the year uaded For the year eaded

Nows 31 March 2021 31 Mareh 2020
T R n ey T ia lakha)
Income
Revinue from openationg 26 122,739.31 14720862
CHher oo ’ 27 283486 435380
$25,574,07 151,562.51
Lixpenses
Cost of materialy consumed = 28 35,17441 30,920.66
Eployee brenefits expense . el 41,5053 52,2303
Finance costs 3% 247255 2,705.45
Eepreciaion and amatisation expense 3 870382 9,850.42
tenpairment Josses on financil assows 2 62100 1,818.61
Other expenses . . 33 33,511.08 40,584.50
117,132,390 138,469,17

Profit before 1ax 8,442.28 13,043.34
Tax espenses ) 54

Current tax - for the year 3.677.20 497183

Current rax - endier years 7233 .

Deferred tax eredh {1,035.95) (2154153
Proficaltur as 5,728.50 10,275.46
Other eompreheniive income
Tewrnis shat will not be eeclassified ta stalement of profit ond loss

Re-menstrencnt loss on defined benefit phing {54.16) {23.29

Ineome tax relating to items e will aot be ceclassified to statement of pxol’ it amxl lpss 13.83 5807
Ctlier compreliensive income for the year (40.53) {175.32)
Total comprehunive income for the year 5,687.97 10,180.34
Eamings per eguity nhuic 35

Base (T} 226 413

Likted (8 227 408

“Fhe accompanying suimmary of significans accounting policics snd other explanniory information are oo inmegeal pare of thwse siendaione Gnancial satements.

Thi i the standatone stakement of profit and tass referced to in our report of even date.
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Global Health Limited (formeely known as Global Health Privare Limired)
Standalone summary of siguificant accounting policies and other explanatory infoymation for the year
ended 31 March 2021

Background

Global Henlth Private Limited (‘GHPL? was incorporated on 13 August 2004 and is engaged in the business of
providiog healthcare services. Subsequent to the year-end, GHPL bhas been converted 1o 4 public company namely
‘Global Health Limited’ {‘the Company”) vide revised ‘Certificate of Incorporation consequent upon conversion
from private company o public company’ dated 11 August 2021 as ieued by the Ministey of Corporate Affairs
(‘MCA". The Company is domiciled in Indiz and its registered office is situated at B — 18, Defence Colony, New
Delhi - 110024,

General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

The standalone finantiaf statements (financial statements’) comply in all material aspects with Indian Accountin g
Standards (hercinafter ceferred to as the ‘Tnd AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate A ffairs under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Compantes {{ndian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The flinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were anthorized and approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 17 September 2021, The revision to financial staterments is permitted by Board of Ditectors after
Obifrining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authotities as per provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation

The fioancial siatements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounfing principles
generally accepted in India, Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
share based payments and certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair vahie.

Recent accounting pronouncement

Amendments to Seheduale 11 of the Act

On 24 March 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) through a notification, amended Schedule 111 of
the Act: The smendments revise Division 1, T and 111 of Schedule 11 and are applicable from 1 April 2021, The
revised Division II which rclate to companies whose financial statements are required 10 comply with Companics

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, prescribes amendments for varous additional disclosures.
The Company s evaluating the requirements of these amendments and their impact on the financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS {16, Leases

On 18 June 2021, Minisuy of Corporate A ffairs {MCA’) has issued an updated amendment o0 Ind AS 116 jn
respect of reat concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the Govide19 pandemic. The effective date of
these amendments is T April 2021. However, in case an entity (fessee) has not yet approved the financial statements
before the issuaace of this amendment, then the same sy be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on
ot aftex 1 April 2020 as well. The Compaay is evaluating the requirements of these amendments and their impace
on the financial statements,

LAmendments © Ind ASTI7, Financial kastraments: DIsclossres ... . oo s

New disclosures requitements are added in the standard o enable the usess to understand the effect of interest
rate benchmark reforms on entity's sisk management strategy. The related amendmerits are also made in the other
. Accountng standard as applicable. The Company is evaluating the requitements of these amendments and their
impact on the financial statements,




Global Health Limited (formerly knowe as Globai Healih Private Limited)
Standalone summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year.
ended 31 March 2021 :

Amendments to Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and
Ind AS 16, Properiy, Plant and Equipment

There is ¢hange i definition of recoverable amount from ‘Fair value less costs to sell’ to “fuis value less casts of
disposal’. The Company is evaluating the zequirements of these amendments and dheix impact on the financial
statement. ;

5. Surnimary of significant acconnting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accouating policies and measurement bases
summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless othenvise stated.

5.1 Cusrent versus non-current classification

All psyets and lisbilides have been classified as current ar noa-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and
other citezin ser out in Division If of Schedule 111 of the Act. Based on the nature of the operations and the time
benween the acquisition of assets for processing/servicing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operatin g cycle as twelve months for the puipose of curreat/non-current classification
of assets and labilities.

§.2 Property, plant and equipment

Recognitson and initial wearnrement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comptises purcliase price, borowing
cost if capinlization criteria are met 2ad directly attributable cost of bringing the asset ta its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in artiviag at the purchase price. Property, plant and
squipment pucchased on deferred payinent basis are recorded at equivalent cash price. The diffezence berween the
cash price equivaleat and the total payment is recognised as inferest expense over the period uatil payment Is made.

Subsegucnt costs and disposal _ o

Subsequent costs are included in the asseds CRezying amount of recognised as 4 separate asser, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that farre economic benefits associated wich the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separare asset is
de-recognised when replaced. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss
s incurred.

Trems such as spare pasts, stand-by equipment 2ad servicing equipment are recognised as propesty, plant and

eqﬁipuientasd:cmﬂm}mcct:thwéﬁﬁiﬁémgf:p?mrﬁv;—pmnt—and-fqu:pmmmﬂtﬁmnmr,-minmm“ﬂﬁlﬁﬁe_d

as inventory,

An itent of property, plant and cquipment initially recoguised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any grin or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the ererying amount of the asset) is recognised in starement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress includes property, plant and equipment vnder construction and not ready for intended
-------- —use-as-ou-thebalance sheotdates— : : e e ™

Subsequent neasnrement (depreciation and nigfirl fives)

Freehold land is carded at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are subsegquently
meisured at cost less accumnulated depreciation and impairment osses. Depreciation on propesty, plant and
cquipment s provided on a strzight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed
in Schedule I to the Act.

Asset class Useful life
Building 30 years
Medical equipments 5 to 15 vears




Global Health Limived (forneddy known as Global Healtl Private Limjred)
Standalone summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 March 2021

Medical and surgeal instruments | 3 pears
Other plant and equipment 13 years

| Fusniture and fixtures 10 years
I'T equipment 3 to 6 years
Office equipment 5 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Vehicles 6 to 8 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the lower of useful life and the lease texm available to the Company.
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of ate reviewed at the end of each {mnancial year.
5.3 Intangible asscts

Recoguition and iniftal weastrement

Intangible assets (softwars) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost if eapitalization criteria ate met and directly atributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use.

J‘Hb{t’q!ﬂ'ﬂf mearnretnent
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period of five years from the date of its acquisition,

De-recogniiton
intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal ox when no future ceonomic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset} is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, whet the
asset is derecognised.

5.4 Inventaties

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Cost s calculated on weighted avesage 5
basis. Cost of these inventodes comprises of alt cost of purchase, taxes {except where credit is allowed) and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to theix present location and condition. Cost of purchased inventory is
derermined after deducting rebates and discounts.

Ner realisablevalue.ds r}%&gﬂ&ﬂﬁfm Y M

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
5.5 Revenue recognition :

Revenue is measuted at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized upon
transfer of control of promised products or services to customers/patients in an mmount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue is measured
fier of rebates, discounts and taxes. The Company i

o _the revenue transaction.as.setout.below. .. ..

Tncome from healtheare sevoices

Revenme from healtheare services is recopmized as and when related sexvices are rendered and include services for
patents undergoing treatment and pending for discharge, which is shown as unbilled sevenue under other current
financial assets. The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine :
the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration 1o which the Company expects 1o be ’
entitled in exchange for the services, excluding amounts colleeted on behalf of thied parties (for example, indirect i
taxes).




5.6

Gilobal Health Limited (Yormedy known as Global Mealth Private Lirnited)
Standalone summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information for the Yeur |
ended 31 March 2021

A receivable Js recognised by the Company whes the control is tansferred as this is the case of poinr in time
recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required. When either pagty
1o = contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asser or contract
liabulity, depending on the relationship between the entiy’s performance and the payment.

Lucorme from sale of phavrasy produets 1o aut-paiients

Revenue from pharmacy products is recognized as and when the control of producs is transferred 1o the customer,
The Company considers its customexy business practices to determine the tyansaction ptice. The transacdon price
is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the products, excluding
amounts coliected on behalf of thied parties (For example, indivect taxes).

Clirtical research
Clinical research income is recogrized over time basis percentage completion method which is determined based
on achievement of milestones.

Tnserest income
Interest income is recorded on acerua) basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Spousarcbip seome
Sponsorship income is recognised in the accounting year in which the services are rendered as per the agreed terms
with the customers.

Otber suconre

Revenue arising from revenue sharing agreements i recognized as per the terms of the arrangement,

Reatal income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease texm, except for contingent rental income which
is recognised when it arises,

Borcowing cost

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate {EIR}. Borrowing costs directly attriburable
to the acquisition, constraction or production of a qualifying asset arc capitalized dusing the pedod of time that iz
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets ace assers thar necessarily
take a substzntial period of tme to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed

5.7

I peHsd e oo
Leases
Company as a lessee — Right of use assets and lease Habilities

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a conuact, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asser)
for a period of time in exchange for consideration”.

~Clarsfiearion of leasey

Rt e e L L R et s s e

‘The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several
factors, including, but not linited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset 21 end of lease term, Jessec’s option o
extend/purchase et

Recaguition and initiad muasurement of vight of use assets
At lease commencement date, the Company secognises a sght-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet,
The right-of-use asset is measared at cost, which is niade up of the wnitial measurenmient of the lease liabiliry, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end
of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date {net of uny incentives
received),

calls
SR
-g New Dathi) =
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Global Health Limited (formerly known as Global Health Private Limited)
Standalone summary of significant acecunting policics and other explanatory information for the year
ended 31 Maech 2021

Ssebsequent measnrenient of riphi of nse assels

The Company depreciates the sight-of-use assets on A swaight-line basis from the lease commencement date 1o tire
eatlier of the end of the useful life of the nght-of-use asset or the end of the lease texm. The Company also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impaitment when such indicators exist.

Lrase fiabitities

At lease commencerment date, the Company measures the lease liabitity at the present value of the lease Payments
unpaid ar that date, discounted using the interest rate implicst i the lease if chat rate is readily available or the
Company’s incremental borsowing rate. Lease papments included in the measurement of the lease liability are rnade
up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and varable payments based on an index or rate.
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liablity will be reduced for peyments made and increased for intevest. It is
re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
When the lease liability is re-measuted, the corresponding adjustment is reflocted in the right-ofeuse asset.

The Cownpany has elected (o account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of tecognising a
sight-of-use asset and leasc liability, the payments in relation to these shost-term leases are recogiused as an expense
1 statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the Jease term.

Further, the Company has also clected to apply another practical expedient whereby it has assessed all the reqt
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, basis the following conditions
prescribed under the standagd: :

#)  the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or

iess than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; Ny
b} any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before the 30 June 2021; and '
€) there iy no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

If all the rent concessions meet the above conditions, then, the relared rent concession has been recognised in
statement of profit and loss, :

Company as 2 lessor

Leases in which the Company does not weansfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their pature,
Rental income is recognized on steaight-line basis over the lease-tertn.

5.8 Impairment of non-financial asscss

Assessment ts done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset rmay be impaired. .
For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from i
contiming use that are largely independent of the eash inflows from other assers or Lroups of assets, is considered
43 4 cash generating unit, 1f any such indication exists, an estimare of the tecoverable amount of the asser/cash
generating unit is made. Assets whose earrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or ¢ash gencrating unit's net selling price and is
value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated furure cash fows expected to arise from the continuing

use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of jis useful life, Assessment is also done arcach. balance sheet datgu e . <
..._.;,..-mw,m......a5..to_,whcﬂmr_thc:f._is,auy_indicazioa.ma:mrm’mpainncm-..loxs.-.-rccognjsed.-.-fou-.an-.ﬁ.ssct-,-in;-,-p:iot—.atconnting:.periods:'-"- Clnd
may no longer exist or may have decreased, '

5.2 Foreign cutrency

Funetional and presentation cervency

Items inchaded in dhe financial staternent of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environmeat in which the entity operates {'the functional currency’), The financial statements have been prepared
and presented in fndian Rupees (INR), which is the Corapany’s functional and presentation currency,

Transacttons and balarees

Mew Dalhi
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Foxeign currency transactions are recorded in the funetional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between
the functional cunrency and the foreign currency ar the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheer date are converted (o Fonctional currency using
the closing cate. Non-monctary items denominated in 2 foreign canency which are carried at historical cost are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the teansaction.

Exchange diffexences arising on menetary items on setilement, or restaternent as at repotting date, at rates different
from those ar which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the staternent of profit and loss in the year in
which dhey arise,

Financial instryments

Resognitipn ond initial measuremeont

Financial assets and financial Babilities are secognised when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractyal
provisions of the financial instrument and az¢ mensured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, exeept
for those carried at fir value through profit o Joss which are measured initially ae faix value.

The clagsification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contracrual
rernis of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains aad losses will cither be recorded in the statement
of profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debi instraments, this will depead on the
business model in which the investment is held. For invesaments in «quity instouments, this will depend on whether
the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of inidal recognition 10 aceovnt for the equity investment
at fuir value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH.

Non-derivative financial assars

Subeeguent meassirement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost ~ A *financial asset’ Is measured at the amortised cost if both the

following conditions are met: B '

® The assei is held within 2 business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows; and

s Contractual tesms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPY) on the principal amouat ouistanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortsed cost usine the effective

sistEare B R e

Investments in equity instroments of subsidiaries and joint ventures — These are measuged ar cost in
aecordance with Ind A8 27 Separate Pinancial Statements’.

Iovesements in equity instruments of others — These are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income,

A AR ATEEY

D.P-H:wgu;h'nn ,:.-,f:v’)n L G e e s e . .

giised" Wl e contractual Gghis To Tecdive cash FIoWws Trom T sisisss expired or
the Company has wansfersed its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Subieguent pecsarersent
Subsequent o initial secognition, all non-desivative financial Habilides are measured at amoriised cost using the

effeciive interest method.

De-recogmtion of financial liabilities -
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A financial Hability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or axpites.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by anather from the same leader on substantially diffevent rorms, or
the texms of an existng liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition of a new Nability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Qifsetting of financial jnstruments

Financial assets and financial Gabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheer if there is
cusrently enforeeable legal right o offser the recognised zmounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on funike events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty,

5.11 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit lasses associated with its financial assets and
the impaisment methodalogy depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk,

Trade receivables

In tespect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credis
losses axe the expected credit Josses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of 4 financial
msirument.

Clber finamnial arsets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assees has increased
significantly since initial recognition, IF the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else ar an amount
equal to the lifetime expected eredit Josses.

When making this assessment, tlie Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected

life of the financial asset. To make thar assessment, the ComPany compares the risk of a defaule eccurting on the

financial assct as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occutring on the financial asset as ar the date

of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available withour undue cost

or cffort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since inftal recognition. The Compaay assumes

thar the credit risk on 2 financial asset Lias not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset
o s

1
- Y A AT TR I PP

5,12 Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax js recognised in statetnent of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income,

The current income-tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the balance sheet dawe.
- Management.periodically. cvaluates pos iuﬂm.&km-_m;;&;cmithxcsPchxmiumﬁmml4pPuGame,{a,@wm_
T .-.-..-mgulation:.is.suh.jmt.m.infcrpmtation:i.t-'establishcsrprmrisiens-whexemppmpriatcm-thrbﬁsis of RIS eR et
to be paid to the tax authorities,

Deferred tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising berween the tax base of assets and labilities and
their careying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax taies (and laws) that have
been enacted ox substandally enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferted income tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Defored rax assets are recopnised for all
deductible remporasy differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable thar farure taxable amounts will he
available to utitise these temporary differences and losses.
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Current tax assets and tax Habilities are ofset where the eatity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
<ither to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and seitte the hability simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and
habilities age offset whea there is & legally enforceable right to offser current tax assets and Liabilities and when the
deferred rax balances relate 1o the sane raxation authority.

5.13 Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivaleats include cash in hand, demand deposits with the banks, other short-term highly liquid
mvestments with oxiginal maturily of theee montlis and less.

5.14 Employce benefits

Short-terns enspioyee benefits

Liabilides for wages and salazies, ncluding non-monctary benefits thar ate expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service ave classified as shost-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus, incentives etc. These are measured
at the amounts expecied to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The Liabilities are presented as current employee
benefir obligations in the balance sheet.

Defined wontyibuesion plau

Conutbution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorites, where the Company has no Farther
obligations. Such benefits are classified as defined contnbution plan as the Company dees not carty any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on 2 monthly basis. In additdon, contdbudons are made to
employees’ siate insurance schemes and labour welfare fund, which are also defined contribution plans recognived
and administered by the Government of India and Haryana respectively, The Company's conmributions to these
schemnes are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plas

The Company has unfunded gratuity 2s defined beaefit plan where the amount that an employee will 1eceive on
tetirement is defined by reference ta the employee’s length of service and final slary. The gratuity plan providesa” -
fomp sum payment to vested eniployees at retirement, death, incapacitation o tesmination of employment, of an i
amount based on the respective employee’s salacy and the tenure of employment, The Company’s liability is ;
actuasially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. This is based on standard :
rates of inflation, salary growth rate and morulig.

Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to market yields on government bonds that

DAY TGS T iy approvinvatingte e obsinpalarediis = BB

Company’s defined beaefit plan is incloded in employee benefits expense.

Actvarel gains/losses xesulting from te-measurements of the defined benefit obligatian are incheded in other
compreliensive income.

Cther loug-tirm employee benefits
The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences o its employees which are in the nature of long-
e emplo.ycc..bcneﬂt.pian..l.,iability.inmspcct.oﬂcompcnsated..abscnces.bccoming.dqggmagxp_errpd.m be.availed

%T}_Qﬁi?.‘i!hanrgnt.'}{!;ﬁmaﬁtﬁmﬁhﬁi‘:alancc::shcnt'.datc.-is:a:stjmatedfn11rxha:basis:-of_-an.—.g-{;maria-]wmﬁou pexformedb yan
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the teporting date. Service cost and net integest
expense on the Company’s other long-term employee benefits plan is included in employee benefits expense.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are also
recorded in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such guius or losses atise.

5.15 Government grants

LITEN

Grants from the government are recoguised at their fair value when there s reasonable assurance that the grane
will be reccived and the Company will comply with all attached conditions, When the grant relates 1o 1 revenue
item, it is recogrnized in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the related
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costs are expensed. The grant can cither be presented separately or can deduct from refated reporred expense.
Government grant relating 1o capital assers are recognised initially as deferred income and are credited 1o statement
of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the expected lives of the related asset and presented within other
operating income. This accounting policy is to be tead with note 47,

5.16 Share based payment expense

The fair vaive of options granted uader Global Health Employee Stock Option Scheme 2014 and 2016 is
recognized as an employee benefit expense with a corresponding increase in equity. The total amonnt (o be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

¢ Including any marker performance conditions (e.g., the entity’s share price}

«  Bxcluding the impact of any service and non-marker performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitabdity, sales
growth fargets and remaining an employee of the eatity over 2 specified time period), and

¢ Incloding the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g the requirement for employees to save or holding
shaves for a specified period of time).

Total expense is recognized over the vesting period, whick is the period over which all the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied, At the end of each period, the endity revises its estimates of the number of options
that ate expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions, It recognizes the impact of
revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a correspeading adjustment to equity,

5.17 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present {Jegal or constructive) obligation as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be tequired to settle (he obligation and a reliable
estimatc: of the amount can be made. Provisions required to settle aze reviewed regularly and are adjusted where
necessary to reflece the cuerent best estimates of the obligation, Provisions are discounted (o their present values,
where the e value of morney is matexial,

Contingeat liability is disclosed unless the likelihood of an outflow of resources is wemote and there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, requise an outflow of resources.

Contingent assets are disclosed only whesn inflow of economic benefits therefrom is probable and recognize only
when realization of income is virtually certain,

!
i
3

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attsibutable to equily
shareholders (after deducting atributable taxes) by the weighred average number of equity shares outstanding
durng the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events including a boaus issue or share split.

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per shate, the net profit or loss for the pediod atiributable o equity

sharveholdersand. ﬂnmwtighmd:aw:agw winberafshares-outsta nding»duriﬂguthepeﬁo&wmtcdﬁrﬂmfm-mmm*
el udve ot SquitFEhaTe s e

519 Rounding of amounts

All amouats disclosed in the fnancial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lalths as per the
requirement of Division IT of Schedule 11, unless othenwise stated.

5.20 Critical estimates and judgements

The prepasation of financial statcments requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldon
-equal-the actual vesults. Management also needs o exercise judgement in applying the Company’ anting
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policies. This note provides an overview of the areas thar involved a higher degree of judgement or complexiry,
and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning oul to be
diffetent than those originally assessed. Detalled information about each of these estimates and judgerents is
inctuded in xelevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in
the financial statements.

2)

b)

d)

<}

g

Recognition of defecred tax assets ~ The extent 1o which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on
an assessment of the probability of the Company’s future raxable income (supported by reliable evidence}’
against which the defersed tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicabiliey of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and interaal factors which could result in
detexioration of recoversble amount of the assets.

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheer date basis the management Judgment, changes in facts and
legal aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outs tanding contingent liabilities,
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement,

Impaitment of financial assets ~ A each balanca sheat date, based on historical default rares observed aver
cxpected bife, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the
expected credit losses on outstanding weceivables, Further, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and country in
which the customer operates,

Defined benefit obligadon (DBO) - Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a2 number of
underying assurnptions such as standard rates of inflation, meoriality, diseonnt rate and anticipation of furure
salary increases. Vadation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annoal
defined benefit expenses.

Useful lives of depreciable famortisable assets — Manngement reviews its estimate of the usefal lves of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected uelity of the assers. Uncextaingies
in these estimates relate to techaieal and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets. i

Leases - The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS ;

HG. Identification of a lease tequizes significant jndgment, The Company uses significant judgement in
assessing the lease termn (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate, The Compaay

=sdaenninerhelememms thenunscaellbloperiod o e O v SO PR eSO By ]
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option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered
by an option to terminate the leass if the Campany is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In :
assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to excrcise :
ae opton to tenuingte a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circomstances that create an economic
incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, of not to exercise the Option o terminate
the lcase. The Company revises the lease term if there is 2 change in the non-cancellable period of & lease.

stmates and judgements axe continuously evaluated. 11 hey are based on historical experience and other factors
ucluding expectation of futize events that may ave a financial impacr on the Company and that are believed to ;
be reasonable under the cireumstances.

:.-rrgulation:.-:as:wgil--asﬁnaiysmgvaeaaaimutmmemn—a-rcgu}arbasimd-tompﬁantmmpﬁﬁ‘ﬁfd”fﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ‘“.‘"""“““"""""*'“'"

Changes in estimates or non-compliznce of stipulated conditions could lead to significant changes in graar
income and are accounted for prospectively over the balance life of the asset.

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to derermine fair value of equity shares
{where acrive market quotes ate not available) and stock option. This involves developing estimates 2nd
assumptions around volatility, dividend yield which may affece the value of equity shates o stock options,
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7 Intangible assets (¥ in lakiis)
Seftware

Crosy block '
Balance ax a1 01 April 2019 215482
Additions 32147
Balance as at 31 March 2020 595,09
Addiuons 43153
Dalance as at 31 Mareh 202t 440,52
Accuntulited amaortisation
Balance ag at 01 April 2019 138.82
Chagpe for the year 24,57
Balance as 2t 31 March 2020 233,30
Charge lor the yenr ' 10192
Balaned us at 31 March 2021 335,31
NetBock us w1 31 March 2000 363,60
Net biock ay at 31 March 2023 305,21

(This spaace bus broy futentionally kil blark)
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